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International Entertainment Corporation

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2024 (the “Year").

The Group's revenue for the Year was approximately HK$229.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 10.9%, as compared with
approximately HK$207.2 million in the year ended 30 June 2023 (the
“Previous Year’). The Group reported a gross profit of approximately
HK$132.4 million for the Year under review, representing an decrease of
approximately 3.1%, as compared with approximately HK$136.6 million in
the Previous Year.

The past year has seen the global economy steadily recover from the
pandemic, with the travel and entertainment industries experiencing a
particularly strong resurgence. Guided by its core philosophy of “seeking
progress amidst stability and opportunities amidst change”, the Company
has capitalized on this positive momentum. Our dedicated management
team and employees have worked collaboratively to seize development
opportunities in the global market.

The Philippines possesses inherent advantages for success in the gaming
and tourism industry: it is located at the heart of Asia, with an extensive
international transport network. Furthermore, the government'’s
commitment to attracting investment through favorable policies has
cultivated a secure, compliant, and thriving market environment. The
Philippine economy has demonstrated remarkable resilience, emerging as
one of Southeast Asia’s fastest-growing economies as per the article issued
by Mckinsey & Company dated 7 March 2024. These factors combine, amid
posted highest tourism growth in 2023 according to the Philippine Statistic
Authority, to create immense potential for the Philippine gaming market.
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In May 2024, the Group has commenced its limited operation in the entire
casino operation of an integrated resort by the Group in the City of Manila,
the Philippines as a result of the granting of the provisional license by the
Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation ("PAGCOR") on 27
September 2023 (the “Provisional License”) . The Philippine gaming
market is undergoing a significant transformation. The government’s
proactive approach, including the establishment of clear policies and
development plans, aims to position the Philippines as a premier gaming
and entertainment destination in Asia and globally.

The Group considers the grant of the Provisional License will enhance
future earning capability and potential of the Group. The grant of the
Provisional License will be a milestone development of the Group which
denotes that the Group is able to operate and manage casino business and
gaming activities independently.

The Company is well-positioned to capitalize on this historic opportunity
within the Asian gaming market. We remain committed to our core
business philosophy, embracing opportunities, and relentlessly pursuing
growth. We remain committed to providing an exceptional guest
experience, continuously refining our service quality to meet the diverse
needs of our international clientele. We believe that a superior experience
speaks for itself, and we are dedicated to exceeding expectations at every
opportunity. We are confident that the investments made this year,
supported by favorable macroeconomic conditions and supportive local
policies, will generate substantial returns for our group.

APPRECIATION

In closing, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | extend my sincere gratitude
to our directors for their invaluable guidance and vision. Our management
team and employees deserve special recognition for their unwavering
commitment to excellence. Finally, we express our deepest appreciation to
our shareholders, customers, and business partners for their continued
support and trust.

HO Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 September 2024
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The robust growth momentum in the gaming industry has been carried on
to this new financial year as the Philippine economy continues to reopen.
According to the information released by PAGCOR, the country’s gross
gaming revenues ("“GGR") in 2023 reached a record PHP285.3 billion,
breaching pre-pandemic levels and paving the way for more robust
growth in the coming years. Further in first half of 2024 grew 19.2% to
PHP194.7 billion from the PHP163.4 billion GGR in the first semester of
2023. The Group's revenue from the gaming operation for the Year
increased from approximately HK$133.5 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$170.0 million.

Tourism industry remained resilient during the Year. From January 2024 to
July 2024, visitor expenditure in the Philippines reached about PHP323.7
billion, a 13.2% increase from PHP286.0 billion during the same period in
2023. However, some of the hotel rooms of the Group were closed for
renovation during the Year, the Group recorded revenue from the hotel
operation for the Year of approximately HK$59.8 million, compared to
approximately HK$73.7 million for the Previous Year.

As a result, the Group's total revenue for the Year increased from
approximately HK$207.2 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$229.8 million for the Year, representing an approximately 10.9%
increase. The Group reported a gross profit of approximately HK$132.4
million for the Year, as compared to approximately HK$136.6 million in the
Previous Year. Gross profit margin for the Year was approximately 57.6%, as
compared to gross profit margin of approximately 65.9% for the Previous
Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$17.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 49.9%, as compared with
approximately HK$11.9 million for the Previous Year. This was mainly due
to the increase in interest income during the Year.

Other gain/(loss) of the Group was mainly represented by net foreign
exchange gain or loss. The Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HKS$15.5 million for the Year as compared to a net gain of approximately
HK$1.7 million in the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$0.7 million on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the Year, as
compared to a loss of approximately HKS$3.1 million in the Previous Year,
representing an approximately 76.9% decrease.

The Group recorded a gain of approximately HKS1.4 million on change in
fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the
Year, as compared to a loss of approximately HK$4.3 million in the Previous
Year.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties has been arrived at
based on a valuation carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited ("JLL"), an independent professional valuer not
connected to the Group. The fair value loss for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$14.1 million, as compared to a gain of approximately
HK$3.0 million for the Previous Year. On 9 May 2024, the investment
properties were transferred to property, plant and equipment upon the
commencement of the casino operation by the Group with fair value of
HK$953.8 million at the date of change in use as its deemed cost.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

General and administrative expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 110.9% to approximately HK$204.6 million for the Year from
approximately HK$97.0 million in the Previous Year. Included in these
expenses for the Year, approximately 42.1% was staff costs. The staff costs
for the Year was approximately HK$86.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 167.3%, as compared with approximately HK$32.2 million in
the Previous Year. The increase in general and administrative expenses was
mainly due to one-time expenses of approximately HK$40.9 million in the
Year as a result of the Provisional License to establish and operate the
same, the increase of staff costs of HK$53.9 million and license fee of
HK$4.2 million.

Finance costs of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$70.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 166.8% as compared with
approximately HK$26.5 million in the Previous Year. This was mainly due to
a new bank borrowing being obtained in the Year, for the establishment
and operation of a casino and the development of an integrated resort by
the Group under the Provisional License.

The Group recorded a income tax credit of approximately HK$30.3 million
for the Year, as compared to an income tax expense of approximately
HK$2.8 million in the Previous Year.

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$132.0 million for the Year
as compared with a profit of approximately HK$18.3 million for the Previous
Year.

The loss per share for the Year amounted to approximately 9.64 HK cents,

as compared with the earnings per share of approximately 1.34 HK cents
for the Previous Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are gaming operation (leasing of
investment properties equipped with entertainment equipment to

PAGCOR and participation in the gaming operation as a result of the

granting of the Provisional License), hotel operation and live events.

1.

Gaming operation

The “Gaming Operation” segment represents leasing of investment
properties equipped with entertainment equipment to PAGCOR and
participation in the gaming operation under the Provisional License.

The revenue derived from the gaming operation for the Year was
approximately HK$170.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately 27.3%, as compared with the gaming operation of
approximately HK$133.5 million in the Previous Year. The increase
was mainly due to the revenue being generated under the
Provisional License since its commencement in May 2024. Amid the
return of traveler's mobility under lifting of pandemic measures, the
performance in the segment has shown a significant recovery since
then. It contributed approximately 74.0% of the Group’s revenue
during the Year (the Previous Year: 64.4%).

Hotel operation

The revenue derived from the hotel operation mainly includes room
revenue, revenue from food and beverages and other hotel service
income. The hotel of the Group is located in Manila City which is a
tourist spot with churches and historical sites as well as various night
spots catered for tourists and is one of the major tourist destinations
in the Philippines.

The revenue derived from the hotel operation for the Year was
approximately HK$59.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 18.8%, as compared with approximately HK$73.7
million in the Previous Year. Included in the total hotel revenue for
the Year was approximately HK$42.2 million or 70.5% contributed by
room revenue (Previous Year: HK$49.7 million or 67.5%). The
decrease in total revenue was mainly due to the renovation of
upgrading hotel rooms. While the revenue derived from the food
and beverages was approximately HK$16.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 27.5%, as compared with approximately
HK$22.3 million in the Previous Year.

Live events

The revenue represented income from sponsorship and entrance fee
of live poker events. However, there was no live poker event during
the Year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWE D

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Philippines is increasingly recognized as a premier destination for
international tourists. Based on the Department of Tourism report for
January to March 2024, international tourist arrivals to the Philippines have
tallied 1.2 million, where foreign tourist accounted for approximately
94.5%. The Philippine Department of Tourism revealed it is targeting a
baseline of 7.7 million arrivals in 2024. The TME Travel Expo 2024, held in
July, was a great success and significantly boosted its global tourism profile,
aiming to attract more tourists and investors. The Philippine government’s
ongoing regulatory reforms aim to elevate the country’s status on both an
Asian and global scale. These reforms, which include stringent policy
implementations and strategic infrastructure development, are reshaping
the market landscape.

With the government’s supportive policies to boost the economy, it is
believed that the growth momentum of gaming and tourism industries
will be sustained and even surpass other countries in Asia in the near term.
The Directors consider that the influx of tourists to the Philippines will
boost the economy therein and benefits to the gaming and entertainment
industry. The Directors consider that the grant of the Provisional License
will provide an opportunity for the Group to participate in the gaming and
entertainment in addition to the existing hotel and hospitality markets in
the Philippines and will enhance future earning capability and potential of
the Group.

During the reporting period, the Group was granted the Provisional
License. In May 2024, Marina Square Properties, Inc. ("MSPI") and New
Coast Leisure Inc. (“NCLI"), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company in the Philippines, as licensee (the “Licensee”) and PAGCOR as
licensor entered into the Provisional License Agreement pursuant to which
PAGCOR has granted the Provisional License to the Licensee to establish
and operate a casino and the development of an integrated resort in the
City of Manila, the Philippines. PAGCOR shall issue the regular casino
gaming license (the “Regular Casino Gaming License’). The Regular
Casino Gaming License is renewable subject to the same terms and
conditions of the Provisional License. The effectivity or term of the
Provisional License and the Regular Casino Gaming License shall be co-
terminus with the franchise of PAGCOR which shall be effective from the
date of the Provisional License Agreement until 11 July 2033.
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International Entertainment Corporation

Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE OUTLOOK (Continued)

The Group has gained its expertise in the operation and management of
casino. Upon the commencement of the operation of the Provisional
Licence, the operation and management of the casino were transferred to
the Licensee to run the casino.

The Directors consider that the grant of the Provisional License will provide
an opportunity for the Group to participate in the gaming and
entertainment in addition to the existing hotel and hospitality markets in
the Philippines and will enhance future earning capability and potential of
the Group. The grant of the Provisional License will be a milestone
development of the Group which denotes that the Group is able to
operate and manage casino business and gambling activities
independently.

Regarding the future development of an integrated resort, the Board will
consider different financing methods such as bank borrowing and/or
equity financing (as the case may be) in order to expand our business and
maintain the liquidity of the Group.

However, challenges such as geopolitical tensions may have an impact on
the pace of recovery of global economy. The Group remains cautiously
optimistic about the outlook for tourism and gaming industry in the
Philippines. The Group will continue to focus on its business operations
and investments in the Philippines riding on business environment to
strive for exploring potential business opportunities.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2024, the Group's net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$16.2 million (as at 30 June 2023: HK$132.4 million).
Current assets amounted to approximately HK$616.8 million (as at 30 June
2023: HK$602.5 million), of which approximately HK$417.5 million (as at 30
June 2023: HK$492.5 million) was bank balances and cash.

As at 30 June 2024, the Group had current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$600.6 million (as at 30 June 2023: HK$470.1 million), of
which approximately HK$441.3 million (as at 30 June 2023: HK$416.3
million) was promissory notes and approximately HK$56.1 million (as at 30
June 2023: nil in current liabilities) was convertible bond.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

The bank balances and cash of the Group as at 30 June 2024 was mainly
denominated in Peso, HKS and United States Dollars ("USD").

Net cash used in operating activities of the Group for the Year was
approximately HK$30.5 million, while net cash generated from operating
activities of the Group was approximately HK$6.7 million for the Previous
Year. Net assets attributable to the owners of the Company as at 30 June
2024 amounted to approximately HK$1,016.8 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 15.8%, as compared with approximately
HK$1,207.0 million as at 30 June 2023.

On 27 July 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent (the “Placing Agreement”). The completion of the placing
took place on 10 August 2017. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement, an aggregate of 190,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$1.00 each as placing shares were successfully placed by
the placing agent at the placing price of HK$1.90 per placing share. Further
details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 July
2017 and 10 August 2017. The net proceeds from the placing, after
deducting the placing commission and other related expenses payable by
the Company, were approximately HK$358.5 million. The net proceeds
from the placing were intended to be used as to (i) approximately
HKS$150.0 million for the renovation of a hotel of the Group in Manila City
(the "Hotel"); (ii) approximately HK$100.0 million for the development of
the parcels of land adjacent to the Hotel (the “New Hotel Land"), including
but not limited to the construction of a carpark and amenities of the Hotel,
and the provision of a facility to an independent third party for the
acquisition of the New Hotel Land; (iii) approximately HK$70.0 million for
the potential acquisition of, including but not limited to, lands in the
Philippines for the construction of hotel(s) and/or casino(s); and (iv) the
remaining proceeds for the general working capital of the Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Set forth below is a summary of the utilisation of the net proceeds as at 30

RBER. MHEERERERGEE @)

TXHRR — T _MFENA=THMAEREER

June 2024: BE R BN
Expected
timeline for
Amount of Balance of the application of
the net proceeds the net proceeds the balance of
Intended use of utilised as at unutilised as at the net proceeds
the net proceeds 30 June 2024 30 June 2024 (Note 2)
R=E-m% R-B-m%F ERfEHE
~ABE=TH ~E=TH BREEHND
FEnE EBAREHE RBAMBRE RARER
RERTAR FHEHE REEH (Br##2)
(HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)
(BBAT) (AE#T) (AB#T)

Renovation of the Hotel AEEE 1500 1500 -

Development of the New Hotel Land, ~ F& 1 BER (BRARER 1000 526 474 On or before
including but not limited to the ARAENEESRER 30 June 2025
construction of a carpark and amentties % 38) B AW EE ARt R R RZZ-nE
of the Hotel, and the provision of BUE=HRERME (K1) NAZ TR
afacility to an independent third party
for the acquisition of
the New Hotel Land (Note 1)

Potential acquisition (the ‘Potential MU (BRETRR) 700 - 700 On or before
Acquisition’) of, including but not FRENIHUBREER/ 30 June 2025
limited to, lands in the Philippines for 50885 ([ AT IRIBZE ) W-B-RE
the construction of hotel(s) and/or ANAZ TR
casino(s)

General working capital of the Group ~~ AEER—REEE S 385 385 -

Total @it 3585 411 174
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Notes:

1. The HK$52.6 million utilised comprised HK$51.9 million loan to Harbor View
Properties and Holdings, Inc. for the acquisition of the New Hotel Land and HK$0.7
million for the payment of the design and consultancy services fees for the
development of the New Hotel Land. Priority will be given to the development of
the new lands to be acquired in the Potential Acquisition before the development
of the New Hotel Land.

2. Referring to the Company's announcement dated 27 September 2023 in relation
to the grant of the Provisional License by PAGCOR to the Group’s companies to
establish and operate a casino and the development of an integrated resort in the
City of Manila, the Philippines, the Group is aligning its plan for the Potential
Acquisition and the development of New Hotel Land with the master
development plan proposal for development of the integrated resort under the
Provisional License. The expected timeline for application of all the balance of the
net proceeds will be postponed to on or before 30 June 2025. Should there be any
material change in the intended use of the balance of the net proceeds, the
Company will make appropriate announcement in due course.

On 25 September 2023, a banking facility had been granted to subsidiaries
of the Company of Peso 4,320 million, for the establishment and operation
of a casino and the development of an integrated resort by the Group
under the Provisional License, which has been fully utilised as at 30 June
2024. Interest is charged at variable rate at higher of one year PHP BVAL
Reference Rates+2% per annum or 7.5% per annum in respect to this
banking facility. The Group does not currently hedge its interest rate
exposure, although it may consider doing so in the future.

For further details of our indebtedness, see notes 31, 32 and 33 to the
consolidated financial statements contained herein, which includes
information regarding the type of debt facilities used, the maturity profile
of debt and the currency and interest rate structure.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital (not applicable
under net cash position). Net cash or debt is calculated as total borrowings
representing outstanding promissory notes, outstanding bank borrowing
and outstanding convertible bond as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated
as total equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2024 was approximately 64.7% (as at 30
June 2023: N/A).

The Group financed its operations including but not limited to internally
generated cash flows and bank loans.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division were completed during the
Year. Details of the Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 2 May 2023, 22 May 2023, 6 July
2023 and 11 August 2023 and the Company’s circular dated 5 May 2023.
Except as disclosed above, there were no changes in the capital structure
of the Company during the Year.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Our casino and hotel face intense competition in the market

The Group continues to face significant risks and uncertainties from the
competition in the market that the Group operates, as well as new
competitors which may increase in the future.

Our business is sensitive to economic uncertainty and
regulatory risk in the effect of change in laws and
regulations

The Group is sensitive to the economic downturns, political and social
conditions. The changes in the relevant laws and regulations in the places
that the Group operates might affect the gaming operation of the Group.

In addition, uncertainties exist with regard to the tax disputes between
certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the Philippines and the
Bureau of Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR").

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(for the Previous Year: nil).

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Save as otherwise mentioned in this Report, during the year ended 30 June
2024, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the places in which the Group operates that has a
significant impact on the business operations of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2024.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 June 2024, the bank loan and the banking facility was secured by
the Group's properties as classified under Properties, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$1,010.4 million, certain bank balances of
approximately HK$14.7 million of the Group, certain land use rights and
condominiums of associates of the Group, together with financial
guarantees provided by associates of the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

On 27 September 2023, the Group entered into a Provisional License
Agreement pursuant to which PAGCOR has granted the Provisional License
to the Group’s companies to establish and operate a casino and the
development of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines.
The effectivity or term of the Provisional License and the Regular Casino
Gaming License shall be co-terminus with the franchise of PAGCOR which
shall be effective from the date of the Provisional License Agreement until
11 July 2033. Pursuant to the Provisional License Agreement, the Group will
make the total investment commitment of no less than US$1.0 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$7.82 billion) and up to US$1.2 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$9.38 billion) for the project under the
Provisional License. The total investment commitment comprises land
acquisition costs, costs related to securing development rights,
construction, equipment, development costs, financing costs and all other
expenses directly related to the completion of the project. Details of the
terms of Provisional License Agreement are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 27 September 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no acquisition or disposal of subsidiary
and associated company or significant investments of the Group, which
would have been required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules for the
Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group will continue to explore the market and identify any business
opportunities including a renovation plan to improve the properties of the
Group and leasing premises which may provide its growth and
development potential, enhance the profitability, and strive for better
return to the Shareholders.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

The functional currency of the Company is Peso, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company’s major subsidiaries
operate. The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in HKS as the Directors consider that it is an appropriate presentation for a
company listed in Hong Kong and for the convenience of the Shareholders.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in HKS, USD, Peso
and EURO. The Group primarily earns its revenue and income in HKS, USD
and Peso while the Group primarily incurs costs and expenses mainly in
HKS and Peso. Therefore, the Group may be exposed to currency risk.

The Group has not implemented any foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will monitor foreign currency
exposure for each business segment and review the needs of individual
geographical area and consider appropriate hedging policy in future when
necessary.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was 1,001 as at 30 June 2024
(as at 30 June 2023: 240). The staff costs for the Year was approximately
HK$87.5 million (the Previous Year: HK$33.8 million), among which, HK$86.1
million (the Previous Year: HK$32.2 million) was included in the general and
administrative expenses, and HKS1.4 million (the Previous Year: HK$S1.6
million) was included in cost of sales. The remuneration policy of the
Company is recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company. The remuneration of the Directors and the employees of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of the individuals and
is determined with reference to the Group's performance, the
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. In addition to the salaries, the employees of the Group are
entitled to benefits including medical, insurance and retirement benefits.
Besides, the Group regularly provides internal and external training courses
for the employees of the Group to meet their needs.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period is set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements in this Report.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HO Wong Meng ("Mr. HO"), aged 52, joined the Company in
September 2020, and is an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is also a member and
the Chairman of the executive committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company. He is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. HO possesses more than 24 years of extensive experience and
exceptional expertise in the gaming and hospitality industry. He also has a
vast knowledge and experience in the establishment and operation of
casinos and integrated resorts throughout the industry. Mr. HO specialises
in and has deep understanding of the Asian gaming and hospitality
industries.

Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is an exempted limited partnership
established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law of
Cayman Islands. The general partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. is
Excite Investments Holdings Limited, an exempted company established
under the law of Cayman Islands and is solely owned by Mr. HO. As such,
Mr. HO is deemed to be interested in 260,000,000 shares of the Company
held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), representing
approximately 18.99% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. HO was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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ESENEREEAEBEBREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE (‘Mr. TABLANTE"), aged 58, joined the
Company in April 2022, and is an executive Director of the Company. He is
also a member of the executive committee of the Company, and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TABLANTE has been with the
Group since 2018, overseeing the strategic planning, overall operations
and corporate management affairs in the Subsidiaries Group in the
Philippines.

Mr. TABLANTE holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Industrial
Management Engineering from De La Salle University (DLSU), Manila,
Republic of the Philippines in 1986. He possesses more than 20 years of
senior management experience in hospitality industry.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. TABLANTE was not a director in any other
listed companies for the last three preceding years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Ka Ho (B|RZ 54 ) ("Mr. LAU"), aged 46, joined the Company
as an independent non-executive Director in June 2020. He is also a
member and the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member
of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr. LAU holds a Master’s degree in business administration from The
University of lowa and a Master's degree in corporate governance from
Hong Kong Metropolitan University. He is a fellow member of both The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute. He is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and holds a Diploma in Company Direction.

Mr. LAU has more than 15 years of experience in corporate management,
corporate finance and corporate secretarial areas. Mr. LAU is an executive
director and the company secretary of Gain Plus Holdings Limited (stock
code: 9900). He is also an executive director and the chief executive officer
of Prosperous Future Holdings Limited (stock code: 1259). The issued
shares of above companies of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. LAU was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. CHENG Hong Wai (¥ B {& % %) (‘Mr. CHENG"), aged 45, joined
the Company as an independent non-executive Director in January 2021.
He is also a member and the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of each of the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. CHENG holds a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in Accounting from
Macquarie University in Australia. He is a Hong Kong Certified Public
Accountant and a member of CPA Australia who has over 15 years of
managerial experience in auditing, finance and accounting. Mr. CHENG has
extensive experience in financial and accounting as well as assurance and
advisory services in Hong Kong and Australia, where he has gained
expertise to a range of industries, including financial services, food and
beverage, software houses, hospitality, manufacturing and not-for-profits
organisations. He is also well experienced in internal auditing in various
leading financial institutions, including those related to internal controls
over financial reporting as well as daily operation procedures.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHENG was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (R /& 2= 5 4£) (‘Mr. LEUNG"), aged 42, joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director in June 2023. He is
also a member and a chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. LEUNG obtained a bachelor of arts degree in Accountancy in the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2003, and obtained his postgraduate degree
in Accounting from the School of Accounting & Finance of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. LEUNG is a fellow Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and the managing director of
Blossoming Certified Public Accountants Limited. He has nearly over 20
years of experience in the accountancy profession. Mr. LEUNG is an
executive director of Simplicity Holding Limited (stock code: 8367), and an
executive director of Goldway Education Group Limited (stock code: 8160),
the issued shares of above companies of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. LEUNG was not a director in any other listed
companies for the last three preceding years.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2024,

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Suites 1802—
1803, 18/F., Three Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 139 to 140 of this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the Year
(for the Previous Year: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 17 of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 53% (for the Previous
Year: 64%) and 60% (for the Previous Year: 75%) respectively of the Group's
total revenue for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (the
"Shareholders”) (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has an interest in any of the
Group's five largest suppliers or customers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 263 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 15
and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP

Particulars of principal properties of the Group are set out on page 264 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the Shareholders
as at 30 June 2024, which is calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands (the “Cayman Islands Companies Law") and the Company’s
Articles of Association, amounted to HK$979,859,000 (2023: HKSNil).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 143 of this annual report and note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations were made by the Group (the
Previous Year: HKSNil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAU Ka Ho
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai

Pursuant to articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE and Mr. CHENG Hong Wai shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “AGM") of the Company and shall then be eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines under the Listing Rules, and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to
20 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2024, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provision of the SFO) or which were required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 (the “Model Code"), were
as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
and underlying shares of the Company:

EERFTETHRASRRMG. HREKRG
REZFZER KR

RZZ-WNFRA=1TH BEERARAEET
BABRARRMERBAE (F&R&E5 L

T

BHROIEXVER) 2 Bfn - AR RESS -
BREBEEENESNEZHZRAERD (TRE
RBEHH) EXVEE7TRFEH AN AR
RIRBRZMz ERIAR (BREREBEESFRHYE
{EOIB BB E FRRNERA 2 B RR)
HRBEH R ERPIE2GRBACERAFE
ZERMzESEIAR  RIRBEMECGHE L
MERTAEFETEFRRINFESTA ([RE
PRI BRMEARR R MBS SORRIAT

REQXARSG (RE) REBROZHFE

Number of Shares
R&% 8B

Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Corporate share capital of
Name of Director interest interest Total the Company ete?
EALDRE BITRA
EEpE PN £ NEER it BAE D #E
Mr. HO Wong Meng - 260,000,000 260,000,000 18.99%

HO Wong Meng %t 4

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,, an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner) which was wholly-owned by Mr. HO, an executive Director.

) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2024, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2024, the following persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) were interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company which were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company:
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Approximate

percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Shares held the Company te?
EARQATEBITHRAR
RERS/ 28 BEEE/ 56 HENROBE BT S L we
Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. Beneficial owner 260,000,000 18999 (NotesTand2)
Excite Opportunity Fund LP. ERXBEEA (H3E1 2)
Excite Investments Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% Metel)
Excite Investments Holdings Limited SEHNE 2 ER (1)
Glorious Future Fund SPC Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18,999 More?
Glorious Future Fund SPC 2L UNCIWA s (h12)
AG Investment Management Company Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% Mere?
AG Investment Management Company Limited SEHNE R (##2)
Mr. TANG Yuk Fan Interest of a controlled corporation 260,000,000 18.99% Mete2)
BEELEE TN T T S (2)
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd Beneficial owner 131,800,000 9.63%
Eriska Investment Fund Ltd ExBEEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These Shares were held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership established in accordance with the Exempted Limited Partnership Law
of Cayman Islands, and managed by Excite Investments Holdings Limited (as
general partner). Accordingly, Excite Investments Holdings Limited was deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Excite Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(2) Glorious Future Fund SPC was the limited partner of Excite Opportunity Fund L.P.,
whose management shares were held by AG Investment Management Company
Limited in its capacity as investment manager. AG Investment Management
Company Limited was wholly-owned by Mr. TANG Yuk Fan. Accordingly, each of
Glorious Future Fund SPC, AG Investment Management Company Limited and
Mr. TANG Yuk Fan was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Excite
Opportunity Fund L.P. under the SFO.

(3) The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,369,157,235 Shares in issue as at
30 June 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2024, the Company had not been
notified by any person or company, other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company whose interests are set out in the section headed
“DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” in this report, who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 1 November 2017 and
became unconditional on 2 November 2017. A summary of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and/or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

The eligible participant(s) of the Share Option Scheme is/are full time or
part time employees of the Group (including any directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of the
Group); and any business or joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers, producers or licensors,
customers, licensees (including any sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords
or tenants (including any sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant or grantee (including exercised
and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Time of exercise of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the time
of making an offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period of
ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the particular option but
subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to the early
termination of the Share Option Scheme.

There is no specified minimum period under the Share Option Scheme for
which an option must be held or the performance target which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

Acceptance of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to eligible participants in
writing (@nd unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board may
from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
inclusive of, from the date upon which it is made provided that no such
offer shall be open for acceptance after the earlier of the date falling 10
years after the adoption date or the termination of the Share Option
Scheme.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an option. An option shall be deemed to have
been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the eligible participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Exercise price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five (5) business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share on the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall continue in force for the period
commencing from the adoption date and expiring at the close of business
on the date which falls ten (10) years after the adoption date, after such
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect of any
options granted before its expiry or termination but not yet exercised.

Movements relating to the share options granted during the year ended
30 June 2024 were as follows:
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Number of share options
BhREHA
Closing
At1July At30June Exercise Vesting price
Capacity Date of grant 2023 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2024 Validity period price period  (pershare)
R R
“ECZE “ECME e
at RHAH th-A BiRH Bk BAM Bi## AB=TH ByE T%E BRE (8R)
Business partners 4 December 2017 54,766,288 - - - 54766288 - 4 December 2017 to HKS1.94 No HKS1.88
3 December 2027
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Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested, exercised, lapsed ~ BRAGFIRATIREEIN - NEZHBRETEIE T

or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme during the Year. As at 30 June
2024, the Company did not have any outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares available for grant by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme was 68,457,863 shares as at 1 July 2023 and 30 June
2024, which represents approximately 5% of the Company’s issued shares
as at 1 July 2023 and 30 June 2024.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of options and awards
granted under all schemes of the Company during the Year (i.e. nil Shares
under the Share Option Scheme) divided by the weighted average number
of Shares in issue for the Year (i.e. 1,369,157,235 Shares) is nil.

BEHMBRECER D 176 - RWSWENH -
R-ZZWHFRA=1TH  ARFREBREST
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RZE_=F+A—BE_ZE_WNFA=+H "
KRR ZA] THRMERGBE A68457863 8% + 48
ERR _E_=F+tA—HEZZEZWMFEA
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Annual Report £ 3§ 2023/24 29



B REER R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Report of the Directors

ESERES

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out Appendix C1 (the “CG Code") of the Listing Rules and subject to the
provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of the duty of
his/her office.

The Company has taken out directors’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and the directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the convertible bond as disclosed
in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or the Director's connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE WITH A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed, there were no other contracts of significance between
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a controlling Shareholder or
any its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, the following Director is considered to have interests in
the business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules,
particulars of which are set out below:

BIFRIREER R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Report of the Directors

ESERES

EERRBRTBHEER
FR-REBEETHRE THESRRARERER
P AR SR B S TS A A o T L AR 2 T
HAEW  FERIIMT

Description of business of

Name of entity which business
is considered to compete or
likely to compete with the business

the entity which is
considered to compete or
likely to compete with the

Nature of interest in

Name of Director of the Group business of the Group the entity
WERELEEMEBBK
HEBBERDBEAEBEELER HAREBRG R ER
EspE FARBERGE 2 ERER EBHE REEREEZME
Mr. HO Wong Meng Frontier Capital Group Limited and Gaming Executive chairman and
its subsidiary director (has resigned
as at the date of this
Annual Report)
HO Wong Meng 5t & Frontier Capital Group Limited LR HITEERFAES

KEKEB A

Note: Mr. HO was interested in 41,443,500 shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited,
representing 15% of the number of issued shares of Frontier Capital Group Limited.
During the year, Mr. HO disposed his entire interest in Frontier Capital Group
Limited.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above-mentioned entities
and the above Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm'’s length
from, the business of these entities.

As at the date of this Annual Report, Mr. HO has resigned from his positions
as executive chairman and director of Frontier Capital Group Limited. Other
than aforementioned and as so far as is known to the Director, no Directors
or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

(RAEFREMSBHE)

Mt 3F : HO 55 4 7 Frontier Capital Group Limited 41,443,500 %
fi% 19 A 7 5 #E 25+ {h Frontier Capital Group Limited B
BTRODBEMISH - FA - HOXEHEER
Frontier Capital Group Limited 2 & ZB#E%S ©

HREFENBYN DIERZEEES  MKE
PREEAZEHNESS  WAEEEENBILR
HEBERZEBUIRANTEEETHEHATER -

RAFHRAH  HOK 4 B B & % W Frontier
Capital Group Limited Z FAfTE SRR EF W o
BREERRESFHN REESIREZAZ
HBEA(EER ETRADREEIBEHEAE
BB AT RE B R R 2 P A i

N2
S o

T
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
and any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or in existence during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company's corporate governance practices are set out
on pages 34 to 57 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established with written terms of reference which are in line with the CG
Code and the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report of annual
results, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights provisions in the Articles of Association of
the Company, or under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
Shareholders.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

HO Wong Meng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 September 2024
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the Year, the Company has applied the principles and complied
with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviation from the code provisions which are explained below.

Code Provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. HO currently assumes the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides the
Company with strong and consistent leadership, allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies,
and is beneficial to the business prospects and management of the Group.
Although Mr. HO performs both the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer is clearly established. These two roles are performed by
Mr. HO distinctly.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors that is no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code. After specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the Company’s own code during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal duty of the Board is to ensure that the Company is properly
managed in the interest of the Shareholders.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises five Directors, of whom two are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. The names
of the Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are
set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LAU Ka Ho

Mr. CHENG Hong Wai

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the
Group. Biographical information of the Directors and the relationship
among the members of the Board are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report. Updated list of Directors identifying their role and
function are maintained on the websites of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company at www.ientcorp.com.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established, and is responsible
for the management of the Board and ensures that all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The Chief
Executive Officer is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group and oversight of the management. The management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations of the Group. The roles and division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
clearly established. In addition, the Company has established the executive
committee, the Audit Committee, the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee of the Company (the ‘Remuneration Committee”) with
respective terms of reference to assist the Board in focusing on specific
matters, fulfill their roles and functions delegated by the Board, and make
any necessary recommendations of the Board.

Presently, Mr. HO Wong Meng assumes the roles of both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer. The reasons for the deviation of the code
provision C.2.1 under the CG Code are set out in the section headed
“Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code”.

Board Independence

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure that independent views
are available to the Board. During the Year, the Board also reviewed and
considered the mechanisms in place to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board. These mechanisms include:

the Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members being
independent non-executive Directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Further, independent non-executive
Directors will be appointed to Board Committees as required under
the Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure independent
views are available;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Independence (Continued)

the Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the Nomination Policy
(as defined below) and Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) with
regard to the nomination and appointment of independent non-
executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually the
independence of independent non-executive Directors to ensure
that they can continually exercise independent judgments;

the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
entitled to obtain further information from the management on the
various matters to be discussed at Board meetings and, where
necessary, independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expense; and

the Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Company is of the view that all of the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are considered by the Board to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgments. The Board considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its
deliberations. None of the independent non-executive Directors has any
business or financial interests with the Group nor has any relationship with
other Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of the Directors

By virtue of article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in B.2.2 of the CG Code all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of
the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Each of Mr. LAU Ka Ho, Mr. CHENG Hong Wai and Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai, who
were appointed as independent non-executive Directors, entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on the date of his appointment and is subject to retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Appropriate liability insurance for the Directors has been arranged for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to approve, among other things, the
financial results of the Company. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to give the Directors an opportunity to attend. All Directors are
invited to include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. For all
other Board meetings, reasonable notices are given to Directors. Directors
can attend Board meetings either in person or by electronic means of
communication.

If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than by a written resolution. Independent non-executive Directors
who, have no material interest in the transaction will be present at such
Board meeting.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking minutes
of all Board and Board committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to
Board or Board committee members unless a conflict of interest arises and
the final version of minutes are open for inspection by the Directors upon
reasonable notice.

For the Year, five Board meetings, one annual general meeting and one
extraordinary general meeting were held.

The external auditor attended the AGM held on 4 December 2023 to
answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence and the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEgw)
Board Meetings (Continued) ExgeR @)

Details of the attendance of directors are set out below. The attendance of B EHFES#H Z BN T - MR FRPRE
a Director is stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his  ZEMEEM S * EHELHIZRBRETRTE
tenure if he was appointed part way during the Year. T e@FmREmaL o

Number of meetings during the Year
FAERREY
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE SEKREE
Annual General
Meeting held on
Board Meetings 4 December 2023

N—E=-=
+=—HAMmA
BITHRR
ExgER BEXRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Board ~ HO Wong Meng 7t &
and Chief Executive Officer) (BEFS T EHRITHIEAER) 5/5 1/1
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE 5 4 5/5 11
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. LAU Ka Ho BRZRE 5/5 1/1
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai BIER(E A 5/5 1/1
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai RIEREE 5/5 1/1
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors are provided with induction training. Each of
them will receive a Director’s Handbook which contains the terms of
reference of the Board’s committees, the information on the duties and
responsibilities of directors under statutory regulations and the Listing
Rules, and other information on corporate governance matters. They will
also receive the materials on the operations and business of the Group.

The Directors should participate in continuing professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company
has provided the Directors with the monthly updates on the Group's
performance, position and prospects, and the latest development of the
Listing Rules, and the relevant laws, rules and regulations relating to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have provided the Company with their training records for the
Year and all of them had participated in continuing professional
development activities by attending the training courses, seminars,
workshops and/or training on corporate governance, regulatory
development or other relevant topics during the Year.

For the Year, the Directors have participated in the following continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills:
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Type of continuous professional development

BFEREXZEER

Reading materials

Attending seminars or

giving talks relevant to the
of seminars/webinars/  directors’ duties and
conference/forums responsibilities
HEBEREHFTE
mEmae g8 FHRESRER
WiEERRER BB 2 BEM R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng 5t 4 - v
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE 5¢ 4 - v
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. LAU Ka Ho ARZF L v v
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai B ER{E ST A4 v v
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai RIERKE v v
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BOARD COMMITTEE
Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Company (the “Executive Committee”)
comprises two executive Directors as at the date of this annual report,
namely Mr. HO Wong Meng (Chairman of the Executive Committee) and
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are, inter alia, to advise the
Board in formulating policies in relation to the business operations of the
Group, supervise the management to implement the policies laid down by
the Board, make recommendations to the Board as to the Group's business
plans, and oversee the management and the daily operations of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee in compliance with
Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision D.3.3 and D.3.7 of the CG Code.

As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee of the Company
(the "Audit Committee”) comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors namely, Mr. CHENG Hong Wai (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. LAU Ka Ho and Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai, with written terms of
reference which are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and
the website of the Company. At least one of the members of the Audit
Committee possesses appropriate professional accounting qualification as
defined under the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, inter alia, to oversee the
relationship with the external auditor, to review the financial information of
the Group, and to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
internal controls and risk management functions of the Group.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor not less than twice
to discuss the financial reporting process and internal controls of the Group
during the Year and had reviewed the interim report of the Company for
the six months ended 31 December 2023 and the annual report of the
Company for the Previous Year. The Audit Committee also received the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the re-appointment

of BDO Limited as the Company’s external auditor subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review the
financial reporting process, internal controls and risk management systems
of the Group, the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group,
the Company'’s reports and accounts including the interim and annual
results of the Group, the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and provide advice and recommendations to the Board.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are set
out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

ERZEERE

Mr. CHENG Hong Wai (Chairman) BRELE (F/E)
Mr. LAU Ka Ho BIRFSEAE

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai PIER S A&

LEEARE

EEEEETH)

EREES ()
ERNBREEBELRTIRNGE  URHAS
EHSEREF  ASELRERTERS A
RN Y AN - BEAATRERER (B
EAREE R EEE) - RETINE XD
TEHEBMRERGES  YAESSREE B RS -

ERZEBENB ZHFECEEINIMT

Committee meetings Attended/
Eligible to Attend

BHE HEER
HEZEE2E3

3/3

3/3
3/3
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision B.3.1 of the CG Code.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director,
namely Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr.
CHENG Hong Wai and Mr. HO Wong Meng, with written terms of reference
which are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website
of the Company.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to review
the structure, size and the composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman,
the managing Director or the Chief Executive of the Company; and to
nominate and recommend candidates to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
for the Board's approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy") setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee is
responsible to assess the appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/
educational background, or professional experience) required on the Board
based on current and projected future activities of the Group, and the
extent to which the required skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity are represented on the Board; to oversee the Board succession to
maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and
diversity on the Board; to propose to the Board the measurable objectives;
and to review the Board Diversity Policy and discuss any required changes
with the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company believes increasing diversity at the Board level as an important
element in achieving its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

When determining the Board's composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of perspectives including, but not limited to,
gender, age, culture and educational background, ethnicity, skills,
language, background, education knowledge, industry experience and
professional experience. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board has actively identified individuals that are suitable and qualified
to become Board members to fulfill the Board Diversity Policy and enhance
gender diversity on the Board. As to develop a pipeline of potential
successors for the Board, the Company will also proactively provide internal
trainings to our senior managements and will take into account the factor
of gender diversity when accessing suitable candidates for our senior
management in the future.

The Company may also engage with recruitment agencies to identify
potential successors for the Board and enhance gender diversity in the
coming years, if necessary.

As at 30 June 2024, the Board comprised five male Directors, and the
percentage of male and female employees of the Group are approximately
56.1% and 43.9% respectively. While the Board has a domination of male
composition, the Company will be appointed at least one female director
on or before 31 December 2024 to achieve a female representation in the
Board in compliance with Listing Rules.

The Board considers that the Group’s workforce (including Directors) are
diverse in terms of gender. The Group will continue to apply the principle
of appointments based on merits with reference to the Board Diversity
Policy as a whole, and we have also taken, and will continue to take steps
to promote gender diversity at all levels of our Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued) EEgZEg#
Nomination Committee (Continued) RBREZEE ()
Nomination Policy BEHE

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the following ZEBEEHRM —BIRABE SR HIIUAT RS
nomination procedures, criteria and process in the nomination and RETEEMNRABTRE ZELER (B

appointment of Directors (the “Nomination Policy’). &) o
1. Selection Criteria 1. BEEE
The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in REZEENRTELBBEERHREARNH
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships: EEATELE -
() Characteristics of individual director 0 ZFEFZBEARE
Integrity and accountability HWEREME
Informed judgment RVIE H)
Prudence and maturity FIE KA

Principled and professional

Other characteristics as the Nomination Committee
deems appropriate

Competencies in the following areas to ensure the Board's
overall suitability

Accounting and finance
Law

Industry knowledge
Marketing

Other competencies as the Nomination Committee
deems appropriate

BERAREZE

REZEERREE 2EME
£

(i) WATHREBZBEEN  NERES

FERARHEE
LR
e
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REZEEARBE ZEME
(5=

REZBETKER :
BEEQ2RE - ABRAK

The Nomination Committee shall also consider:

the structure, size and composition of the Board;

EEMBEENA/EE  HimE
REEFSEMETHRE

EESFUANKEE K A8 F
EHBEZ LT EEFEE ¥
HEFEMRMEEZSZTIEERRE
B

the appropriate mix of competencies between Directors to
enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively;

the appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge,

expertise and diversity of the Board is maintained, and the
Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board is followed;

RIE ATLE AR AR R B KA
2B ]

BENGREREBILED -

the capability of the candidate to devote the necessary time
and commitment to the role; and

the potential conflicts of interest, and independence.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

1.

Selection Criteria (Continued)

If more than one candidate are nominated by the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall base on the criteria
and recommend the most competent candidate to the Board. The
Nomination Committee shall also consider the number of board
positions they hold in other firms. After the Nomination Committee
reviewed and considered the candidates, the Nomination
Committee makes recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy. Detailed
background information in relation to potential candidate should be
provided to all Directors for consideration. An offer of a director
appointment must be made by the Board's approval, with any
recommendations from the Nomination Committee having been
circulated to all Director. The new director shall sign a consent letter
to act as a Director.

Nomination Procedures

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules, (i) every Director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years, all retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election at each AGM; and (ii) any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next general
meeting of the Company, the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election at the general meeting of the Company.

For those who offered themselves for re-election at the AGM or the
other general meetings of the Company, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account the fulfillment of duties, contribution, and
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings. The
Nomination Committee shall also access whether the retiring
Directors continue to meet the criteria. After the Nomination
Committee reviewed and considered the retiring Directors who offer
themselves for re-election, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board.

Based on the recommendations made by the Nomination
Committee, the Board shall make recommendations to the
Shareholders on the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the
AGM or other general meetings of the Company, and provide
available biographical information of the retiring Directors in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules to enable
the Shareholders to make informed decision on the re-election of
such retiring Directors at the AGM or other general meetings of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

2. Nomination Procedures (Continued)

The Nomination Committee considers that all Board members
possess the relevant skills and knowledge in the area of the business
operations of the Group with several of them also possess
professional qualifications. The Nomination Committee considers
that an appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise
and diversity on the Board is maintained and therefore no
measurable objectives were proposed to the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting, (i) to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board; to assess the
appropriate mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on
the Board; (ii) to review the Board Diversity Policy and monitor its
implementation; (iii) to review the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) to consider the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are
set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEGRE

Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai (Chairman) RIBREE (FFE)
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng %t 4
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai B ER{E T4
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Listing Rules and written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAU Ka
Ho (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. CHENG Hong Wai and
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai, with written terms of reference which are available on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
and on the establishment of a formal, transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy and to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
the senior management of the Group, and the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors and to review and/or approve matters relating to
shares schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group is based on the performance and experience of individuals and is
determined with reference to the Group's performance, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the remuneration policy of the Company and make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee

are set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMESERE

Mr. LAU Ka Ho (Chairman)
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

EEEZEE5TH)
ymEse (&)
EMESERE T LEREHINT

Committee meeting Attended/
Eligible to Attend

CHE HEER

HEZE22E

BRREE(FE) /1
BEERE /1
RIS E /1

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate EZ@HFEEHERITLEETRRE X B

governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on (i)
corporate governance and make recommendations from time to

time;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

BIE MR ARRZBEEERBRMER -
A B HE H A

i) BMAMERAEBEERSRERABZ
BIIRHEEEER

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in (i) B RERARGEETEEREERTE
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; AEZBERERER

(iv)  todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance  (iv) #l|7F * B MNEREEMALEEREE 2

manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and the employees of the

Group; and

(v)  toreview the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure  (v)

in the Corporate Governance Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer, while all Directors have access to the advice and services of her/
him to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary is also responsible for
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that its policy and procedures are followed. They advise the Board
through the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer on corporate
governance matters and facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors.

Ms. LI Wing Wah resigned as the Company Secretary on 4 August 2023.
Mr. WONG Wing Kit (“Mr. WONG") has been appointed by the Company as
its Company Secretary with effect from 4 August 2023. During the year,
Mr. WONG attended over 15 hours of professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and include the applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report”
in this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration in relation to audit services paid or payable
to the auditors of the Company and its subsidiaries was HK$3,100,000 and
HK$410,000 respectively and the remuneration in relation to non-audit
services (including agreed-upon procedures on interim results and other
non-audit services) paid or payable to the auditor of the Company and its
affiliated firm was HK$524,000.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY AND
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has established the (i) policy and measures to support anti-
corruption laws and regulations; and (i) Whistleblowing Policy and
measures for employees, suppliers and business partners to raise serious
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the Board about possible
improprieties in financial report or other matters of the Group. These
polities can promote high probity standards and ethical business practices.

Further details of the Group’s Anti-Corruption Policy and Whistleblowing
Policy, please refer to the Company's website.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of the dividends will be subject to
be discretion of the Directors and will be dependent upon the Company’s
earning financial condition, cash requirements and availability, the
provisions of relevant laws and all other relevant factors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are established in order to carry on the business of the entity in an orderly
and efficient manner, ensure adherence to management policies,
safeguard the assets, secure as far as possible the completeness and
accuracy of records, and identify potential risks so as to manage the
identified risks, undertake the measures to mitigate the potential effects of
any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
management of the Group is responsible to identify the potential risks. The
identified risks would then be assessed for the likelihood and impact on
the financial, operational and compliance of the Group. The management
of the Group would undertake relevant measures to mitigate the potential
effects of any misstatement or loss arising from such identified risks. The
identified risks would also be reported to the Directors and disclosed the
significant risks in this annual report. The Group has developed and
adopted different risk management procedures and guidelines with
defined authority for implementation by key business processes and office
functions, including gaming operations, hotel operations, food and
beverage, construction, finance, human resources, information technology.
In addition, the Group has adopted a policy to handle and disseminate the
inside information of the Group, which was designed based on “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group through the
internal audit function of the Group. The Group engaged an independent
firm (the “External IC Expert’) to perform the internal audit function to
carry out the review on the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

52 Annual Report £ %3 2023/24

AR R EER

REZER - KNEeBEAHEEWIEETE 1
BEURR AR B 2 BMP BN ReFBERH
RIS - BEERIEUARMBEEMBBRE -

R\ B E R e PO R B A
SEeRAEAARREIERAREE RGN
BAERRZEE - RUZFERIBEFEX
ETTEREYR BMRETEERER REEE-
BARERERACH TR AR - MASBERRIAE
EEEM R - BITHEEAREZEC H AR
BRIEEZEMARERARBRBEEZE - K
SEEEBERMABEERR - ERFIRREER
R E R BEE R B ANEEY T - BERARNE
EETTAHE - AEBEEIEE K 1T AR
(S 2B R EL 2 ERBERAKER
ZBEFE CRMARTEAESERELNA
FHRPFEREERNER - NEEEHE LKA
MR EERRFRES YRAESEBEXHRE
EnEReE (RIEEYEE BELEE 2R
BB ANEBER - BB ITHER °
AN - NEE D RAERIE M EMAEEARNRER
WK - DIRBEABES LB EEHREREZES
(REHBRERSIDRTL -

FR EFEEEAKERNRERAFIEAEE
[\ fR B IR M A BRERAE R 2 R RUETTAR AT - A&
BEEZE-—RBYESM(IBREER) AR
WEBEIZEBRE - M AR EREREIE kB



BIFRIREER R A

International Entertainment Corporation

Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The External IC Expert identifies and examines key issues in relation to the
hotel/casino management, strategic management, key operational and
financial processes, human resources management, regulatory compliance
and information security and provides its findings and recommendations
forimprovement. The internal audit function submitted its review report to
the Audit Committee with the key audit findings and recommendations to
improve the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
which were also presented at the Board meeting. The Board is not aware of
any material defect or weakness of the internal systems and controls in
relation to anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing which
would have an adverse impact on the operations of the Group; and
considered that the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

In addition, the management of the Group has provided a confirmation to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Having considered the review report prepared by
the internal audit function of the Group and the confirmation on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group provided by the management of the Group, the Board considered
that the existing risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective and adequate.

The Board also reviewed, and was satisfied with, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group's accounting and
financial reporting function, and the training programmes and budget of
the Group'’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintain an on-going and open dialogue with
current and prospective, and both individual and institutional shareholders
of the Company. A shareholders’ communication policy (the
“Shareholders Communication Policy”) was adopted throughout the
Year pursuant to the CG Code which aims at establishing two-way
relationship and communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

In summary, the Shareholders Communication Policy set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company in order to promote effective
communication with the Shareholders so as to enable them to engage
actively with the Company and exercise their rights as Shareholder in an
informed manner. The Shareholders Communication Policy is available on
the Company's website (www.ientcorp.com) and set out the maintenance
of an effective ongoing communication with the Shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue with its
shareholders through various means includes: (i) financial reports and other
corporate communications. The publication of the financial reports (interim
and annual reports) and other corporate communications including but
not limited to announcements, circulars, notices, proxy forms and other
regulatory disclosure will be provided to Shareholders in accordance with
the Listing Rules and any other relevant laws and regulations to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding; (i) Shareholders’ meetings. (i.e. annual
general meeting, extraordinary general meeting or any other Shareholders’
meetings); and the members of the Board, in particular, either the chairmen
of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management
executives will attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions in normal circumstances; and (iii) Company’s Website. The
availability of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website
which is an effective communication platform to the shareholders and the
investors as well as the general public.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to its shareholders and investors and discloses information in compliance
with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy for enhancing the
investors relations, and the investors understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and applicable legislation and regulations.

1. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the address of the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong to require an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
an EGM shall be held within two (2) months after the date of the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of the date
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the
Shareholder(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by such Shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed by the Company
to such Shareholder(s).

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of requisitioning the
EGM, and be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each to be signed by such
Shareholders or any one of them.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the Shareholder(s) concerned
will be advised of the invalidity and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened.

4. An EGM must be called by written notice of not less than fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) clear business days but if
permitted by the Listing Rules, an EGM may be called by shorter
notice, subject to the applicable laws, if it is so agreed by a majority
in number of the Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at
the EGM, being a majority together representing not less than ninety
five per cent. (95%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having a right to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Pursuant to article 83(2) of the Articles of Association, subject to the Articles
of Association and the applicable law, the company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director.

Pursuant to article 85 of Articles of Association, no person other than a
retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election,
be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his
intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed at
Shareholders’ meeting. There is no provision allowing Shareholders to
make proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands other than to
propose a person for election as a director. Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, follow the procedures set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company” under the section of
“Corporate Governance Report” of this Report written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for putting forward proposals at the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong, presently at Suites 1802-1803,
18/F., Three Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders who have enquires about the above procedures or other
enquires relating to written requisition for an EGM may write to the
Company Secretary at the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

An amendment was made to the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year. The Shareholders approved the amendment to
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company at the 2023
AGM and also adopted the amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association of the Company in order to (i) reflect the
amendments to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules regarding the core
shareholder protection standards (the “Core Shareholder Protection
Standards’), which became effective on 1 January 2022, and to conform
to the Core Shareholder Protection Standards; and (i) make some house-
keeping changes.
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INTRODUCTION

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) were principally involved
in hotel operations, leasing of properties equipped with
entertainment equipment and participating in the gaming operation
at the hotel complex of the Group in Metro Manila in the Philippines
and live poker events in Macau. The Group strives to maximise
shareholder returns, which is one of the key elements to reinforce
the foundation of the Group for long-term development and
success. This is achieved not only through enhancing the Group's
financial strength, but also by fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility.

The Group believes sustainability is the key to success and has
integrated this concept into its business strategy. In order to pursue
a sustainable business model, the Group has adopted the principles
of sustainable development at operational levels, integrated
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") aspects into its
management system and taken corresponding measures in its
governance perspective.

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”)
summarises the ESG initiatives, plans and performances of the Group
and demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

2.1 Reporting Period

This ESG Report covers the year ended 30 June 2024 (2024"
or the "Reporting Period").
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2. ABOUT THE ESG REPORT (Continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Reporting Boundary

The reporting boundary is determined based on the revenue
contribution of the operations under the Group's direct
operational control throughout the Reporting Period. The
reporting boundary of this ESG Report is consistent with that
of the ESG Report for the year ended 30 June 2023 ("2023").
The reporting boundary includes the Group's head office in
Hong Kong and the Group’s operations in the Philippines and
Macau.

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Reporting Guide”) in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

Further Information

Your feedback will help the Group to continuously improve its
ESG work and performance. If you have any questions and/or
suggestions regarding this ESG Report and/or the Group'’s ESG
work, please communicate with the Group via email to
enquiry@ientcorp.com.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has adopted the following reporting principles, namely
materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance in the preparation
of the ESG Report.

Materiality: The Group determines the impact of various ESG issues
on the Group's operations and its stakeholders through survey.
Based on the results of the stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment survey, the Group identifies material ESG issues and
determines the appropriate management approach and strategy.

For further details, please refer to the sections headed
"STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT" and "MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT".

Quantitative: The Group has established internal guidelines and
procedures with reference to industry practices, guidelines of the
Stock Exchange or relevant government departments, as well as laws
and regulations, to collect environmental and social performance
data from various business departments, and to keep relevant
monitoring instrument records and supporting documents. Please
refer to the relevant sections in the ESG Report for the standards,
methodologies and assumptions (where applicable) for the
calculation of performance data.

Consistency: Where feasible, the Group uses consistent statistical
methods to collect ESG data, and the same conversion methods are
used. Relevant historical data has been disclosed in this ESG Report.
If there are any changes that may affect comparison with previous
reports, the Group will add remarks to the corresponding content of
the ESG Report.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to compile the
Report and highlights both achievement and improvement areas of
our ESG management to unbiasedly disclose the environmental and
social performances in the Reporting Period with the support of
pictures, charts and presentation formats whenever appropriate to
present objective and transparent information and data for readers
to make sound decisions and judgments
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

As we present our annual ESG report for this year, we are proud to
share the strides and commitments the Group has made towards
bolstering our ESG performance. The journey towards sustainability
and responsible business practices is ongoing and this report reflects
both our accomplishments and our future aspirations.

The global landscape continues to highlight the urgency of
addressing environmental issues. The Group has intensified our
efforts to minimise our carbon footprint through strategies and
robust policies and continue our initiatives to reduce energy
consumption and enhance our waste management practices.

Our commitment to social responsibility extends to every facet of
our operations, we are to enhance employee well-being and to
provide trainings and development opportunities, resulting in a
more skilled and engaged workforce. In our communities, we have
strengthened our engagement efforts through partnerships and
charitable activities that address local needs.

Over the past year, we have reinforced our governance practices to
ensure transparency, accountability, and integrity in all our dealings.
The Board of Directors has enhanced its oversight functions,
ensuring that our strategic decisions are informed by ESG
considerations. Regular assessments and updates to our governance
policies have equipped us to better manage risks and seize
opportunities in an ever-evolving regulatory landscape.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD (Continued)

While we are proud of our accomplishments, we recognise that the
journey towards sustainability requires collective action. We are
committed to working collaboratively with our stakeholders —
employees, customers, investors, and partners — to drive
meaningful change. Your feedback is invaluable, and we encourage
open dialogue to help shape our ESG agenda.

As we look to the future, we remain unwavering in our commitment
to ESG excellence. We believe that our dedicated efforts in
environmental stewardship, social responsibility, and strong
governance will not only secure the long-term success of the Group
but also contribute to a better world for future generations.

| would like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to our Board
members, the management team, and all our employees for their
unwavering dedication and hard work. | also want to thank our
stakeholders for their continued support and trust. Together, we will
continue to advance our ESG initiatives, setting the standard for
responsible and sustainable business practices.

By order of the Board

International Entertainment Corporation

Ho Wong Meng

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Effective risk management and internal controls are key components
of our governance framework. We have implemented policies and
keep track of our corporate governance performance to ensure our
business can be operated sustainably. We aim to establish trust with
and deliver value to our stakeholders with our high standard
corporate governance.

The Board of Directors serves as the highest authority within our ESG
governance structure, overseeing the Group's overall management.
With a clear set of Corporate Governance Policy stated in our
Director's handbook, the Board of Directors is committed to acting in
the best interest of the Group and fulfilling their responsibilities.
Under the guidance of top management, senior management
supervises the Group'’s ESG measures, analyses relevant data, advises
the Board, and promotes ESG awareness throughout the company
with their knowledge of ESG. They convene regularly to assess and
improve ESG performance, reporting their findings to the Board.

HERERRE

®XER

B R [ B TR AN A BB AR R A E R AE
ROBRAKTED - RMEERERRLF
BRMBEMANEEE AR ABERRM
MEBRAAIFERES - HMEERS
SIREENDEER  BRMNOFHERL
EEX A PIEIEEE -

EECEARMRE HEREARAEES
B £ = M RS %f%’i%‘%@ﬁ’]%ﬁ:ﬁ
Bo-REESFMIARINHNCES
R E%’%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ’ﬂ%%ﬂﬁ&ﬁ%
VETERE AaETEABMIEET
mu& BEEEEEMNRE 8 kER
*ﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂfé CMESTREER
j’[ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ’ﬁ& HERERMEEE
MAREERE e REAEH - M
FTHAMSS TEMMERE 2k
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ESG Governance Structure
ESGEAZE

TheBoard EEE

- Ultimate responsibility for overseeing the company's ESG management and disclosure

- BEENRESCEEMBBRNSKREE

« Promote a culture of sustainable development from top to bottom

- B B MESAARREE
- Setting ESG Strategy and Policy Development
- HIFEESGHR BB HE
- Risk and Opportunity Oversight
- BRAgEEE
« Reporting and Disclosure
WEFETE

Audit
Committee

BEREES

Executive
Committee

PIEEE

Remuneration

Nomination
Committee

REZEE

Committee

HHES&

Senior Management SR EEE

-
= =
= B

- Implementing the ESG strategy set by the Board
- B E R E I ENESCHR A

« Performance Monitoring

- SEER A

- Data Collection and Repomng to the Board

- BURSE T MEE RS

- Ensure effectiveness of the Groups' internal control system

- BERSEBAEREH R A B

. Col\aboratlon with the Board

- BEEEMNE

- Promoting company wide awareness of ESG issues

- RE2AAIHESCHBAM DM

Operations Units & EE{V

- Implementation
- Bife

+ Data Collection and Reporting to the Senior Management

- BRRETMSRERERS
« ESG Integration in Operations
- BIENMESGEA

Annual Report F % 2023/24

63



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRRE AR A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRIR - -HE8KRE

AHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Driving sustainable development and enhancing our ESG
performance hinges on a robust internal control system. By aligning
our internal control practices with our sustainability objectives, we
can effectively manage risks, optimize operational efficiency, ensure
compliance, and generate long-term value for all stakeholders. Our
internal control system is anchored by five key objectives —
validation, accuracy, completeness, physical security, and
maintenance. These elements are instrumental in our commitment
to sustainable development and transparent ESG reporting.

TtEERE
A REREMEARMANESEE He

RERKRR BAREREZY —ERE2HNR
ERIR B R A o BB K RPN EHIE R

HAFBEERAFRELES  RMEREAX
EERER EBICEERE BRAHK L

REAEFNERIE EE@E@"&TF?WW“E
EHIRGA R ARG R R RER — BE -
ERENE TEE BERTE2MEE °t¢—t

TEHRPRDNRAFERREPNIR

B g kEA

Basic Objectives of IEC Internal Control System

[ECREZBIRGHNELB R

T validation B3

Ensure the integrity of the information disclosed in our ESG report by validating the accuracy and
reliability of our data.

Accurate data provides a solid foundation for decision-making, goal-setting, and progress tracking.
BPRBR VAR MERMEMAT SN - RARESGIRE P AT B BIRM RN « R AR
R BEREMEEEHIRHRENER

2 Accuracy %M

Emphasising accurate records, we establish controls and procedures to ensure data correctness
and reflects the true state of affairs which enhance the reliability of our financial and ESG
reporting.

Accurate records boost credibility and showcase our achievements and areas needing
improvement.

HPISR AR - RS AR BB IEREE YRR A ISR - Wiz R RN
FEANESGHR SR A S 14 -

RERAOGCERIEA T AR - SRR T RAMMMIFZZEM BT

Our internal control system captures and reports all relevant ESG information, providing
stakeholders with a complete picture of our sustainability performance,

Comprehensive data helps identify areas for improvement, engage with stakeholders
meaningfully, and enhances information reliability for decision-making.

AR PEbE %‘Jm SRR B RATEARIMESGE A - ISDETET HEMN
AT R R B,

Eg%ﬁ?ﬁﬁwiiﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ%@é R ERBRIN - WIR
RISEME o

0 Physical Security B 22

Safeguard our physical assets, including data, facilities, and equipment, with security measures
such as access controls and surveillance systems. These protections prevent unauthorized access,
theft, damage, or loss, thereby securing critical information and preventing data breaches.
RERMOTPEE (RIFER - RIEMRE) - TR DHHEMFIUZFI TSR R4 -
AR AR EE - B RSN - MR RR A A LA RSNS -

FREAS

Regular reviews, updates, and enhancements of our internal control system ensure its
effectiveness and adaptability to changing regulations and sustainability risks. Continuous
improvements help us better identify, assess, and mitigate sustainability-related risks, ensuring the
accuracy and reliability of our ESG reports.

TEHIRET © TR RRICE PR AEDIRHI R AT - LARER B R S B e B 2 L e 2R A m]
%ZE%‘J%IEEEJ_UYA o FHEE A B EMTAR - FHEFURE A AR RAGMELR - BREM
EIREE M E RERRE AR M

BEEMEE -

64

We are committed to fostering trust and transparency for our
stakeholders through strong corporate governance and effective risk
management. By continuously refining our practices to meet
evolving regulations and industry standards, we aim to enhance
long-term value for our shareholders and support sustainable
business growth.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

By valuing our stakeholders and actively seeking their feedback, we
aim to understand and address their concerns and expectations.
Through regular communication via various channels, we gather
vital insights that allow us to refine our ESG policies and practices.
These interactions help us identify the most material issues in each
sector of our business, ensuring that our efforts align with
stakeholder priorities.

The table below summarises the key communication channels we
use and highlights the primary concerns and expectations of our
stakeholders.

Stakeholders Key Communication Channels
E0E TEBERE
Shareholders/investors  « General meetings

Annual financial reports
Announcements and notices
Company website

R REE - BRERXE®
FEVBRE
NE KB
NGIE R

Hotel guests . Customer service

Customer hotline and email
Customer satisfaction survey

BEEE - BPR%
BEPRRMER
BEEmEERAE

R - ERELGHRSE

RFipE2H

BRAERFNE  LEBSRKEMNLEE -
VAT R BROR t PIRO SR AN HAEE BB %
BRENTEMER  BRABEEZNER
TERMNERE HEREBRRNEE -
55 B B E B APT R B 2 I 3 75 % (<8 I
TREEMNZE BRAMNSHERD
EMEEFRRE % -

TREARPEANTEBBRELEH
B ENTEFIMBAE

Concerns and Expectations

BEzSEERBE

Financial performance

Sustainable business development
Environmental responsibility
Accurate, complete and timely information
disclosure

Shareholders’ rights and interest
Corporate governance

IS AR

AREERER

RIEEE
SEMELERE B RE
P R A =

©EER

Customers’ satisfaction
Protection of customers’ privacy
Environmental responsibility
Hotel safety and security
Complaint management
Emergency response
BEPMEE
REZPEM

REAEME
BIEZ 2 HBRR

R ERE

EHEZFW
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6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFHERE®)

Stakeholders Key Communication Channels Concerns and Expectations

66

B TEBBRE BIcERARNE
Employees Regular performance appraisals Career development
Frequent meetings Occupational health and safety
Training programs Remuneration and benefits
Diversity and equal opportunity
(=1 E BRI (A EEER
REEH BERFEEZE
BHIRE B S 4@ A
bR TERE
Suppliers Business meetings Corporate contribution
Order/contract execution Product quality
Tele-conferences Fair and open procurement
Stable relationship
AR ESiA EFE
HEVE SASEo EmEE
BEEH AR SUNGEZS:
1B E BR

Communities/
Non-governmental
organisations

1R, I B AR A

Annual Report F % 2023/24

Donations and support to the
community

ESG reports

Mt & E H IR AR R AR S iR

RS @ REAWmSE

Contribution to society
Environmental responsibility

Compliance with laws and regulations
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6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

6.1

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Conducting a thorough materiality assessment is integral to
our ESG strategy as it enables us to pinpoint key ESG issues
that impact our business and stakeholders. We further
enhanced our materiality assessment process by engaging a
third-party ESG consultant to benchmark our practices against
international disclosure frameworks and to review our
operations to identify and assess the importance of these ESG
issues.

Stakeholder opinions are pivotal in refining our business and
sustainability strategies and evaluating the effectiveness of our
ESG disclosures. We have gathered insights from
management, employees, suppliers, and hotel guests to
understand their concerns and expectations in our ESG
performance, ensuring our approach remains aligned with
their needs.

The materiality assessment has undergone the following key
steps:

1 ESG Issues Inventory Establishment

An assessment were performed to understand the ESG
Issues that are relevant to the Group'’s industry and
operation based on the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide,
international rating agency, and peers benchmarking. A
list of 24 ESG issues were formed for the stakeholder
survey to assess the materiality of the issues. Four new
ESG issues are added into the ESG issues inventory this
year in lights of the megatrends of the industry and to
have a more comprehensive analysis on the ESG issues
that are important to the Group's operation.

12 45

HERERRE

6. BFnEZHE (%)

6.1

EEMFME
ETE2HNEEETFEHERRMRE
HeMEARBNEZMEAREY
REERPIRENEET ERMRBEM
FOENBRERS HehEnsE -
BME—TRETEEMEFEBIE -
EBRETH=NRE dekEREM -
NER R EERSELEFHERMANE
B WEG AR EE - ABRI A
BELRE HELEARENER
1 o

FOENERENEHEHANEHM
AR ERRES - ARG EBFIRE
HEMEABRBENAREZHRESR -
BAWETERE BT HEEM
BIETANER - AT ## b F9% FF9
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FELR TR PT B (HOK 24 PI O B SRR B —
B o

EEUMELETUTHRSR

1 ZBYRE HERELRZEZE
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AERERNFNEREATEE
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Annual Report £ 3§ 2023/24 67



International Entertainment Corporation

B REER R A]

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHE

6.

68

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)
6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

2

Stakeholders Participation

We invited our stakeholders to complete an online
survey about the ESG issues identified based on the
importance of the Group’s action in regard to the ESG
issues. The stakeholders were also asked to rate the ESG
performance and provide any comments on the
Group's past ESG reports as well as sustainability actions,
the comments were then reviewed by our management
to understand the areas for improvement.

Prioritisation and Materiality Assessment

Based on the concerns of various stakeholders,
materiality assessments of the ESG issues are conducted
from two dimensions: “importance to the stakeholders”
and “importance to the Group’s operations”. An analysis
is then conducted to derive a materiality matrix and list
of significant issues to identify the important ESG issues
to the Group. The insights from this assessment are then
incorporate into the considerations when we review the
Group's operational policies.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

IMPORTANCE TO THE STAKEHOLDERS

4

HEHENEEY

Review and Confirmation

Based on discussions with key stakeholders and internal
discussions among management, the management
team will ensure that all major and significant

environmental, social, and governance categories that
are important to business development are reported
and comply with relevant environmental laws and

regulations.

b High &

2024 ESG Issues Materiality Matrix

TR NFESCREEEMHEME

Occupational Health and Safety
[ ES g

A

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and
Anti-Discrimination

FEH#E - STANRIR
A

Staff Training and Community Charity and
Career Development Investment

ATEYABERE HERE S
A A

Employee Remuneration
and Benefits
& BHRARF
A

Climate Change Risks
and Opportunities

Prohibit Child Labour and
Forced Labour

R ETMRBSE)
s
n
Anti-money
Resource Use | aundering
HREA R
Environment and Natural ~ Waste
Resources Management
BRRARER BERUER
Emissions

Management

FIRAESHERTEE g0
* *

Low {&

6.

&SR (=
6.1 EEMTM (&)
4 FHERER

REEXZHNDENTWNAR
EEECHEHNAIN W BTIE
BB ERREEBEREEN
METENEEZNRE &
MERBRETRSE  XET

MHEEEIRBIARER -

Reasonable Marketing and Publicity

BETHATE

Supply Chain Management
tERE R

Cyber Security
BrEze

Governance and Risk

Customer Experience

nd Sa
FEFERAZE

Corporate )
Operate in a Credible

Management and Compliant Manner

tcgEsRERER VENaRNEESR

Anti-Competitive
& BHFTR
Compliance
Employment
AR

Intellectual property
rights protection

)
@] n
Customer Information
and Privacy Protection
Product Safety and 2= ERHIALIBER IR
Service Quality Anti-corruption Policy and

=l Whistleblower Procedure
R R e RRRBRER

m Operational &8
Governance &R
4 Social &

+ Environment 3R15

mpzwze M ']

High =

IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP’S OPERATIONS
HEmEENEEL
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6.

70

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued)

Level of
Importance

EERE

High 9

HERER

ESG Issue
Library No*
ZREGHS

HE

ESG Issues
ESGER

Customer Experience and Safety

RPERNZE

Customer Information and Privacy Protection

EFEENNILRBRE

Reasonable Marketing and Publicity
BEHEHNER

Operate in a Credible and Compliant Manner

EMERNEZNA

Corporate Governance and Risk Management

%E/D/\ m@

Anti-corruption Policy and Whistleblower Procedure

RESHERERERF

Product Safety and Service Quality
EmZeRRKEEE

Supply Chain Management
HEEER

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

REMBERE

Cyber Security*
W

Prohibit Child Labour and Forced Labour
BIFETREFSET

RpESHE (#)

6.1

EEMFMEE)

Corresponding Section

HERH

18.2 Customer Satisfaction

XPmEE

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

RPLEMEE

18.3 Advertising and Labelling
BEEREE

All Sections

;\ﬁB::;A—/r

ErPEED

5. Corporate Governance

%E/u

19. Anti-Corruption
k&R
18.1 Service Quality

RBEE

17. Supply Chain Management
e

184 Intellectual Property Rights
MBER

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

RPRALANE

15. Labour Standards
4 TR
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6. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) 6. FHHEZMEE)
6.1 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continued) 6.1 EEMIME)
Level of ESG Issue
Importance Library No* ESG Issues Corresponding Section
EZRE BEERY  ESGEE HEEH
12 Anti-Competitive Behaviour* 19. Anti-Corruption
REHTR* RES
13 Compliance Employment 12. Employment
BHER B
10 Anti-money Laundering 19. Anti-Corruption
Wik RES
14 Occupational Health and Safety 13. Health, Safety and Security
BreEkZ2 B R2MRE
22 Resource Use 9. Use of Resource
BREA BEREA
Medium 24 Waste Management* 8. Waste Management
H BENERER BENER
16 Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination ~ 12. Employment
TEHe  ZTNRER E1E
23 Environment and Natural Resources 10. The Environment and Natural Resources
RERRAER RENARER
18 Employee Remuneration and Benefits* 12. Employment
ETHMERF E1E
20 Climate Change Risks and Opportunities 11. Climate Change
ARSI HERNEE ARRA
15 Staff Training and Career Development 14. Development and Training
ETHINBEER R I
19 Community Charity and Investment 16. Community Investment
HEEEARE HERE
Low
& . -
21 Emissions Management 7. Emission
HHER i7318Y)
* The new ESG issues introduced in FY2023/2024 materiality * R /R CNMBREEEE

assessment.

AR IMAKIFTESGREE ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSION

The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the
Group against the targets:

Key Topics
BEEE

Defined Targets
ERINER

45
HEB
TRIMTAEER T —FFEI LN
B HENERBZEANAEEEER
BT EESHER

Progress in 2024
TRNEEER

Air and Greenhouse Gas
("GHG") Emissions

FE R KO8 = R A HE

Hazardous Waste

Reducing the intensities of GHG emissions by at least
5% by the end of FY2029/2030 compared to
FY2020/2021 baseline (96.06 tCOze per million HKS
revenue)

BT T —BREEHEEMELL - B
ZN/ZTHBFEFEASREREHERGR
EERAED5% (%606 —aLikE 8 BES
TTHA)

Reducing the intensity of hazardous waste produced
by at least 5% by the end of FY2029/2030 compared
to the FY2018/2019 baseline (0.013 tonnes per million

Achieved

In progress. The hazardous waste
intensity of the Group has presented a
downward trend in the past few years

HKS revenue)

Hazardous and
Non-Hazardous Waste

hazardous and non-hazardous waste
BEBREYMESE
REEY) BRERTHERTERBR
During the Reporting Period, the Group has remained in full
compliance with laws and regulations concerning air and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and the generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We adhere to various laws,
including, but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap.311) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.354) of Hong
Kong, the Environmental Law (Law No. 2/91/M) of Macau, Republic
Act No. 4850 of the Philippines, and The Philippine Clean Air Act
(Republic Act No. 8749).

We have implemented an Environmental Protection Policy aimed at
reducing our environmental footprint and ensuring compliance with
all relevant environmental laws and regulations. This policy
emphasises the conservation of natural resources and energy, and
provides guidelines for waste disposal and the reduction of
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.

Annual Report € $ 2023/24

M-FT - - —BHEENEERL
-2 -N/ZTURFEFE BEEEYD
EEERMLED5% (00130, BEBTHA)

Maintain zero non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to the generation and disposal of

and will constantly monitor the
progress.

EHETH KENEZTEEYR
EEBEXRF2ZHTEBE  HM

B EEEER

Achieved

EBTERELERRERERETEENNLE CED

EREHAN EE—EHE2METAHEER
B =R B - A KA 1 A HERRUA K
EEMNEZEEWEERNEZER BN
BIZEEE PEETRREEEZRS
FEGER (BINE) - HEEWREE GG
(%3548) REFIREFEE (B 2/91/M
SE) -~ JERE HFIB A (Republic Act) 8
4850 1 LA R SE R B 22 RUR TR (R MBIEASE
874915) -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
EMISSION (Continued)

In response to the growing concerns about climate change, the
Group has set a target of reducing its total GHG emissions intensity
by at least 5% in FY2029/2030, using approximately 96.06 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e") per million HKS revenue in 2021
as the baseline.

7.1 Air Emissions

The Group’s primary air emissions originate from fuel
consumption by its vehicles and the emergency power
generator at its hotel operations in the Philippines. These
emissions include nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulfur oxides (SO,),
and particulate matter (PM). To mitigate air emissions, the
Group has implemented a series of reduction measures.

We encourage employees to carpool and reduce personal
driving. For hotel guest transport services, drivers are required
to switch off engines to prevent emissions from idling and to
take the shortest, most efficient routes. In our office operations,
we promote the use of video and telephone conferences,
electronic communication, and other means to limit travel.
The increase in the air emission during the Reporting Period is
due to a power interruption event from MERALCO in
November which requires the use of diesel power generator
to maintain the power supply within the operation.

Rk dE2RERES

RIE®)

BERRYD ()

BEERFEROTBEE(EY @S

ETE—v—ﬂ/ ToEHEEELR
EREHMBET LR wmBE U=

T EEHEEBETRAL6ME = A1t

B & ([tcoe)) BEE -

70 BERHER
SENFEERPBRE EBHMR
ﬂfiéﬁ%%ﬂﬁl?figfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁp E’JFE%%?E

c FELPEBERA T (NO)
m%ﬂﬁ% SO,) A EOZ LT (PM) © & )—X
DEFHR  SEEEm— R
HHE ©

BMSEE THEL R EAE -
HNBERANZBRE  HMEX
BT (F BRI S B UAM L2 W B
W WIRERRE e AR E
WAELEP - ROV EFAREN
BEE® BEFRMESIXRBLE
B ° ﬁiﬂWﬁhﬁmim?MEE
ﬁnﬁ%imMmmm%ﬁ$%$#

BB ERRERFEERH
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A.
7.

74

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
EMISSION (Continued)
7.1 Air Emissions (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group's air emissions:

Indicators"2 Eg

NOx emissions (kg) REmEnE ()
SOx emissions (kg) matwEnE (Tr)
PM emissions (kg) FER TN E (TR)
Notes:

1 The air emission calculation is based on the emission factors in “How
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

2 The calculation of air emissions from diesel generators is based on
the emission factors in “AP-42: Compilation of Air Pollutant
Emissions Factors” published by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency

3 Figure is restated for consistent comparison.

7.2 GHG Emissions

The Group’s primary sources of GHG emissions remain
originate from fuel combustion and purchased electricity. This
includes fuel used in the Group's vehicles, emergency power
generator, and restaurants within the Philippines hotel
operation. Electricity consumption for daily operations of
hotels and offices, as well as refrigerant use in walk-in freezers
and air conditioning, also contribute to emissions.
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International Entertainment Corporation BB IREEA R A A

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HEREREKRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIE®)
7. EMISSION (Continued) 7. Hewn &)
7.2 GHG Emissions (Continued) 72 RERBHKRE)
During the reporting period, the Group’s total GHG emissions ERESHAN SEMNAEEREBIEEN
was approximately 7,764.57 tCO2e (2023: 6,924.29 tCO,e). ENAE7ASTB_AltmEE (=T
Conversely, the total GHG emissions intensity was ZoF 692420 RILIREE) ©
approximately 42.93 tCO.e per million HK$ revenue (2023: B BERBEINARAEARER
3342 tCO,e per million HKS revenue), having a year-on-year F%/%TE%U\AQ BWE—F(HEE (=
increase of approximately 28% while marking a 30% decrease —=F - HEEATWABLEE
comparing with 2022. The increase in the Group’s total GHG %ﬂﬁ xE =) - FILLIEAN4)28% + (B8
emission is due to the increased demand in Transfer Services ZEZFREFA30% - RERE
which require the Group to increase our vehicles inventory REREMENIEMEHREEXRE
and the use of the vehicles, meanwhile the power interruption FSRIg N - 2 Sk & B4 N = E AT AN
event from MERALCO in November also requires the use of BEEA - B A AR MERALCO
diesel power generator to maintain the power supply within BNHFEEHtFEEAE TR
the operation which contributes to the fuel usage during the R LERHENHE  EEHW
Reporting Period. HEHRREHEREE 0 -
9,000 70
8,000 61_{9 7,764.57 "
AN 6,924.29 7,137.82
7,000 627
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
0
2022 2023 2024
= 5 “TC=FE —TCMFE
B Direct GHG emissions (tCO.e) I Energy indirect GHG emissions (tCOe)
EEREREIN (MoaHES) BEREEAEREHN (E_E(tikE=
Total GHG emissions (tCO e) - - Total GHG emissions intensity
BEREHREE (_StikE=s (tCO,e/million HKS revenue)

/Jm:n:ﬁ Ekﬁkluim
(Mg e B8EETHhA)
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International Entertainment Corporation

B REER R A]

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
7. EMISSION (Continued)

A. RIE®)

7. HEmh @)

7.2 GHG Emissions (Continued) 72 RERKBHR(E
The following table sets out the Group’s GHG emissions: NTERBIETAEERAERE
BB
2024 2023 2022
Indicators’ BE SECNEE _—To=FF —T-_FE
Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions? B (BE-) RERBHIC
(tCOLe) (M-SR EE) 626.74 297.11 210.17
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG fEREE(BEZ) AERE
emissions’ (tCO,e) P (M2 (LiREE) 7,137.82 6,627.18 507421
Total GHG emissions (tCO.e) BRERBHNES
(=g thEs) 7,764.57 6,924.29 5,284.38
Total GHG emissions intensity* BERBENRAERE"
(tCO,e/million HKS revenue) (M-—EtREE
BEBTKA) 42.93 3342 61.79

Notes: Btat -

1 GHG emission data are presented in terms of tCO2€ and are based 1 BERBHERBBEA—S/LLREES
on, including but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A ] WERBIEESRENERE R
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the RARERAFERRINESEH
World Resources Institute and the World Business Council for HHEERBEEATE — XS
Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report — R EZTE] B AFT M A [ 21
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by EERE  HSREARE — W=
the Stock Exchange, “Guidelines to Account for and Report on IRIREAREBUEIRERES] - BIEBER
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings EERRETEERMN[EBEED
(Commercial, Residential or Industrial Purposes) in Hong Kong” (WE FEXRAEABR)NAERE
issued by the Environmental Protection Department and the PR BRI E MR EIES|] - JEE
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, “2015-2017 ERMERERBEHEN T —RFE
National Grid Emission Factor” from the Department of Energy of ZE—tF2EEEFERERE 015-
the Republic of the Philippines and the “Global Warming Potential 2017 National Grid Emission Factor) » PA J2
Values” from the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change Fifth BRERIESE(CEMIZESER KT
Assessment Report (AR5) (2014). RS ARS) (ZT—NF) B [ 2Bk

fb&geE] -

2 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions include emissions from fuel 2 B (BE1) BEREBHERBEED
combustion at mobile and stationary sources, as well as refrigerant B8 FE R R RA R R 5 R B2 BIFE R -
consumption.

3 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions include emissions resulted 3 RERME (BE2) AEZRBHERERE
from the Group's purchased electricity. REBEEEZENEEMBER -

4 During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total revenue was 4 EHREHRN EENRKALNAE

approximately HK$229,786,000 (2023: HK$207,219,000; 2022:
HK$85,525,000). The revenue generated from our gaming operation
after we officially took over the entire casino operation (the Casino
Operation) in May 2024 is not considered in the calculation of
environmental performance and relevant intensity data. This
exclusion is due to the fact that the environmental data consumed
and generated (such as electricity, water, waste, etc.) only accounts
for less than 2 months of the overall environmental performance of
the Group. Therefore, the revenue used for intensity calculation

was HK$180,822,000.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
WASTE MANAGEMENT

The Group's hotel operation and office activities are the major

sources of our waste, we are committed to reducing waste in these

areas. We have set a target to reduce its total hazardous waste

intensity by at least 5% by 2030, using a baseline of approximately

0.013 tonnes per million HKS revenue in 2021. To achieve this target,

the Group has implemented various waste reduction measures and
actively encourages employees to optimise the use of equipment
and materials.

8.1

Hazardous Waste Management

As part of its hotel operations, the Group generates various
types of hazardous waste through activities such as operating
restaurants and maintaining hotel rooms. Key types of
hazardous waste include engineering waste like fluorescent
light bulbs, chemical containers, grease waste, industrial oil
and sludge, lead compounds, and waste electrical and
electronic equipment (WEEE). Additionally, kitchen activities
produce waste such as vegetable oil and sludge.

To mitigate these impacts, the Group emphasizes the
selection of high-quality electronic products, which can
reduce the frequency of replacements per item. This is
particularly important for bulbs, which are used in large
quantities. By choosing durable and efficient products, we aim
to minimize waste generation and enhance overall
sustainability.

The Group adheres strictly to its Policy on Handling Hazardous
Materials and Chemicals, ensuring compliance with all
statutory requirements for the storage, collection, treatment,
and disposal of hazardous waste. To prevent leakage,
hazardous waste is stored in designated, properly labelled
locations until it is managed by accredited third-party
hazardous waste handlers.

R - ERELGHRSE

RiE &)

EEEYEE
EEMASLSENROTHERABEY
MEBIR - RAOBARF L B LA
BEY - BMASC TN -_S-—SEEEE
EFEENREZT IR ONHBIE  U_T
T FEEEBTRAL00IIHE SRR
AEHE—BE £ECEMSENES
HE - WIS EE B TELRERM R

8.1 BEEEEYER
EABIEEBHN—y  SEBBLK
CEBNGERBEEHNEEHELS
BEANEBEEEY FENEEZE
EVELNGREIREREEY  NEXE
Mo bERAEE RIEEEY T#
FHASR S A AR EEE 2
T F R (WEEE) » 90 R EEI
SEENEMBIGREREEY -

REBELETE SERRAEESH
EMETEM SRS EBEDSR
R ERIAR - EHRNRKEE A ER
LREZ - EBEEMANMSRNE
o BMEERAKRERDERY
MELWRSERAFENL -

SEERETHE(ERERY MM
BmRE) BREENAAEER
W WK BB REE MR
FER- BHILRE  BEEERENT
REEER  ERELHVE B3
HRANE=T SRR RITEE
TER-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEREREKRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT Continued) 8.

8.1

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total hazardous
waste generated was 4.82 tonnes (2023: 11.12 tonnes) while
the total hazardous waste intensity was approximately 0.027
tonnes per million HKS revenue (2023: 0.054 tonnes per
million HKS revenue), representing a year-on year decrease by
approximately 57% and 50% respectively.

Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

A. RIE®)
EBEME

Wg)

H#)

8.1 FERRWEE (&)

EREHAN EEREENEEEED
BERBIME(ZE =9 :11.12

MEEBEEVERENSER

EEBETWA0QIME (ZE - =% :
BHEBTWA00540E) » HRIEILL T
F& 49 57% F150% °

12 0.06
10 0.05
8 0.04
6 0.03
4 0.02
2 0.01
0 0
2022 2023 2024
—E-CFE I —E_MEE

I Total hazardous waste (tonnes)

BEBERDEE (W)

The following table sets out the Group’s hazardous waste

generation:

Indicators

Total hazardous waste (tonnes)
Total hazardous waste intensity’
(tonnes/million HKS revenue)

Notes:

-# - Total hazardous waste intensity
(tonnes/million HKS revenue)

EEEEVRETE
(Mg, " BEBTWA)
UWTREHE T AEBAELANEE
BEZYIE N
2024 2023 2022
BE —E_NMEE —T-o=FF T FF
BEEEEYEE (W) 4,82 11.12 333
EEEEYHEBRE
(W, BEBITHRA) 0.027 0.054 0039
et -

1 For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction 1
target, the total hazardous waste intensities were rounded to 3

decimal places.

2 The waste cooking oil is reclassified to hazardous wastes in 2
FY2022/23, which was reported as non-hazardous wastes in the

FY2021/2022.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERERS

A. RIE@®)
BEEMERE (&)
82 EEEZEYERE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
8. WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8.

8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste in the Group’s operations is primarily
generated from the daily activities of hotel kitchen operations
and administrative tasks. Key types of non-hazardous waste
include office waste such as paper and wastewater from the
hotel's wastewater treatment plant.

During the reporting year, our hotel operation in the
Philippines has expanded its waste management practices.
We have continued and improved the collection of packaging
waste accompanying purchased products like palm oil cans,
jasmine rice sacks, and soy sauce bottles. These packaging
materials are now diligently segregated and collected by
accredited waste recyclers, emphasising our commitment to
responsible waste management and recycling initiatives.

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
approximately 7.24 tonnes of non-hazardous waste (2023:4.91
tonnes), and the Group’s non-hazardous waste intensity was
around 0.04 tonnes per million HKS revenue (2023: 0.024
tonnes per million HKS revenue), reflecting a year-on-year
increase of approximately 48% and 67% respectively.

The total recorded wastewater discharge was approximately
95,473 m?® (2023: 115,862m°), representing a year-on-year
decrease of roughly 18%, and the Group's non-hazardous
wastewater intensity for the Reporting Period was
approximately 527.99 m* per million HK$ revenue (2023:
559.13 m® per million HKS revenue), showing a year-on-year
decrease 6%.

SEEETNEZTERVIZRAE
EREEERTHRIF - T2HNESE
BEEWMEINBERATEREY R
SR PARE 5 R /K B 3R R BE K

EHRERR  RAEFRENEE S
BEATEEMERENEE - BZMEF
BREMBENERBRERMNRSE
THE - IERAEH B - KRB R RAE
e BEBEMMBERTADE
WHRAWERYEEEESE 2
THMABBEENEZRYEEME K
[BREHOHEGE ©

RSN SEELENEEEZEY
A E724ME (Z B =4 : 4910F) -
SENEBEERZEYRENATEES
THRACHUME(ZE-_=F: GAEE
TCH A 0.024 1) - 5 Bl [& EE 3G A0 49
48% F67% °

FTeC 8 M B BE K BE IR E 49 B 95473 3L
FR(ZEZ=F : 1158623 F K) »
B ELR D 4)18% - MEBAERE R
MEZEREKBENBEEEBTTHRA
5279MAKR(ZEZ=F:-BEEHB
JTCH A 559.13 32 77 K ) R B8 > 6% °
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A RE#E

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8. EBEWMEE W)
8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) BEBRZYERE(E)
Aiming to further reduce our waste produced by our business RE—TRIBRMEBELEENRE
operations, the Group has implemented several ZY > SEERTHABRREE B
environmentally friendly initiatives. These initiatives include, REBFEENRR
but are not limited to:
Encouraging duplex printing to reduce paper usage. SEVEEITENLUR MR EA -
Separating metal, paper, and plastic from other waste 15 & B - 4K ok 128 K} B2 H fib BF
for recycling. EZYHFAEITEIIR -
Promoting recycling efforts among hotel guests and BT {H)E B A E R &9 =1 ok -
staff through awareness campaigns and convenient TR E & AT B T #EE WK
recycling stations. TiE-
These measures have yielded significant benefits, including BELEEBEELERENE  BRERD
reduced waste sent to landfills, lower operational costs, and a RTHERNEEY  BEEZKA
smaller carbon footprint. The recyclable waste collected by FRE B 2 B o £R [ W 2 /Y AT B Uk e
the Group is sent to certified recyclers for proper treatment, EYWATRBNELREETEEE
contributing to a circular economy. Through these initiatives, B ARERLEMEER - @iBRE L
we have not only achieved positive environmental outcomes B BMATEERTHEERNRITK
but also engaged our employees and guests in our R OEBEBREMHEINZASHEIRK
sustainability journey, fostering a culture of environmental MR FEERIRES  ESXBE A
responsibility within the Group. BERBEEUE -
8 — 005 140000 1,200
7 ooy 12000 . 115262 1,000
6 100,000 400
s 003 80,000
4 000 - 60,000 600
s n- 002 o
5 1.71 40,000
] :- 90T 56000 200
0 0 0 0
2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024
" TEC=HE ZERoNEE R FE o =HE TR NEE

Bl Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)

EEERMEE (W)

80

-=- Total non-hazardous waste intensity
(tonnes/million HKS revenue)
BEREVRBEE

(W, G EBEATHEA)
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(m*/million HKS revenue)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERERS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIE®)
8. WASTE MANAGEMENT (Continued) 8. EBEWMEEW)
8.2 Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) 82 EERBEYERHE)

The following table sets out the Group’s non-hazardous waste NTREIE T AEBEEANNES

generation: FEEMIER

2024 2023 20223

Indicators BE “ENFEE —T=FFE T CFE

Total non-hazardous waste' (tonnes) EEEEY A E " () 7.24 491 1.71

Total non-hazardous waste intensity EEEZYHRERE

(tonnes/million HK$ revenue) (W, SEEBTRA) 0.04 0024 002
Total non-hazardous wastewater (m?) E E B K8 & (L 77 K) 95,473 115,862 84,240
Total non-hazardous wastewater ~ EEBEKABRE

intensity" 2 (m*/million HK$ (IAK/BEHBET

revenue) BA) 527.99 559.13 984.98

Notes: Het -

1 Total non-hazardous waste intensity includes only the amount of 1 EEFVLREELREEANEMAE
wastepaper and other daily office operation waste generated MAEBLEEEVEERETERR
divided by the Group's total revenue in 2024 NZE_MFREREBBUYA -

2 For easier comparison with the baseline of the waste reduction 2 AEREFBEBSNEGETE
target, the total non-hazardous waste intensities were rounded to EEBRBEYRSTENEAAZNH
3 decimal places. Zhig 3L -

3 The waste cooking oil is reclassified to hazardous wastes in 2022/23, 3 BRAME_ZS_=ZFEREFTHIHA
which was reported as non-hazardous wastes in the 2021/2022. ABEEEEY ME_T-__FER

ERHCRBEREZEREY -
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RIE - HERERHE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIFE#)

9. USE OF RESOURCE 9. HRERA
The following table sets out the targets set by the Group in 2021, the TRIETAEER T —F5TUME
key topics relating to the targets and the progress made by the = EENEREEANANEEBEEIR B

Group against the targets: BAERENER

Key Topics Defined Targets Progress in 2024
EREE ERIHNERE “ECNFEER
Energy Consumption Reducing the intensities of total energy Achieved
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the end
of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline (166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue)
BEIRIERE NWZZZT/——HHRFEEREFEEEE BEI

Water Consumption

RER (BABBTWA 16686 KFLEF) - #
REREREEEZLR I B ZF
“NEZZEHBEFELE

Reducing the intensities of total water
consumption intensity by at least 5% by the end
of FY2029/2030 compared to FY2020/2021
baseline( 184.19 m? per million HKS revenue)

In progress. The Group has
implemented a series of policies
and initiatives to encourage the
reduction of water usage.

oK T HRFEERKETREAR FTHRETP -EECEM— &
%a?(tﬁé'%ﬂ%muﬁzm,mzt.wjﬁ%) 1SR FIBURTERE - SER AKX -
KEZEZERDFH L% B T -h/=
THRFELER -

SEE2HEAERABEAR  2HREE
5FD7}<§/J?\ It - SEGIE T RFRE
BRKRBERNER - ZBEREEER

FRMEERAEL MO T ENEREM -

When the Group operates its hotel complex, electricity and water are
consumed. As a result, the Group has established the Environmental
Protection Policy to regulate the use of resources. The policy aims to
achieve higher energy efficiency and reduce the unnecessary use of

resources.
9.1 Energy Consumption 9.1 BERHFE
The hotel and gaming operations in the Philippines are the SEEFREMNBENEREERSE

EELBRSREREN o AR ER
TEREHEBELEEEBENS

main energy-consuming units of the Group. The types of
energy used mainly include purchased electricity for daily

hotel operation, liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) used in the BEEARNREABRLG - BHIE R
kitchen, diesel used for backup power generators during BREANEREEHOEE - UK
power outages at the hotel, as well as diesel and gasoline used AEIEREANEBNTEE

for company vehicles, etc.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
9. USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.1

Energy Consumption (Continued)

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to efficient energy use,
the Group has set a target of reducing its total energy
consumption intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using
approximately 166.86 MWh per million HKS revenue in 2021
as the baseline. The Group has adopted various energy-saving
measures in order to pursue its energy use efficiency target,
new initiatives are planned to further reduce our energy
consumption in our operations.

In 2025, we planned to upgrade major equipment like air
conditioning chillers to more advance models for better
energy efficiency. We expect this upgrade can help the Group
to reduce energy consumption and to reach our targets in
2030.

We are also continuously implementing energy-saving
measures include:

use LED lights in the hotel rooms, hallways and
restaurants to reduce the number of fluorescent light
bulbs;

install variable-frequency drive to regulate the power
output of motors;

conduct regular inspections to monitor any unusual
energy usage, such as maintain monthly electricity
meter records in order to spot any unusual use or loss of
electricity;

preset the hotel room temperature at 23°C while the
guest keycard is inserted into the card slot, and maintain
27°Cif keycard is removed;

regular maintenance of kitchen burners to increase the
LPG efficiency and LPG pipe to prevent leakage;

12 45

HERERRE

A. RIEE#E)
9. HIRER®)

9.1

BEREFE ()
%ﬂuf;ﬁ%l%ﬁ%{%fﬂ%ﬁﬁaﬁw

SERTETI = =2F 8B RHE
FEREZLH AL 5% EFB e
:—iﬁ%famu&)\%@méswhﬁ
FrAEE - BERERERNEEZ -
EERR T SEEEEEN - WETEH
WEBAE—TROBEMEEFR B
TROBFE ©

E_Z_AF BMFESKEERE
WAZE R KHAR T AR R B SE R BY SR
AR = g R AR - RMITE B E A F 4%
ALENEER DR ERELER —
ZE=TFMAZ -

B JE B - E B BE

LED & AR D 5 S B B =

REF AT R IAFE
W%%ﬁv

Bk

AT A AR
MERER  MIRH G ABR
REUABREARE E AL
KBS |

EEAEFRBAFERBBESE
EREBEEERA23C EEFR
BE(RF27°C

*Hﬂfﬁ LR IE B NI S PG
WA LPG B BUAR LR
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B AHBRER

HE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.

84

9.1

Energy Consumption (Continued)

“Notice to Explain” will be issued to employees who are
not using energy according to the company guideline.
They will be requested to provide reasons for their
actions, and potential penalties may apply; and

encourage staff to drive less and carpool.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total energy
consumption amounted to approximately 13,791.61 MWh
(2023: 12,078.35 MWh), which is mainly came from the
electricity consumption. The total energy consumption
intensity was approximately 76.27 MWh per million HKS
revenue in the Reporting Period (2023: 58.29 MWh per million
HKS revenue), representing a year-on-year increase by
approximately 14% and 31% respectively.

The increase in the energy consumption during the Reporting
Period is due to a power interruption event from MERALCO in
November which requires the use of diesel power generator
to maintain the power supply within the operation, this
contributed to the significant increase in the direct energy
consumption this year. The significant increased demand in
Transfer Services during the Reporting Period that requires the
Group to increase our vehicles inventory and the use of the
vehicles also created a higher energy consumption in 2024.

A. RIE®)
HIREER ®)

9.

9.1

BERHFE (8)
BT IEARIESIFERERNE
TEE@EEAEMN] - BRMM
RETAESR TSR
S AR

BB TR MBS e

EREHE SENBRERERENR
13,791 61k LB (=& = = F -
1207835 K ELEF) - T B R B E NHE
o REHRNBAEREERENS
FEEBETWATC2/IKERE (ZF
—ZF FEEBETWAS29KE
BF) D RIEEE IS AN 4T 149% F131% ©

SR HAR AR E A MmN B3
EEI’JMERALCO N =S *Eﬁ

HBEERRAEFEETNE jJT
F’EE EERSFEEERERRE
hne iﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁm?ﬁiﬁ&ﬂ‘k%ﬁ%ﬁ?%%i
me- SEFTIEMEGWEFMER - IF
iﬁﬁ_g_@ﬂzﬁﬁﬁgﬁwﬁﬁ%%"

11,937.18

12000 11,082.85 120
10,000 B 100
8,000 80
6,000 60
4,000 40

1,854.43
2,000 20
0 0
2022 2023 2024
—ECFE TEC=FFE —ECNFE

Il Direct energy consumption (MWh)
HERRERE OKRE)

I Indirect energy consumption (MWh)
MR E JKRA)

-=- Total energy consumption intensity (MWh/million HKS revenue)

BERHRERE
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RIE -HERERERS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
9. USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.1

Energy Consumption (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group's energy consumption:

Indicators BE
ERERERE 2OLRK)
YomERE OLRLE)

— RAIBH (KRR

— EEEEHOCRE)
FOHEREE CKEE)
BB BRRERE OLRE)
Indirect energy consumption® (MWh) R B8 REFEE  ORRLES)
Total energy consumption (MWh)  FEFSHIEAE CkRE)
Total energy consumption intensity AR E EABRE

(MWh/million HK$ revenue) (KEE BBETHRA)

Direct energy consumption™? (MWh)
Diesel consumption (MWh)

— Company vehicle (MWh)

— Emergency generator (MWh)
Gasoline consumption (MWh)
LPG consumption (MWh)

Notes:

1 The unit conversion calculation is based on the conversion factors
in "How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock Exchange
and the "Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International
Energy Agency.

2 The direct energy consumption includes diesel, liquefied petroleum
gas and diesel consumption of our Philippines operation.

3 The indirect energy consumption includes electricity consumption
of our Philippines operation and Hong Kong Headquarters.

RiE &)

HIEER®)
9.1 REFUMRE(#)
AEBEELRS I T RFUR

2024
—ERoNEE

1,854.43
630.99
462.89
168.10
138.09

1,085.35

11,937.18
13,791.61

76.27

Biat -

2023 2022
ZE=FE CZTZFFE
995.50 288,65

11947 226.25

68.93 59.21

50.54 167.04

40,05 624

835.98 -
11,082.85 8,486.73
12,07835 877538
58.29 10261

B (IR E AT B OB S A B ) [ 2R 4]
BBRE MG RERWME — Mgk
REBRABUEIRERE S HrEin
A F AR B s IR T S AR [BE IR
F -

BRI EAREERELE
BB TR AT RIS R -
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USE OF RESOURCE (Continued)

9.2 Water Consumption

The Group primarily relies on water supplied by local
governments at various operating locations, mainly for hotel
operations and employees’ daily needs. While we have not
faced any issues accessing reliable water sources, we
recognise that water is a precious, shared, and finite resource.
Our proactive measures in water management not only
contribute to the preservation of this vital resource but also
yield significant operational benefits, including cost savings
and enhanced sustainability performance.

To reinforce the Group’s commitment to water conservation,
the Group has set a target of reducing its total water
consumption intensity by at least 5% in 2030, using
approximately 1,184.19 m? per million HKS revenue in 2021 as
the baseline. The Group has adopted various water-saving
measures in order to pursue its water efficiency target.

Starting from 2021, we have been reducing water pressure
from 60 psi to 50 psi in our business operation sites, this can
significantly decrease water discharge at all outlets and
resulting in more efficient water usage. We aim to reduce the
use of water in all of our operation sites and reaching our
targets in 2030, therefore we are also implementing water-
saving measures such as:

encourage all employees and guests to develop the
habit of conserving water consciously;

strengthen the Group's water-saving promotion;
conduct regular inspections on water pipes and cooling
tower on water pipes and cooling tower to promptly
identify and rectify any water leakage;

posting water-saving slogans; and

guide employees to use water reasonably.

Annual Report € $ 2023/24

R (&)
HIREER ®)

9.2

AKE
SETFZRBEELEDLINE BT
MK TZANBEELEEMETARE
TR BARMEERA EAESE
REBETMEE  BERMAED K
2EE HZEERMNER - BRME
KEREEHAENEREENEGY
NREE—EBER EFRTHEE
H2ERE  BERASOFIES
BHEMRR -

AN S BE KRR SEERTE
TH-ZE=ZFRBBEAKEREED
BN EE  MZT-_—FEE8
BITTUAL,18419 L K BEYE &
BRI EREEZ SEKR T SEH
IKFEHE °

T —FRB BMEEHE
35 P B9 2K BR 12 60 psi B& 1K B 50 psi - &
ALBEERIIELKORKE -
i E A b FE BKER - I8 EZ
ERIVEEESHMNAKE W
ZE=TFEINRMOEET Btk
FIEEE A T EIKIE N -

?if“ua

HEFEEINEABKER
Bi7KE BB

MR R B EKEE

EHREKE ML AE AR

iR 35 IR M A IE AR /KIB R

REAEI KRR - AKX

REEBTAEAK:



B SEAR AR

International Entertainment Corporation

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
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9.2 Water Consumption (Continued) 9.2 AKE(#E)
During the Reporting Period, the Group's total water EmENE SENRAKER
consumption was 152,606.00 m? (2023: 160,125.00 m?). The 152,606,008 F K (Z T = = F :
Group's total water consumption intensity was approximately 160,125003 2 5 K) - BB HKE
843.95 m? per million HKS revenue (2023: 772.73 m? per BENATBEBB LKA
million HKS revenue), representing a year-on-year increase by K(ZEBEZ=ZF:888BTKRA
approximately 9%. 772733 75 K) + [BILEIEANEY 9% o
180,000.00 860
848.24 160,125.00 843.95
160,000.00 < 2 840
140,000.00
820
120,000.00
100,000.00 800
80,000.00 1234340 290
60,000.00
760
40,000.00
20,000.00 740
0 720
2022 2023 2024
TR FE TR =FE TR OEE

Il Total water-consumption (m?)

Fok#eE (3277K)

The following table sets out the Group’s water consumption:

Indicators EE

Total water consumption (m?) FKBE (LFHK)

Total water consumption intensity KA ERE
(m3/million HKS revenue)

(XLFR/ BEETHN)

-# - Total water-consumption intensity
(m*/million HKS revenue)

FKBERE LK/ agBrlA)
REENFEKEMTRK
2024 2023 2022
—E-MEE —T-=FE —ZT__FE
152,606.00 160,125.00 72,545.40
843.95 772.73 84824
9.3 BHEMH

9.3 Packaging Materials

Since the Group's operations did not involve any industrial
productions, the Group did not consume a significant amount
of packaging materials during the Reporting Period. The
disclosure on the total packaging material used for finished
products does not apply to the Group'’s operations.

R ANEBEBIL T RAEMTEE
E - BAKER®RE AL EEREX
ERRMH - BEAEKMAANEX
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to mitigating the environmental impacts of
its activities by adopting industry best practices, aiming to reduce
the consumption of natural resources and emissions. Our
Environmental Protection Policy ensures that our environmental
footprint is regularly monitored and managed effectively.

To promote sustainability, the Group has established guidelines that
encourage employees to minimise water and paper usage, prioritise
electronic documentation, and collect recyclable materials.
Additionally, we operate a wastewater treatment plant that removes
contaminants from sewage, ensuring that the discharged water
meets the standards set by the Philippines’ Laguna Lake
Development Authority (‘LLDA"). Compliance with Republic Act
4850 is maintained through the timely submission of Quarterly Self-
Monitoring Reports to the LLDA.

The Group complies with all relevant environmental protection laws
and regulations, ensuring our activities do not have a significant
adverse impact on the environment and natural resources. Our
ongoing commitment to these initiatives not only aids in
environmental preservation but also brings operational benefits
such as cost savings, improved resource efficiency, and heightened
corporate responsibility.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES (Continued)

Our hotel operation is committed to implementing several
sustainability measures to enhance our environmental protection
efforts. These measures include:

RIRHWTE -

10.

RiE &)
RIBMXAER#)

HPMWBEELER NN ERSEA FHER
R AR EMNRRRES S - &
LR

Foamless shampoo: We will adopt foamless shampoo to minimize chemical discharge and reduce the
environmental impact associated with traditional shampoo usage.

FRKRER  RMABRBELRREN  WRAMEEMERN - WD EFRAERBERE

Sustainable packaging: \We will replace individual plastic bottles of shampoo, conditioner, body wash,
and water with shower supplies dispensers and water glass bottles in all guest rooms. This initiative aims to
reduce plastic waste and promote a circular economy.

ARFFEER BMEMEERERNNEEN #EEX KABRTKNEBLERNE R AR AM
MBI - E1EFE TR D ZRBEDI (RERRKLE -

Water-efficient toilets: As part of our commitment to water conservation, we will replace existing toilets
with models that consume less water. This step will contribute to a more sustainable water management

system within our hotel.

By implementing these sustainability measures, we aim to mitigate
our hotel's adverse impacts on the environment and natural
resources. We recognise the importance of responsible
environmental management and are dedicated to continuously
improving our sustainability practices.

BRKRIAT - (ERRFIEAGEE A RKN —& D RIAGAFKE DB SR B RB BRI - &
FHEBE R RAEEENELE A FENKEIEREL

ERERELARFEERER RMASE
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Annual Report 7 2023/24 89



International Entertainment Corporation

B IREER RN A]

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

5= 4

HERER

HE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A.

11. CLIMATE CHANGE

11.

Climate change is an urgent global issue that significantly affects
ecosystems, economies, and communities, and it directly impacts
the Group's operations. Particularly in regions like the Philippines,

where extreme weather events such as super typhoons and flooding
are becoming more frequent and severe, the Group faces substantial
risks. Acknowledging this, we have made climate action a strategic
priority. Our Climate Change Policy outlines our commitment to
mitigating climate-related risks and enhancing our resilience.
Through targeted strategies and proactive measures, we aim to

minimise the environmental impact of our operations and adapt to
the evolving challenges of climate change, thereby ensuring the
sustainability and continuity of our business while contributing to

global climate initiatives.

11.1 Physical Risks

Physical climate risks present significant challenges to the

Group’s operations, especially in regions prone to extreme
weather events. Recognising these threats, the Group has
identified some of the specific physical risks that could impact
our business, the most significant risks are flooding and
typhoon. In response, we have developed comprehensive
policies and procedures to guide our staff in effectively

managing and mitigating these risks. These policies include
detailed response protocols for flooding and typhoons,
ensuring that our employees are well-prepared to safeguard
themselves, our assets, and ongoing operations during such
events. By proactively addressing physical climate risks, the
Group is committed to maintaining business continuity and

protecting the well-being of our staff and stakeholders.
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Flooding and typhoon physical risks

The Group's hotel operations in the Philippines are
particularly exposed to physical risks such as
flooding and typhoons due to the region'’s tropical
climate and geographical location.
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Impacts on the Group

Frequent and intense weather events, including
heavy rainfall and strong winds, pose significant
threats to infrastructure, disrupt our hotel services,
and increase the potential for property damage
and operational downtime.
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Our response

The Group developed a set of arrangements for
extreme weather so that loss can be reduced or
avoided when extreme weather affects the Group's
operating sites. In addition, the Group has purchased
insurance against risks of property loss. It is beieved that
the potential financial impacts can be mininised with
adequate preparations for extreme weather events.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
11. CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued)
11.2 Transition Risks

Beyond the immediate climate-related issues impacting the
Group, we acknowledge that transition risks associated with
climate change could significantly affect our operations. As
countries strive to meet the goals set by the Paris Agreement,
we anticipate stricter climate-related laws and regulations.
Consequently, the Group may face legal risks and higher
operating costs to comply with these regulatory changes.

Committed to minimising climate-related risks, the Group has
proactively communicated its mitigation and adaptation
efforts to the public, particularly through our ESG Report. As
public awareness of environmental protection rises, there is a
growing preference for eco-friendly products and services. To
address this market shift, the Group has implemented several
environmental initiatives. These include reducing the use of
single-use items like plastic tableware, offering minimally
packaged toiletries to hotel guests, and encouraging recycling
among guests and staff.

Moreover, the Group has integrated climate risks into its
internal control processes, enabling a comprehensive
approach to managing the transition to a low-carbon
economy. Through this process, we identify both risks and
opportunities that arise. We remain dedicated to continually
assessing the effectiveness of our climate actions and
enhancing our resilience against climate-related challenges.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
11. CLIMATE CHANGE (Continued)
11.3 Emergency Response and Employee Support

The Group has established a dedicated Crisis Management
Team (CMT) and Emergency Response Team (ERT) to
effectively respond to emergencies such as earthquakes,
flooding, fires, and other unforeseen events. These teams,
comprised of trained personnel from various departments
including Safety & Security, Engineering, Human Resources,
and Front Office, operate under the leadership of the hotel’s
General Manager. The primary responsibility of these teams is
to ensure a comprehensive and coordinated approach to
emergency response, aimed at protecting both the hotel and
its guests as well as supporting the wellbeing of internal staff.
By leveraging expertise from different areas of hotel
operations, the Group is committed to mitigating the adverse
effects of crises and minimising any negative impacts that may
arise.

As for the operations of Hong Kong Headquarters, we have
established a set of policy which clearly setting out the work
arrangements in times of extreme weather events, such as
rainstorms and typhoons.
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11.3 Emergency Response and Employee Support N3IESERNETIXZEE)
(Continued)

For Public &2 R M &

Informative Flyers \

The hotel recognises the crucial importance of educating guests on appropriate actions during
emergencies. To this end, we have developed and distributed two informational flyers titled “Do’s and
Don'ts". These flyers provide clear and essential guidance on what actions guests should take in the event
of earthquakes and fires, ensuring they are well-informed and prepared to respond effectively during such
emergencies.

BEEFIEEZSXERTREEEFMELETHNER - Bt RAERUELHE T MKERS
[EMEEM] WAMBE - ZEEERME TIEM BUEES| - SHEREEMALEE
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For Employees A& &M% \

Support during Flooding or Typhoon Events

Acknowledging the potential challenges employees may face during flooding or typhoon events, the hotel
has instituted support measures to ensure their safety and comfort. In situations where employees cannot
return home, the hotel offers 20 beds for each gender group, providing a safe and comfortable resting area.
Should the number of affected employees exceed the available beds, designated function rooms are
converted into additional sleeping areas, equipped with beds. Additionally, complimentary meals are
provided to all staff members through out their stay.

Post-Events Transportation Assistance

Once the typhoon or flooding event subsides, the hotel actively assists employees with transportation to
facilitate their safe return home. This support reflects the hotel's commitment to the well-being of its staff
members, ensuring they can reunite with their families in a timely and secure manner.
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Hotel Infrastructure ;B JE E 5 E \

Earthquake Sensors

To enhance the hotel’s ability to monitor seismic activity, earthquake sensors have been installed on each
floor of the building. These sensors continuously collect data, which is shared with the relevant government
authorities for reference and analysis.

Post-Earthquake Building Inspection

Following an earthquake, the hotel's skilled engineers conduct thorough inspections of the entire building
to identify any damage. Minor issues are promptly addressed internally, while adherence to local laws and
regulations prompts the hotel to involve government civil engineers for necessary assistance, ensuring the
safety and structural integrity of the premises.
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SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

The Group strictly follows the labour standards pursuant to
provisions of the Labour Code of the Philippines and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare. The relevant laws and regulations include, but not limited
to, Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong, Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of Hong Kong, the Labour Relations Law (Law
No. 7/2008) of Macau and the Labour Code of the Philippines.

The Group is committed to continuous efforts in pursuing equal
opportunities, diversity, and anti-discrimination, aiming to foster a
fair, respectful, and inclusive work environment. The Group has
established its employment policies to fulfil its vision on people-
oriented management. Terms regarding recruitment, compensation,
promotion, working hours and rest periods, diversity, equal
opportunity and dismissal are stated on the Employee Handbook,
which was distributed to every employee. In making decisions
regarding employment, training, promotion opportunities,
termination, and retirement policies, we are not influenced by
employees’ age, gender, marital status, pregnancy, family status,
disability, race, color, ancestry, ethnicity, nationality, religion, or any
other factors unrelated to their job. The Group’s policies are in place
to ensure that reported incidents of discrimination are handled fairly
and appropriately.

The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards any form of
discrimination, harassment, bullying, or verbal abuse. The Group
encourages employees to report any instances of discrimination or
harassment they experience in the workplace. Any actions that
violate our policies will be subject to disciplinary action. The Group
takes all complaints related to criminal offenses seriously and will
handle them diligently.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

EMPLOYMENT (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, there were no incidents of

discrimination being reported. The Group will continue to increase

employees’ awareness of equal opportunity in the workplace.

12.1 The Group’s Workforce

As at 30 June 2024, the total number of employees of the
Group was 1,001 (as at 30 June 2023: 240), all of whom were

full-time employees.

The following table sets out the Group's number of employees
by gender, age group and geographical region:

Indicators

Number of employees
By gender
Female
Male
By age group
18-30 years old
31-49 years old
50 years old or above
By geographical region
Hong Kong and Macau
The Philippines

Note:

8

BTIAH
b |
I
B
RERAR
18530 5%
31 549 5%
50pR A |
ZibE
BB RIEM
JERE

1 The Group's full acquisition of the casino operation in May 2024 led

to a significant increase in employees due to the hiring of new staff

for the operation.
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1,001

439
562

274
650
77

20
981

As at

30 June 2023
HE
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LFE

240

91
149

70
143
27

12
228

As at

30 June 2022
BHE
—E-F
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LFE

218

123
95

62
136
20

12
206
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SOCIAL (Continued)

12. EMPLOYMENT (Continued)

12.2 Retaining Talents

One of our key priorities at the Group is to attract and retain
top talent. We recognize the significance of providing
comprehensive benefits that promote work-life balance,
support overall well-being, and create a positive work
environment. In compliance with local labour laws and
regulations, we have established reasonable working hours
and holiday arrangements, clearly outlined in the Employee
Handbook and employment contracts. Also, the Group offers
a competitive remuneration package to each employee. The
remuneration packages provided for employees are reviewed
annually, where subsequent adjustments will be made based
on the employee’s performance, experiences and market
standards. During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a
turnover rate of approximately 21.6% (2023: 23.0%).

Our dedication to placing the fundamental well-being of our
staff at the forefront is evident in the array of benefits we offer.
By offering a diverse selection of statutory and additional paid
leave options, we ensure that our employees have the
opportunity to rejuvenate, relax, and address personal
commitments. These benefits not only contribute to their
well-being but also foster a sense of belonging and
engagement within our organization. The following are some
of the benefits extended by the Group:
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Employee Benefits Health and Safety Work-life Balance
EEEF RERZE TEERAEETE

Mandatory Provident Fund and Workers'
Investment and Saving Programme;

Professional Membership Fee Reimbursement
in supporting continuing professional
development

BEMATESHERNS TIREHEANE
BECEEAREUI B EIELR
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Medical, dental, life, compensation, travel
insurance, medical check-up;

Set up a clinic at hotel with full time nurses
and two in-house doctor, enabling our
employees to enjoy free consultation

B TR AS - BERIKITRRAM
BERS

EBERIDF  EE2BET RS
EREL  ERMANESIEEE BT
ol

A mix of mandatory and supplementary leave
entitlement, including annual leave, marriage
leave, maternity leave, examination leave, solo
parent leave, bereavement leave, family visit
leave, and birthday leave;

Various recreation and social activities
organised by the HR Department

| LR ABNRESEF - REFR
EEER - ZAEB ERFERE -
BR - BREREAR
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

12. EMPLOYMENT (Continued)
12.2 Retaining Talents (Continued)

The following table sets out the Group’s number and rate of
employee turnover by gender, age group and geographical

region:

Indicators

Number and rate’ (%) of
employee turnover
By gender?
Female
Male
By age group?
18-30 years old
31-49 years old
50 years old or above
By geographical region?
Hong Kong and Macau
The Philippines

Notes:

8

STEBAZMN
B B 2= (%)
&1 B2

peg

1
REF#R?

18 5% -30 5%
31 B 49 5%
50552
it &2

B KR
JEEE

1 The calculation method of rate of employee turnover: (total
number of departures in the year = (number of employee at the

beginning of the year + number of new hires in the year) X 100%.

2 The calculation method of rate of employee turnover by category:
(total number of departures in the category in the year = (number
of employee in the category at the beginning of the year + number
of new hires in the category in the year) X 100%.

B. & #®)
12. BIE &)

122 REAF (&)
T REYIE T EBZMER - Ficid

=

-

2024

—E_MEE

195 (21.55%)

84 (23.40%)
111 (20.33%)

52 (20.08%)
124 (21.53%)
19 (27.14%)

0(0.00%)
195 (22.06%)

ffat

2023
—ECFF

75(23.01%)

27 (21.95%)
48(23.65%)

16 (18.39%)
55 (26.32%)
4(13.33%)

4(23.53%)
71 (22.98%)

Bl A0 303 2 55 ) B TR B B2 AN AL

2022
—E-FFE

72 (33.0%)

35(28.5%)
37 (38.9%)

21 (33.9%)
44 (32.4%)
7 (35.0%)

4(33.3%)
68 (33.0%)

BTHBTNFETL  (FEEHR
AH+ (FHNETAB+FEFEAR

X 100%) °

R EETHBRERNTE: (FE
ZIB RO EE A B+ (FRZ R
BT AH+FEZER B AR

X 100%) °
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B.

13.

928

=0 3] =1
BEMREERIESHR
During working hours, the Group may conduct a random alcohol test or drug test with
its employees, disciplinary actions will be taken accordingly if the test shows a positive
result.

SOCIAL (Continued)
HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY

The Group places paramount importance on the well-being of
guests and staff across our hotels, clubs, and properties. The Group
has established effective systems and policies such as the Alcohol-
free Workplace Policy, Drug-free Workplace Policy, Smoke-free
Workplace Policy and policies on prevention of communicable
diseases. Occasionally, the Group may face unstable conditions in
the Philippines such as terrorism, social unrest and extreme weather
events. Health and safety committee meetings are held regularly to
review the performance of the Group’s measures. Procedures are in
place to ensure compliance with local regulations and other
international occupational health and safety standards.

Comprehensive workplace safety policies have been established by
the Group to shield employees from various health and safety
hazards. Various measures are in place to ensure a secure work
environment for all:

B. g #
13. BR. ZeMNRE

EESEERBFIEE  BEEMYED
BEAMETIWEL SEEETBMH R
MAMBE MEBETIESHEE BF
m TESMBER - BETHESMBRAR
B ERROBE - BE - SE A EESF
RERBIRENBR  MBMHEE
CPEMBHAREN -RERALE2ZE
SEHNEAREE  UELTEBEEREN -
BPIBIE TP ABRETEHIARME
B R B R R M L 2 AR -

SEBIET2EMNTIESMEZEZERE
REBIRIZBREEMNLZEZREE - B
REUT ZREE G RERAE AN TIERER

ZE

\ [

Drug-free and Alcohol-free Workplace

ABARER - AEENEHEESETHEEEREDR - HAHERER
1 REVER A #1TE)

S

Smoke-free Workplace

$BIE T35 P

Smoking is prohibited in the entire office premises covering enclosed offices, open office
areas, conference rooms, pantries, toilets and lift lobbies. Employees are encouraged to
advise quests and visitors to follow the policy.

EENLZREASLRE - BESARAE  HRRAES - 3F - 29K %
FRAMEHAE - HMIEEESREEANDZETEE -

J L J
A ( A
Safety Inspections Risk Assessment Training for Responsible Staff
o =] = A 3
ZERE BEASNRBEEE
The management team is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the policies related to Responsible persons are invited to attend risk assessment training, identify any actual and
health, safety and security periodically, and performing regular checks to ensure the safety of potential hazards and risks in workplace, and work towards a safe and hygienic work
employees. environment.
EEEKAETHERNESRER RENRTAEBOBE - WETTHRE - % BRAEE2 MERHEEY - BRI TESHATOEMRRIEEEENEAR - 1
L HREEBNZS - L BARBYRZHEN TR -
J J
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SOCIAL (Continued)
HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards. The relevant laws and regulations
include, but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282) of Hong Kong, General Regulation on Health
and Safety in a non-industrial work environment (Decree-Law 37/89/
M) of Macau and Republic Act No. 11058 of the Philippines.

The Group is committed to building a safety-first culture and
avoiding workplace accidents. During the Reporting Period, the
number of lost days due to work injury was 112 (2023:76). No work-
related fatalities occurred between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2024.
The rate of work-related fatalities occurred in the past three years
including 2024 was 0%.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Allocating resources towards the growth and development of
individuals represents a strategic investment for the Group, which is
crucial for the long-term sustainability of our operations. The Group
has established robust employment protocols by providing an array
of developmental initiatives and training schemes accessible to all
staff members, enhancing our talents’ competencies and
professionalism.

To promote a culture of continuous self-improvement, a
performance appraisal is provided annually to ensure that every
employee receives formal feedback on their performance at least
once per year for career planning and development.

13.

14.

HeE @

. Z2MRE %)

FEREHE EEAEREIMNERRERESR
P IERENREE LY BEBETRE
EEEMRNEMNF - HEEERERBEET
RAREBCREL D REREHN) (F509
) BAAREFEKRG) (F282F) - B
FICGETETESFERSERZ 2 —KBRH)
(CE£37/89/M) FIFERE £ H A 211058
5% o

EERNIRBEILR2E XL l#EeT
EZFEHR - EREHHE BITBELN
THEREBAINR(ZE-=F:76X) o &
—E-AF+tA—HE-Z-_MWFAH
T+ HHE ARLEETERBENLTS
HoBE=F(BIE-_TS_VE)HEMHR
TEMBERILT R A 0% o

3% R L5
SEROIEEREETIEAREMERR
REMERE  HREMARMNAIHELS
EWEE - SEBBREH‘-RINERFE
MEBITER  BEXTRE2NOMERR B
LABMAREMAEIRB B8 TR
PIAT BBENMBERKF -

RTREFEBRREANL  BFET
—REYFE  EREBUBETIELEBFE
E—RIEARE  WETHERSIMER -
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

14. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (Continued)

14.1 Talent Management

B. &)

The Group values the mutual growth and development of
both its employees and the corporate, therefore, the career

development of our staff is highly supported. By investing in

the development and training of our employees, we not only

strengthen our organizational capabilities but also foster a

culture of sustainability and responsible business practices. We

believe that our employees are our most valuable asset in
driving positive change and achieving our ESG goals.

Below are the training programs that we currently provide to

our employees of the hotel operation to enhance their skill
sets and understanding of the hospitality industry.

Training Approaches for Hotel Operation

G B Y 5t &

14. FREIEII (2)
1410 AT ERE

EEERETIMEENERKERME
B -ALeEXHETHRERE-
BB ERE THEEMEI - FM
TESR THBMEE N  BEET —
EAFEEMaETnEETEE -
LAz BEIREDEGESINE
RESCERMRBEERE -

AT ZHAI B AT AEEE S B THRM
BIEFIEt 8 RS PR R Y
BIEEN T

New Joiner

EPN:: 2|

The Ways We Work Induction and Coaching
[RMH TSN ABEIFEEE
Application of the Ways We Work through

scenarios-based leaming and pradical application
iﬁiﬁgﬁéi%%li@%?ﬂ?&%ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ A (M TES R
Safety and Security
RERE
To educate skills in maintaining a safe working
environment while enhancing safety consciousness

HAEBRZETIFRRNRE - SR 2EH
|

Job Orientation and Service Skills Training
RIS E M R H a5
To equip new hires with proper job knowledge and procedural
knowhow to perform duties and deliver quality services
REE TRHBETRE RRHEE REHEN
BE TR A8
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Leadership
Training

Et_ k|

Leading Highly Effective Team
BESHERK
A developmental approach that
includes role plays, case studies,
ongoing support of mentoring, tea talk
sessions, workshops and assignments
to assist our team leaders in
understanding and developing their
ability to build, motivate and lead a
highly effective team and also in
sharpening their leadership skills.

—BRENE  BREARHE  ROFRT -
FROEESR - RE - e

VAR B3 PR BB BB E T2 AR
TR AR -
MEVFIEE — X =B R A AE
Wi RERES

Personal
Growth

Training

BA B EIE N

Language Training

Provide resources for learning languages based on
market needs and encourage our employees to
improve language ability

@Eﬁ%ﬁ*%ﬁ%%%?%’ﬁlﬁ  BEBRTIRFE SRS -

Cross Exposure Training
T X EEfgsE
To experience other departments and/or sister
hotels in order to broaden their knowledge and skills

Eﬁﬁ%f&%ﬂ?ﬁﬂ/@%%%}iﬁﬁ » AR AEANRE o

Internal Cross Training
AEBIE R IR
Encourage employees to gain exposure in related departments
or divisions to acquire new skills, and exchange knowledge
508 TIRASARRI RIS ERT -
LASEAS 2 B 0 e S AN
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B. SOCIAL (Continued) B. #® &)
14. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (Continued) 14. BEREEG (&)
14.1 Talent Management (Continued) 141 AFERE (&)

The following table sets out the average training hours per AT RAEHIE TR E T RIE

employee and percentage of employees trained by gender DB E T FE IR EAE X

and employee category: MBI BDL -

2024 2023 2022

Indicators BE “EC_MEE —T-=FF ZTZZFE

Average hours of training per BUEIMEHEI

employee’ (hour(s)) and R8T (N Mz
percentage of employees BHIME T T DL 2(%)
trained? (%)
By gender &R
Female i 3.39(53.30%) 1.76 (19.78%) -(-)
Male S 3.66 (60.14%) 081 (10.07%) 1.7 (8%)
By employee category BEIHEA
Management EEE 2.58 (41.40%) 117 (13.38%) 0.1 (0.1%)
General employees —RETL 4.26 (69.00%) 1.16 (14.46%) 0.7 (2%)

Notes: Hiat -

1 The calculation method of average training hours per employee by 1 ZBEAFEEAE TR FHEIIRE
category: total training hours of employees in the category + KI5 % BB B TR RS 3| R 8
number of employees in the category as at the end of the year. FRZHEMNEIAHALZ -

2 The calculation method of the percentage of employees trained by 2 RERGEEZEINEIBDLR
category: (number of employees trained in the category < number FEc (ZENEZFINEIHE -
of employees in the category as at the end of the year) X 100%. FIEZERNETHAZD X 100% °
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15.

SOCIAL (Continued)
LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group remains steadfast in upholding human rights. We have
adopted the Policy on Prohibition of Child Labour and robust
employment policies, strictly prohibiting child labour and forced
labour. As part of the recruitment process, personal information is
gathered to aid in selecting suitable and lawful candidates, while job
applicants’ identity documents will be carefully verified by the
Human Resources Division. Continuous reviews of employment
practices and recruitment guidelines by the Human Resources
Division ensure that the Group's recruitment procedures align fully
with relevant policies. Should child labour or forced labour be
discovered due to recruitment process breaches, immediate
cessation of such practices will occur, followed by a thorough
investigation.

To protect human rights, the Group ensures that employees do not
work against their wills. Employees are encouraged to finish their
work efficiently within the working hours. Every employee is
guaranteed at least one rest day per week.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
preventing child labour and forced labour. The relevant laws and
regulations include, but not limited to, Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57) of Hong Kong, the List of Jobs Restrained to Minors (Chief
Executive Order No. 343/2008) of Macau, the List of Jobs Prohibited
to Minors (Chief Executive Order No. 344/2008) of Macau and the
Republic Act No. 9231 of the Philippines.
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15.

Fin—2C )

& T #81
AEEERTREL TN - RAD A
TP ETRE) MBS R - BRASE
ETMBELE - EREBRT  RAE
WEBAER A BB E A BB A ENE
BE  MANERBING T EZE KB A
THENEB M ANBRBYREE
BRBEEISTHERS  UREREE
MREREFE2 A MABEE - EHHA
BERFEEMEBETI LR ELHNE
S WS STENME I KRTT A Y BE R TT R
K o

RIREANE  SEBRETI AT BRETHE-
HEETETERRASUTKIE &
BRESVEIBRAZ LI RIKER °

RS B AREB W AR BRI T EST
BRI ETMSALE THEARERER
B HEARERBEETRERESE
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SOCIAL (Continued)
COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group recognises the significance of local community well-
being for our sustained business growth. We actively engage and
contribute to the development and welfare of the communities in
which we operate. Our commitment to social responsibility is
evident in our community investment initiatives, which target critical
needs and support marginalised populations. Employees are
strongly encouraged to engage in volunteer services and make
diverse contributions to the community.

As we move forward, we remain committed to explore additional
opportunities to engage with communities and create lasting
positive change.

16.

T ®)

HERE
EEPHI L BB LB
BRENSEM RMEEARMELH
MEMELRNBERMESE - RAYLe
EAMAEERERMNEEIREEIP -
S EHEEE Y Y B BAHE- 8T
WEBAFRAER2BEFRE - A
Y

R2AK - BINDHHNNEEE S Rit
B A RS E - LAESANEENE -
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17.

OPERATIONS
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

To mitigate ESG risks along our supply chain, the Group has
established the Purchase Procedures to ensure that all suppliers
adhere to laws and regulations pertaining to environmental and
social practices. Besides price, the Group also values labour
standards, human rights, health and safety, and environmental
considerations when engaging with suppliers. The Group diligently
access the business practices and regularly communicates our
stringent standards to all suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, all 351 key suppliers of the Group were
deemed qualified. The management team conducts regular
assessments to uphold the efficacy of the Purchase Procedures and
uphold high supply chain management standards.

17.1 Supplier Selection

The Group commits to offering quality services that exceed
customer expectation. A robust supplier selection process is in
place to cultivate enduring partnerships with dependable
suppliers, fostering long-term business prosperity. Suppliers
are categorised into office item suppliers and hotel item
suppliers, each catering to specific needs. Office suppliers
provide standard office supplies like stationery and toner,
while hotel suppliers provide a wide array of items crucial for
hotel operations such as food, beverages, linens, and cleaning
supplies. Diversification across suppliers is prioritised to ensure
supply chain stability and mitigate disruptions.
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C.

17.

EE

HESREE

BT RRMEESE FAESG AR - AEEGIE
TEREBAE Fr DARE (R P A (B 7 38 ~F B3R 3R
Mit & BEBBEDERNER - RERIN -
AEBEHBERHAER - TERSTRE -
A RBEEZ2 UNMREREZE - KK
BEeBERAXBEL  AERRAMAH
EREERMINEBEFRE -

EREHN SENMASIBAEEHER
HENAEESENARHEER -EEE
BEREERBEFNAYRE  URES
IKFE RS E IR o

17.1 HERER
AEEBIRREBLEFHENE
FRRS - EEEARENHEE TS
B HASHNHERBELIREANE
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. EE &
17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (Continued) 17. HEREE (&)
17.1 Supplier Selection (Continued) 171 HEREE (&)

Environmental and social factors are integral in the
procurement and supplier selection process to align with the
Group’s sustainable development vision. Regular
communication and monitoring are upheld to enforce
environmental and social standards within the supply chain.
For suppliers who fail to meet the environmental and social
standards, the Group will consider terminating the business
relationship.

% R Supplier Screening P& &3
() ()

[RRN
xx&<

Purchasing Department works with reputable suppliers offering
top-quality products that meet our sustainability criteria and

adhere to the Supply Chain Code of Conduct.

FERRERRIOMERAE  REFARMARERR
REWETRERITATHNELEER

ZREREMEERRERBEMEER
EEBEPAAHIRN R UFTE
SENASEERBER THAERE
SRS IR RITEE IR
BN ARBEEIRFENESRENHE
B RESE B EERGREE -

Quality Check EE R E
[tems that do not comply with the required specifications will be
rejected and returned to the corresponding suppliers.

TFA P AR AR A G S IR 4B IR 4R AR FE A (P& RS -

Risk Assesment B :F{4

Purchasing Department assesses the environmental and social risks of the
candidate suppliers with a high level of objectivity and impartiality to avoid
cooperating with suppliers that do not fit the Group's long-term vision for
sustainable development.

REBHPIASEEBMAENREF GRS RERORENTER
B o PAB R BN AANREAREERRIBSORERAE -

N\

Z

4

Communication and Monitoring & B & BE22

suppliers to verify their compliance with laws and regulations, as well as their

'@‘ The Group will maintain regular communication and engagement with our
%,
(D

adherence to our Supply Chain Code of Conduct and sustainability standards.

KR RRERRFENERNES - UREMMEEEERNETE
R RIS RME (HEEITASTAD MARERREEOETER

N 4
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)

17. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (Continued)

C. &&E#)
17. HEERETIE (&)

17.1 Supplier Selection (Continued)

Additionally, the Group requires all suppliers to comply with
relevant laws and regulations. We strongly encourage the
Purchasing Department to take note of the local government's
policy on recommended green product specifications. For
example, the Purchasing Department was advised to study
the materials published by the Philippines government
agencies such as the Department of Budget and
Management, Department of Trade and Industry and
Department of Environment and Natural Resources. By
gathering information from multiple government agencies,
the Purchasing Department seeks to develop a process to
procure goods, services and works with relatively lower
environmental impact throughout their life cycle. The
management team regularly reviews whether the Group's
suppliers have complied with laws and regulations. Suppliers
found in violation of environmental protection statutes may
face termination of their business partnerships with the Group.

The following table sets out the number of the Group’s key
suppliers by geographical region:

Indicators EE
Number of Key Suppliers TEHERHE
By Geographical Region B =

The Philippines FEE

Hong Kong B

The United States x

Europe BOM

Other regions b=

17.2 Local Procurement

The Group intends to allocate budget to local suppliers as the
Group believes that local procurement can support local
economic development and create job opportunities for the
local community. As a result, the Group preferentially
purchases goods and services from suppliers within the region
close to its operation. During the Reporting Period, more than
96% of its key suppliers were located in the Philippines, the
country that the Group performs most of the business
activities.
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171 HEEEE (&)
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2024 2023 2022
—E_NEE —T-=-FF —LT-—FFE
351 436 449
338 422 432
12 13 3
- - 1
1 1 2
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY
18.1 Service Quality

EE(#)

18. IRFEEE

18.1 REEE

Rk dE2RERES

The Group values service quality as a key factor in building
customer trust. To maintain top-notch services, a
comprehensive set of standard operating procedures (SOPs)
has been established to guide staff across various functions,
ensuring that they are well-versed in the Group’s service
quality expectations. Additionally, we have established a Code
of Discipline, which clearly states the consequences and
disciplinary procedures in the event of employees breaching
the Code.

We value and prioritise feedback and opinions from
customers. In the event of complaints or queries, we are
dedicated to addressing them promptly and effectively. A
robust procedure for handling complaints has been put in
place to ensure that all issues are managed professionally.
Each complaint is meticulously reviewed and relayed to the
appropriate departments for necessary follow-up actions to
prevent recurrence. The duty manager is tasked with
managing guest complaints according to established
procedures, maintaining professionalism, and delivering top-
notch service.

AEEERRFEE REREYRE
EEENERAZ - B THRE—RK
R% BEELT -EZEMNREER
TR (SOP) - HEE R ERAEME T - #
ROPIABEENRGEEEHE - It
S TP BIE T A2 EST R BREAR
ETEBITERTRIFHNRRMALERE
o

BRMERIBEZETFHREME
R AERRA RO ERIR R Rk R R -
B RemRrRERF N
RAAMEMEEXNEE - B/
RS WA A EAZ AL B AR AR BB
FIETTIREMRETE A ILER
L -EIRERERBHREREFE
BEPKRF  REFXMLREE R
B AR TS o

@ Step1 F—F

@ Step2 =%

@ Step3E=%

Listen

RE

Look professional and
courteous when dealing
with a complaining guest
EHRLMEAR - KR
BEXMAES

Actively listen to the guest
while airing his/her
complaint; refrain from
interrupting while the guest

|

Empathise and Apologise
RESZHRER

When responding to guest,
use a polite tone and a
pleasing demeanour
EEEEAE - EAFE
MFARANE EROER

Put ourselves in the guest’s
situation and apologise for
the inconvenience he/she
has encountered

\

Find Solution

BHRBRAR

Never refuse to help resolve
the issue

PI)IERR B ARRRIRE

Get assistance from
concerned departments

5B RERFIM 58

Give an approximate
timeframe to get back to

speak. REEMATAEE I quest
ERARERFRIEEIE i, MBEMTERT AT EIERAMABEH
B, OER - EEA -3 “E

BT ETH,

Follow Through
BRIE

Important to call or meet
the guest merely to know if
he/she is happy of the
solution
HERFREAT B,
MRBERRT REEW

=

G

v

Record Keeping
RIFRLH

Update Guest’s profile notes
to make sure the
concerns/preferences are
met on his/her future stay
EREANBEAER TR
CARER A, R RN B
B RIFEEmR

Share the encounter
through complaint log for
everyone’s reference
BRRFRBOZES -
HARR2Z

B
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. & (B)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. RFEFE (#)
18.1 Service Quality (Continued) 18.1 REEE (&)

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in
relation to safety and health, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided. The
relevant laws and regulations include, but are not limited to,
the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362) of Hong Kong,
Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528) of Hong Kong, Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) of Hong Kong, Consumer
Protection Law (Law No. 12/88/M) of Macau, Macau
Advertising Law (Law No. 7/89/M), Republic Act No. 8293 of
the Philippines and Data Privacy Act (Republic Act No. 10173)
of the Philippines.

During the Reporting Period, the number of complaints
received by the Group was 0 (2023: 0). If the Group receives
any complaints, the relevant complaints will be handled
promptly with the help of the hotel staff. Follow-up actions
would be conducted where appropriate to handle any
complaints.

18.2 Customer Satisfaction

The Group recognizes that delivering high-quality products
and services while ensuring customer satisfaction is essential
for long-term success and value creation. We are dedicated to
meeting and surpassing customer expectations regarding
service quality.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. &&E %)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. IRBEE (@)
18.2 Customer Satisfaction (Continued) 182 BEFmEE (&)

Continuous investment in training and development BPFBERERNBEE TR E
programs for hotel staff is a key focus to improve their skills, REtE BEREAE TR AHHE
knowledge, and customer service capabilities. We empower EPRBEN BB TEIBILE
employees to handle guest issues independently and provide BEAMENE N W AMPRER
them with the necessary tools and resources. While our EHMIAMER -RMWEIARM
employees are responsible for carrying out exceptional R IRBE E #) B R A1 7 AR S R 5
customer service based on the policies and standard of HARTS - RINKRMEERET ZIEEH -
procedures established, we also implement several measures URaEPEATHENREE

to promote customer satisfaction during their stays:

Comfortable
accommodations
EFEMETE

~

Offer well-designed, comfortable, and well-appointed rooms with amenities such as comfortable beds, quality linens,
adequate storage space, and modern furnishings. Provide essential amenities like toiletries, towels, and in-room
entertainment options.

REBOHR  TEARBE2NER  EAFENK BERE ZTRNREZENRARAFENRE -
REERAm  EMNEENHRERHEFERRE

Cleanliness and

maintenance
SE y
/B /,f?)g *ﬂ ,Z/E E%

A

Maintain high cleanliness standards throughout the hotel, including guest rooms, common areas, and facilities. Regularl

=

inspect and maintain equipment, fixtures, and amenities to ensure everything is in good working order.
REEERERBEEEE BREEE DABEMRG - EHREMNEERE  EERENEMRE - UHE
R— IR RAFH) THEIRRE

Amenities and
facilities
A5 e A 25

B

Offer a variety of amenities and facilities that cater to guests' needs, such as fitness centers, swimming pools, spa services,
business centers, and meeting rooms. We have a range of venues that can accommodate any type of event or celebration,
and our professional expertise and meticulous planning ensure the success of the occasion.

REZBRENRE RS EANTI SRS PO K  KERS  BBPLOMNERE - HFIE
ARG R TRABEEMNEDRENEY - HMINEXNBMNAZA T BIREREB R °

Quality dining
options
BREEREE

\

Provide a range of dining options, including fine dining, casual restaurants, and room service, with a focus on high-quality
food, diverse menus, and accommodating dietary preferences. Ensure prompt service and maintain a pleasant dining
ambiance.

RUSEERERE BESAEE KRAEENEERYE IESnENRY  SRLEOXENDEBHRR
REN o BRMRAMRB L AR BREOBERS - j

Personalised Services

At A EAED

~

Strive to personalise the guest experience by understanding individual preferences and anticipating their needs. Offer
tailored recommendations, surprises, and special touches to make guests feel valued and appreciated. Personalised services
includes babysitting services, event planning, laundry service, guest pickup and delivery, etc.
BHBEBTHREANEAZHILIEAMFANERREECEANRR - RESEFTHOEE  BENFHH
B8 BEARXIMEGNEE - AR CREBERBRYE SRS KRR BEEAF -
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. &&E#)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. BRFFEIE 40
18.2 Customer Satisfaction (Continued) 182 BEFMEE (£)
We are committed to providing a secure environment that BMBNRBEEHRZZ2NERES T
instils confidence and peace of mind. We have implemented a AL LR HRPERT — R
range of security measures, including strategically placed ZERIEH - BIEEREY RISt
surveillance cameras throughout the property to monitor HEETREGE UERAEESE -

public areas, entrances, and exits. Our access control systems
restrict unauthorised entry to designated areas of the hotel
with well trained security personnel. Furthermore, we have

ABME A o FAPIHPIZE R LR H K
KEENABENBERERE I
FEIIMRAEENRLZAR < LI

established an Emergency Response Team, and developed ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?i TEZERHERK SIETE
comprehensive emergency response plans that cover a wide ﬁ MESEHFTE  RET Xﬁ‘}gﬁ
range of potential scenarios, such as fires, natural disasters, ER AN BAKNE BEES

medical emergencies, and security threats. We also have set
up a clinic at the hotel with full-time nurses and two in-house
doctors.

As the Group is principally involved in gaming operation, hotel
operation and live events, it was not involved in sales of
products during the Reporting Period. The disclosure on the
total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons and recall procedures does not apply to the
Group.

ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂlﬁ ° &WW&EEE“*
— A2 EEZBELNRE R
io

EEA%@IKTﬁé%@mLE OB EE
EMBGEE  WmEHARART IR
EmigeE - ﬁﬁa-ﬁiﬂ]ﬁ;}iﬁ-ﬁﬁ
EARNEEXNBEEERBEIARA
EREFHEENEANRNER -

18.3 Advertising and Labelling 183 EHHEHER
The Group is constantly engaged in the promotion of its SETEEASBEMNL  BRMITEH
hospitality services through various advertising platforms such EHERBES a‘u‘%ﬁﬁ/@%ﬁ&ﬁ%

as the Group's websites, posters and marketing campaigns.
The Group ensures no misleading or false information is
delivered to the public in the Group’s promotional materials.
At the Group's hotel, marketing campaigns are monitored by
the management in accordance with laws and regulations.

As the Group operates in the hotel industry, its operations do
not involve labelling matters.

110 Annual Report F%%2023/24
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. &E&E (%)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. RFEHE &)
18.4 Intellectual Property Rights 18.4 HIBERE

Intellectual property rights of the Group include all registered
domains, trademarks, copyrights and licences. An effective
management in protecting both internal and external
intellectual property right ensures the sustainability of daily
business operation and corporate branding.

The Group recognises the importance of protecting
intellectual property rights. The Group has established a policy
to prohibit the use of illegal or unauthorised computer
programs on computers within the workplace. All the
computer programmes used by the Group were purchased
from licensed dealers. The Group closely monitors its business
activities, such as the installation of computer programmes, to
protect intellectual property rights.

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

To safeguard the personal data of employees, customers, and
stakeholders, the Group has established comprehensive
privacy policies. These policies detail the purposes of personal
data collection, its usage, transfer, retention, and security, as
well as procedures for accessing or updating data, all in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The privacy
statement is published on the Group's website to ensure user
awareness. Management regularly reviews and updates these
policies as necessary.

As part of our privacy policies, the Group enforces strict
security and control measures related to computer software,
email systems, domains, and websites. Employees receive
clear instructions on how to responsibly manage the data they
access. Special attention is given to customer data
management, and we are pleased to report that no
substantiated complaints regarding the leakage of customer
privacy or loss of customer data were reported during the
Reporting Period.

AEENABERBEMASEMA
A AR REMFFAE - RER
ERASMNEB AN EE R Y B R E R REAR T
AEEBELMEERENAFENL -

AEEEHIRENIERNERN -
AEBED BB AR IEE TS
B EEAIDERARERENE
B - REEREANAAEKEN
VRERREHD ARETYEER
HEBERE  PIMZEKEKIER - A
PREE RN EERE

185 EFBAMBIE

RTREET - FPMHFNENEA
BB SECEYE2ENBLBE -
58 LEBRR R A AR A BB W SR i B
MR BB REMZE2ME A
Keahf s B BEORF - WEER
BERER BALBHACESENH
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EMEEURBEFEZEMELEE -

ERBRPRBLBRN—2D - FEH
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. &E&E %)
18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) 18. RFEEHE (&)
18.5 Customer Privacy and Data (Continued) 185 EFRANEE (&)

To complement these efforts, the Group also prioritises
cybersecurity. We have implemented robust cybersecurity
protocols to protect our digital infrastructure from threats and
unauthorized access. Our employees are trained in best
practices for data security, ensuring that they understand both

SEHGELTEZEREBRLE  RMAEE
Ml 2 MRS L 2 - ARE R
B BRES B B e S B MR A 4
MEnfE - RPMBETERTHERSE
REBEBRAEI - HERAMPIEE R

MBR L 2HRA -

privacy and cybersecurity principles.

?
o 12

T

CYBER ¢ |*%
>a SECURITY
before licensed software anti-virus and anti-spam
can be installed on the computers C y ) solutions are installed and regularly
within the workplace \ / updated
RRENBR R AR EE REW T HHE L HEE N
R B ERF R

TR E R L

l:
*kkkkkhkk ——ii
:=n H

password protected
workstations, networks and

applications USB ports
THES: - TR T customers’ data Restrictions on computers
REWRE PR %I EHUSBIR O

assess right is granted to
employees based on their job
requirements
BEETHTERS  BTHE
F 2B mvp R

To enhance employees’ understanding of privacy, data
protection, and cybersecurity, the Group communicates its
policies through awareness campaigns and regular training
sessions. Additionally, we provide refresher programs to keep
employees informed of the latest practices and regulatory
updates. A designated Data Protection Officer conducts
compliance inspections of our privacy measures and liaises
with the National Privacy Commission in the Philippines to
ensure we meet all regulatory standards.
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OPERATIONS (Continued)
ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains the highest standards of openness, uprightness
and accountability, all the employees are expected to observe the
highest standards of ethical, personal and professional conduct. The
Group does not tolerate corruption, bribery, extortion, money
laundering and other fraudulent activities in connection with any of
its business operations. The Group has adopted the Code of
Discipline, which contains terms on anti-corruption and the penalties
for offenses against business ethics. All employees and the
management of the Groups are required to strictly comply with the
Code of Discipline, which states that employees are prohibited, with
only limited exceptions, from receiving tips and gifts from hotel
customers, colleagues or suppliers. Any gifts or favours received,
regardless of value, must be reported to the individual’s supervisor.
Any matters of genuine concern will be thoroughly investigated and
actions will be taken accordingly. Training that helps to enhance
employees’ understanding of the anti-corruption provisions outlined
in the Code of Discipline is provided to employees if necessary. In
addition, regular corporate governance training, which covers
knowledge on anti-corruption legislation as well as skills to prevent
corruption at the workplace, is provided to raise employees’
awareness.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The relevant laws
and regulations include, but not limited to, Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201) of Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression of
Bribery in the Private Sector (Law No. 19/2009) of Macau and Anti-
Graft and Corrupt Practices Act (Republic Act No. 3019) of the
Philippines. During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
its employees.

19.
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C. OPERATIONS (Continued) C. &&E#)
19. ANTI-CORRUPTION (Continued) 19. REi5 (&)
19.1 Whistle-blowing Policy 19.1 |HRBUR

The Group has implemented the Whistle-blowing Policy
which enables all employees and third parties such as
customers, suppliers and contractors, to raise any concerns
about improprieties, misconducts, malpractices, wrongdoings,
irregularities, fraud or corruption to the management. Reports
and complaints received will be assessed within a reasonable
timeframe. After which, they will be handled by the
Investigating Panel when necessary. Any violations or
substantiated allegations will be followed up with effective
remedial action commensurate with the severity of the
offense. The Group reserves the right to refer any cases to the
appropriate external regulatory authorities.

The Policy also aims at protecting whistle-blowers from fear of
reprisal, discrimination or adverse consequences, the identity
of the whistle- blowers will be kept strictly confidential. The
Group reserves the right to take appropriate actions against
anyone who initiates or threatens to initiate retaliation against
the whistleblowers. In particular, employees who initiate or
threaten retaliation will be subject to disciplinary actions,
which may include summary dismissal.

To monitor the effectiveness of the whistle-blowing
mechanism, the Group reviews all complaints received
regularly and conducts investigations if any pattern of
improprieties or alleged improprieties exist that need to be
addressed.
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE 20. FRENIEITHEE

INDICATORS
ESG Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
ESGIEZ Efy SBCNEE —To=FE —TCCFE

A. Environmental Indicators
BERE

A1 Emission
35 8]

A1 Type of emissions and respective emissions data
ERYBERABSERER
Air emissions
BRENE
Nitrogen oxides Kg 1,145.84 34721 1,13749
"A&Alty, TR
Sulphur oxides Kg 75.89 271 74.69
ety Fr
Particulate matter Kg 80.56 2442 7997
BENT Fr

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)

greenhouse gas emissions and intensity

ER(EENREREE (EE)RERE

SHEREE
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCOe 7,764.57 6,924.29 528438
BERBHRAS B_SiEE
GHG emissions intensity Tonne/million HKS revenue 42,93 3342 61.79
RERBHRAE I/ ABETHRA
GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCOe 626.74 297.11 21017
BEREHMN(BE—) B_AiRES
GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCOe 7,137.82 6,627.18 507421
REREHN(BE) BE_SiEE

A13 Total hazardous waste produced
FELEERRNEE
Total hazardous waste produced Tonne 4.82 11.12 333
MELRERENEE I
Total hazardous waste intensity Tonnes/million HKS revenue 0.027 0.054 0.039
RERRNEERR B/ BEBETHA
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE

HE

INDICATORS (Continued)

Al4

A2

A2.1

A2.2

116

ESG Indicators
ESGIEEE

Total non-hazardous waste produced
FELBERZNEE

Total non-hazardous waste produced
FELRZEZNEE

Total non-hazardous waste intensity
BEEEVESTE

Total non-hazardous wastewater discharged
BERKEE

Total non-hazardous wastewater intensity
BERKBERE

Use of resource

ERER

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity
RERHUSNERR FEELFERERR
E

Total energy consumption

RRERE

Total energy consumption intensity
ERERER

Direct energy consumpﬁon

BEERRERE

Indirect energy consumption

RZRERERE

Water consumption in total and intensity
BREKEREE

Water consumption

BFKE

Water consumption intensity

BRKERE

Annual Report € $ 2023/24

Unit
B

Tonne

W

Tonnes/million HKS revenue
B/ BEBETRA

m3

U Ak

m*/million HKS revenue

YRR/ AEETHA

MWh

KR

MWh/million HKS revenue
KRB/ BEBTHA
MWh

KEE

MWh

KR

mi
AR
m?/million HKS revenue

UHKIABETRA

2024
“ECMEE

7.24

0.040

95,473

527.99

13,791.61

76.27

1,854.43

11,937.18

152,606.00

843.95

20. FABMRSIEIRIE (&

2023

“=ERE

491

0.024

115,862

559.13

12,078.34

5829

995.50

11,082.85

160,125.00

77273

2022
TE-CEE

0020

84,240

984.98

8,775.38

10261

288.65

8486.73

72,54540

848.24
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE 20. FABETIEIERE (&)
INDICATORS (Continued)

ESG Indicators Unit 2024 2023 2022
ESGIEEE By “ECNEE —T--FF —T-C-FE

B. Social Indicators
HEER

B1 Employment
&R

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region

ZuR - EREY FRANREEHINE

EECE
Total number of employees Person 1,001 240 218
ETBAY A
Gender Male Person 562 149 95
R B A
Female Person 439 91 123
e A
Age group  18-30years old Person 274 70 62
FEABR  18E305% A
31-49 years old Person 650 143 136
3E495 A
50 years old or above Person 77 27 20
S0 L A
Region Hong Kong and Macau Person 20 12 12
il B A
The Philippines Person 981 228 206
FaE A
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender and age
group
RURRERARNBINESRALE
Total employee turnover rate Number and rate (%) of 195 (21.55%) 75(23.01%) 72 (33%)
employee turnover
EEBRKLE EEREABRTRAE
Gender Male employee turnover rate Number and rate (%) of 111 (20.33%) 48 (23.65%) 37 (38.9%)
151 employee turnover
BUBTRALE EERXABIRAE
Female employee turnover rate Number and rate (%) of 84 (23.40%) 27 (21.95%) 35(285%)
employee turnover
THETRALE EEREABRRAE
Agegroup  18-30years old Number and rate (%) of 52(20.08%) 16 (18.39%) 21(33.9%)
Fhenl employee turnover
18F 307 BERRABRRKLE
31-49 years old Number and rate (%) of 124(21.53%) 55 (26.32%) 44 (32.4%)
employee turnover
312 495% BERRABRRKE
50 years old or above Number and rate (%) of 19 (27.14%) 4(1333%) 7 (35%)
employee turnover
S0 3A £ EERXABLRAE
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS (Continued)

Region

il

B2

B2.1

B2.2

B3

B3.1

Gender

il

Employee
category

EEER

ESG Indicators
ESGIEEE

Hong Kong and Macau

B RRM
The Philippines

FRE

Health and safety

BEEZ2

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
RAIfBENETHABRRLR
Number of work-related fatalities
ATEBEMETHAN

Rate of work-related fatalities

ATEREME AR X

Lost days due to work injury

EIGBEXATERY

Development and training

BV

Percentage of employees trained by gender and

employee category
BMRRESRANBINZIEEEIL
Percentage of male employees trained
BHEIXIEA L

Percentage of female employees trained
THEIXINEA L

Percentage of management trained
EEEZIEDHY

Percentage of general employees trained
—REIXIEDL

118 Annual Report F%%2023/24

Unit 2024
B “ECMEE
Number and rate (%) of 0(0.00%)
employee turnover

BEREABIRAR

Number and rate (%) of 195 (22.06%)
employee turnover

BERAABRRAE

Case 0
=

Percentage 0
B

Day 112
H

Percentage 60.14%
B

Percentage 53.30%
B

Percentage 41.10%
BA

Percentage 69.00%
B

20. FABRRUIEIEME (@)

2023
“RoZFE

4(23.53%)

71(22.98%)

76

10.07%

19.78%

13.38%

14.46%

2022
TE-CEE
4(33.3%)

68 (33%)

54
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS (Continued)

B3.2

Gender

(3]

Employee
category
R

B5

B5.1

ESG Indicators
ESGIEEE

Average training hours completed per employee

by gender and employee category

BURIREERAES  SREETKIIN

PR

Average training hours of male employees
BHEIXIITHRER

Average training hours of female employees
THEBIRIITFHRE

Average training hours of management
ERETHTOHE

Average training hours of general employees

—REIXIIFIHER

Supply chain management
HEREE

Number of suppliers by geographical region
EuEEINURERRE
The Philippines

FrE

Hong Kong

EE

The United States

xH

Europe

BN

Other regions

HftitE

Unit
B

Hour
NEF
Hour
N
Hour
INE
Hour
NEF

Suppliers
HIER
Suppliers
R
Suppliers
HER
Suppliers
HIER
Suppliers
R

20. FABRIIEIRTEE (&)

2024
“ECNEE

3.66

3.39

2,58

4.26

338

12

2023
—Eo=HE

081

1.76

117

1.16

2022
“E-CEE

0.7

432
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20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS (Continued)

B6

B6.1

B6.2

B7

B7.1

B8.2

ESG Indicators
ESGIEEE

Product responsibility

EmEHE

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons
EERDEREmBHATHET 2 BRERIEHM
ARKEBE DL

Number of products and service related complaints
received

REHNER LR RFEE

Anti-corruption

R&ES

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practises brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period
RESHAHBTARERERHALCELN
BERREGNEE

Number of corruption lawsuits

BISRARIFOEE

Community investment

HERE

Resources contributed to the focus area
EEIERABAER

Donation to underprivileged

RESEZE:2 P

120 Annual Report F%%2023/24

Unit 2024
B “ECMEE
Percentage N/A
TER
B
Case Nil
&
=
Case Nil
= S
HKS Nil
B &

20. FABRRUIEIEME (@)

2023
“RoZFE

N/A
TiER

=

Nil

=

2022
TE-CEE

N/A
TER

Nil

Nil

Nil
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INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Key Performance Indicators

HREAMER

Environmental
BB

A1: Emissions
A1 B

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—REE
BRABERSOBEREBHM  MAKRIHAOHES BEREBEERRVNELS
M@ ERO)BTHETABEARENRBEIRERRIINER -

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

AL R R R EH

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and
intensity.

A2BEER (BE—) RERER (BE-) AERBHHRELRTE -
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

NMIFMEABERRMBERTE -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

MAFMELBERENHEENETE

¥t

A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
AMSHEIFTET B E B R R AEIE L B EMERIA 5

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A6 HIMBEIEREERBEZEEMN AL - R S HRRE B IR R AREE
B RRATREA R -

21. B¥3ZFRESGHR G155 IAB S|

Reporting Section
EEEH

7. EMISSION

7.5

7. EMISSION

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT

7. B

8.EEEYE R

7.2 GHG Emissions

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
72 R E RN

20 BARBERIEEHME
8.1 Hazardous Waste Management
BIBEERMER

8.2 Non-hazardous Waste
Management

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
82 EEREREYER

20 FARERIEEHE

7. EMISSION

7. B

7. EMISSION

8. WASTE MANAGEMENT

7. BER

8.EEEYE R
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 21. BRXFRESGER&E5IRAB K5 (&)

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

BEENIER

A2: Use of Resources
A2 EREA

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials. Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,
electronic equipment, etc.

— R E

BRERER(BIERIR  KREAMRME) BEEK - BRAITAREE - #F -
B BF BETRE-

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in
total and intensity.

A2 IRERRLEI D VB R SRR (E - Raloh) BRERTE -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity

M2BFERKERTE -

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
A23FHIRFRAT S BV BEIRIE A s B IR R RIE BB L B IR PSRN 2P 8 »

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A24 $EHSKEGE A AOR BRI BERIRRE - AR RK st 8 R ERR -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

ASERBIABEREMHNEERBEESHNE -
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Reporting Section

BREEH

9. USE OF RESOURCE

9. &EIRIEM

9.1 Energy Consumption

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
9.1 BEIRIE#E

20 ARBEBIEEHE
9.2 Water Consumption

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
92 FAKE

20 FARBE IR IR E

9. USE OF RESOURCE

9. B Rt

9.2 Water Consumption

92 FA/KE

The disclosure on the total packaging
material used for finished products

does not apply to the Group’s
operations.

BERAKRAAEEMHEENE

BETERARARENES -



21.

International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE45 R A &)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERERS

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 21. Bi3XFRESGI R &85 |IRNB XRS5 (#)
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section
REENER BREEH

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3  RERRARER

General Disclosure 10. THE ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES

Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impacts on the environment and natural

resources.

—REE 10. RIRMAAER

WEZETAERERRARERERERTZEHBR -

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural ~ 10. THE ENVIRONMENT AND
resources and the actions taken to manage them. NATURAL RESOURCES

AT R E RS EBHIRE R AR ERNEARZERCIRKNEBRFAFENTE - 10. RIRMRRER

A4: Climate Change
A4 RIRE1L
General Disclosure 11. CLIMATE CHANGE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RE B EE M. /IR

BRI NEHERRAIEGHBITAEEXENERRIKBEBEENBER -
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and 11. CLIMATE CHANGE
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them

AR ERRFAREEHBRTAELFENEARKHABEE - LEHTH - 11 RIEREL
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Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section

BEENIER BREEH

Social

e

B1: Employment

B1: {E{E

General Disclosure 12. Employment
12.2 Retaining Talents

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,

and other benefits and welfare.

— MR EE 12. (&%
122REB AT

BRAF LR  BIEREAN  TEREC REYP - FERE  Zalk - RSB

AR H A5 B AR R (a) R (b) BT HEITABEARXENHEBEEZ LRI

BB H -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.  12.1 The Group's Workforce
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

BI.UIZIER - EFERE - FRAX MBS HNESEH - 121 £BETHME
20 ARBEBUERRHE
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 12.2 Retaining Talents

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
B2 IRMEA ~ FlAMK KItREI DMREIRKLE - 122REBAT
20 BRBERIERRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERERS

21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

BAREMIER

B2: Health and Safety
B2 @EHZZE

General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

—REE
FRREZ2THEREMREREBERLBELGSZATN () BEK (b) ETH %
TABEARFENEREERRPNER

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

B2 BE=F (BHREHRFE) A TFAERMILTHAB KL X -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

B2 ATBEALATIERE -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B23 M TR MBI R R R R 25t - U RMERMITRER A -

21. Bt3ZPRESGIHREIE5IAB S| (&)

Reporting Section

BEEEH

13. Health, Safety and Security

13,625 - 2 FREE

13. Health, Safety and Security
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
13.8F - 2 FRE

20. BRETIEEHE

13. Health, Safety and Security
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
13.F - 2 FRE

20 ARBE IR E

13. Health, Safety and Security

1325 - Z2MRE
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT . BiRXFRESGHR &5 IRABE5| (&)
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section

BEENIER BREEH

B3: Development and Training
B3 : R RIEII

General Disclosure 14. Development and Training

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities
— R 14, 3 R BIE T

BHERTEE BT LIFRE N MR R RAENEE - R EINES -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. 14.1 Talent Management
20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

B IRMFINEE RIS HNXIEER S TAAER
20. Eﬁﬁ\ﬁ MIE IR &
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 14.1 Talent Management
category. 20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
B32IRMFINEEHRE D BREETHEINNFIIRE - 141 AF B
20 AR IR IR &2
B4: Labour Standards
B4 : & T %A
General Disclosure 15. Labour Standards

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— AR 5E 15, 45 T # 0|

BRI ETHRBHIE TH () BRO) ETHETABEAFENEBEIRZR
MBI E R -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced  15. Labour Standards

labour.

B4 fsl i s IS B I EIA R R E T N AHIS T - 15. 8 T 2R

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 15. Labour Standards
B4.2 Mt £ B IR 12 AR 15 LI B IR B R 1B S P ERER ) A5 5% - 15. 4 T %8|
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21. THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT 21. Bi3XFRESGI R &85 |IRNB XRS5 (#)

INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

REENER

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : {fpESEEE
General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
— R E

EIRHERAIRE RS RARBUR -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BS.1 IR B N O E A -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where
the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Bs2 it BRAEE MMt EE BN MEARITAEBENNHEREE - UANE#H
BOIHMITRERF A -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.3 H ul 5 BA 25k Al A FE S B EIR EP R IR IR At @ bR W9 1B A1 - LA RRAE BT T
NERAE-

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BS.4 f i 1 BB BRI R (R (2 2 AIRRE an LIRS B0 - A KB BB Iy
HMITRERTE -

Reporting Section

BEEEH

17.SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

17 EEERE

17.1 Supplier Selection

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

VAR AEE

20 ARBRIEEHE
17.SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

17 HEHEE IR

17.1 Supplier Selection
17.2 Local Procurement
170 HEmEE
17.2 R EREE

17.1 Supplier Selection
17.2 Local Procurement
170 e B i
17.2 R R B
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INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators

BEENIER

B6 : Product Responsibility
B6: EmEE
General Disclosure

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

— R E

FUAMREERMBRBHNEELLZ S - BES  REMELFEERMHERTEN @)
B b) BTHETABERTENHBERRROINER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

Bl EEHXCEXEMERTRL2HEFEAME RN B DL

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

Bo2 RN E M M RIEHIRFH B AREHTTE -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights
B6.3 Hii it B 4 & I AR B E B BHED -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
B6.4 # it i & 1% TE AR M EE mm B AR T o

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

Be.S i iUH B E M ERE RILBEE URBBAATRERAE -
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Reporting Section

BREEH

18. SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY

18. RIBEE

The disclosure on the total products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons and recall
procedures does not apply to the
Group.
FHERZE2MERRAMEEQ
WEERBEEMEHAREMD
BFORETEANAER -
18.1 Service Quality

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

181 IRFEE

20 BARERIEEHE

184 Intellectual Property Rights

184 FBEE

18.1 Service Quality

18.2 Customer Satisfaction

181 lRIEEE

182 B P MEE

18.5 Customer Privacy and Data

18.5 B PR AL SR
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INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE (Continued)

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Section
BARERER BREEH

B7 : Anti-corruption

B7 : RES

General Disclosure 19. ANTI-CORRUPTION

(a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

—RE B EE 9. R&)5

BED IR BR FEFRARENQBROETHETAGEATEN
HEERLRDIONER -
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the ~ 20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY

issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
T RERAANEBEITANEEEREVEEEMNESHARGNEE RF 20 AREMIEEHE
a’\%%

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they 19.1 Whistle-blowing Policy
are implemented and monitored.

B7.2 H [t e R R MAR T - A RMABENITRER % o 191 BRI E
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 19. ANTI-CORRUPTION
B73fiiAEE K8 TIRHENREIFIEI - 19. R&EF

B8 : Community Investment

B8 HERE
General Disclosure 16. Community Investment

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.

—RWE 16. 1L ERE

ﬁ%uﬁ@/AX%ﬁ“E%Eﬁ&*ﬁﬁﬁ%E%%E%A%ﬁﬁEﬂ<

B R

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs,  16. Community Investment
health, culture, sport).

BRI BT EREIE (HE  REFHE LIF K @F it 85 - 6. tEIKRE
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 16. Community Investment

20. SUMMARY OF ESG KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
B2 IEH X HISFTENAEIR © 6. ft[@IEE
20 ARETIEIZHE

Annual Report %22023/24 129



B REER R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEEHRES

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT
CORPORATION

B IREBRDF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International
Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 139 to 262, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

130 Annual Report F%%2023/24
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International Entertainment Corporation

Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of the non-current non-financial
assets

We identified the impairment assessment in relation to the non-current
non-financial assets located in the Republic of the Philippines (the
"Philippines’) allocated to the cash generating unit of hotel operations
(the "Hotel operation CGU") as a key audit matter because of the
significant judgements and estimates involved in management’s
assessment process. The Group has gross carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment of HK$121,909,000, right-of-use assets of
HKS$ 14,757,000 and corporate assets of HK$1,825,000 respectively relating
to the Hotel operation CGU, which are significant operating assets of the
Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the management assesses if there are
any indicators of potential impairment of the assets relating to the Hotel
operation CGU. If any impairment indicator exists, the management
assesses the recoverable amount of the Hotel operation CGU with
reference to the valuation prepared by an independent professional valuer
not connected to the Group (the “Valuer”) by income capitalisation
approach. As disclosed in Note 15 and Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management has concluded that there is no
additional provision nor reversal of impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets recognised in the profit or loss for the
year.

BYZHMBES

BERZER
BHEREFESFIMISRM (B EETE
AD((EBEFERYNDETEZ BARZETE
AEENEEEARSE [XBE LB RS S MK
WERAENE T Mo P E—TBL - REFE
SR AGW[BES A BETR (R
BFBUN BEKE YEETTATHEME
BEE - RMBE RPIMESHEZEERER
REEZEHWR/RMNERITHERE -

FREXER

FRREZFHEERERFINFTEHE  HAHD
REVMBHRRNBERRSEENSIH - BLERA
EERMELERGEVBRRRHABREE
TTRRER - R TSHELFRIEHEBFOER

FRBFERMEE ZRMETE

BMEREBANIEEELME ([FERE]) B
NEEBELERCEAEV(EELEERSE
SBN]) ZIERBIIESHEE ZBEFHHI A
—HEREREE RRAAEEEFGHERFIR
MEBEBRHE LG  SEEEREELEEREE
HEMNBEYE  BENISE FRBEEN
MEEEHE BEECZEALEEEE)ZER
T 4218 5 Bl £ 121,909,000 7 7T ~ 14,757,000 7T M
1,825,000 & JT ©

RERESHR  EREGTHRAEEERSE
TEUAMCEESDAEMAELERENSR °
FHEEMBETR REEEE2E—%HE &
B mEE 2 B FRMAER ((EE]) R
ABRMOEMREZ HENHEEEERSES
Bz A B S5 o s E MBS IRER M 15 R
0fHE BEEECHHERRBSMEDE B
5 Ne R DA B {55 PR R B E MO BRSINRL (B /B 1R 73 A =
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of the non-current non-financial
assets (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
the Hotel operation CGU included:

Discussing the impairment indicator of the Hotel operation CGU
with the management and inspecting the operating results and cash
flow forecast of the Group's hotel operation segment;

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions adopted in the
valuation, such as the discount rate, capitalisation rate, average
occupancy rate and average daily room rate, by comparing them
with the budget approved by the management, available market
data and the historical operating performances of the Group's hotel
operation segment.

Contingencies in relation to the tax disputes with the Bureau
of Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR")

We identified the assessment of the contingencies in relation to the tax
disputes with the BIR as a key audit matter due to significant management
judgements involved in assessing the probability of settling the amount of
potential tax disputes of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

As disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the tax
disputes with BIR for calendar years of 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2018 and
2019 amounted to approximately Peso 5 billions (equivalent to HK$670.7
million) in aggregate as at 30 June 2024. As disclosed in note 24,
approximately Peso 426 millions (equivalent to HKS57 millions) bank
balances of the Group has been garnished and withdrew by BIR during
2022 in relation to tax dispute for calendar year of 2015 and the Group has
recognized as tax recoverable. The uncertainties related to the ultimate
outcome and the details of the tax disputes with the BIR are set out in
notes 4, 12 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contingencies in relation to the tax disputes with the Bureau
of Internal Revenue in the Philippines (the “BIR") (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to evaluating the contingencies in relation
to the tax disputes with the BIR and the sufficiency of the relevant
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements included:

Obtaining and reviewing all relevant documents and
correspondences in relation to the tax disputes between the Group
and the BIR;

Evaluated the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the tax
and legal advisors and obtaining an understanding of their scope of
work and their terms of engagements;

Inspecting the written advices issued by the independent tax and
legal advisers of the Group to assess the appropriateness of the
management’s basis in determining the amount of contingent
liabilities and the basis in evaluating the outcome of the tax disputes;

Enquiring and challenging the basis of written advices of
independent tax and legal advisors of the Group to understand their
assessment of the tax disputes; and

Considering the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements as required by relevant HKFRSs.

Fair value measurement of investment properties

We have identified the fair value at date of change in use for the
investment properties located in the Philippines as a key audit matter due
to the significant management judgements and estimates adopted in the
fair value measurement of the investment properties.

As disclosed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
management estimated the fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$953,772,000 as at 9 May 2024, and transferred to
property, plant and equipment as its deemed cost.

BYZHMBES

FRREXSEIEE)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Independent external valuations were obtained in respect of the
investment properties in order to support the management’s estimation of
fair value. The valuation is dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgements including discount rate and
capitalisation rate in light of the current market condition.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s fair value measurement of
investment properties included:

Conducting in-depth discussions with management about the cash
flow projections used in the income approach calculation and
assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions and
critical judgement which affect the income approach calculation;

Assessing the appropriateness of valuation methodology;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of the Valuer
and obtaining an understanding of the Valuer's scope of work and
their terms of engagement; and

Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions, such as
discount rate and capitalisation rate based on our knowledge of the
business and the industry, in particular those relating to the cash
flow projection used by the income approach for the fair value
measurement.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practising Certificate number P05309

Hong Kong, 25 September 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHERER

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
BZE HE
—E_E —EC=4F
~NA=1+H ~NA=+H
LHEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
ftaF FHExT T T
Revenue WA 6(b) 229,786 207,219
Gaming tax and licensing fee BRI RE 10 (17,792) -
Cost of sales SHE A (79,564) (70,593)
Gross profit EH 132,430 136,626
Other income HAB WA 7 17,895 11,938
Other (loss)/gain, net Hih (518), W F5E 8 (15,506) 1,653
Change in fair value of financial assets at BRATFEFAEBRZENEE
fair value through profit or loss REEES 21 (723) (3,127)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities at BAVTEABR EREAR
fair value through profit or loss NEEEZH 33 1,385 (4,258)
Change in fair value of investment properties 1% & ¥ % A F{E & 16 (14,145) 2,962
Share of loss of associates DREEE R EBE 19 (4,090) (1,058)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMGHEERS (4,220) (137)
General and administrative expenses —MRAITH RS (204,639) (97,024)
Finance costs s E A 9 (70,633) (26,474)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrRELAT (B518), & F 10 (162,246) 21,101
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe, (FAx) 12 30,282 (2,819)
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

Year ended Year ended
30June 30 June
2024 2023
BZE H=
—E-F —T=F
~NA=T1H ~NA=+H
IHFEE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
Bt it FExT FET
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable RATHEE AEEFR
to the owners of the Company (E518), &7 (131,964) 18,282
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will ~ BT @EFHHBEIEFZ
not be reclassified to profit or loss: Hib 2w (E8), W
— Remeasurement of defined benefit — ENFEATENEMR
obligations 802 307
— Exchange differences arising on — B EBERERZIE
translation from functional currency to BREECIENZE
presentation currency (59,008) (7,528)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year Z~/A &l B AR E R
attributable to the owners of the Company 2mE(BB) Wa=ssE (190,170) 11,061
HK Cents HK Cents
AL &L
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to KABIER ANESEFIR
the owners of the Company (E518), /& F
Basic BN 14 (9.64) 134
Diluted e 14 (9.64) 134
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R R

At 30 June 2024
R-E-mFNA=1+H

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
—E-MmE —E-=F
ANA=TH ~NA=1+H
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
HaF FET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE L&A 15 1,069,582 141,409
Investment properties SE=CES 16 - 989,000
Loan receivables FEWE K 18 57,602 63,516
Intangible assets mERE 17 6,897 -
Interest in associates NN I 19 36,187 42,479
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 20 22,139 26,842
Restricted bank balances ZRRBRITETT 37(a) 411,027 -
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ E b EFRIE « & &
TE TR IE 23 104,092 32,464
1,707,526 1,295,710
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 4,716 1,152
Trade receivables U AR I8 22 1,398 14,340
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ E I EWGIE & K
TEfT 3RIE 23 35,209 27,420
Contract assets BREE 25(a) 291 545
Tax recoverable AT A IR 24 57,067 60,399
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAERZ
profit or loss TREE 21 4,481 5,302
Amounts due from associates i /NGB N 4,284 208
Fixed bank deposit EHRITIF 37(a) 91,855 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEGELES 37(a) 417,471 492,451
616,772 602,517
Total assets BERBE 2,324,298 1,898,227
Current liabilities mEta &
Trade payables FETRRIE 26 4,133 1,920
Other payables and accrued charges HMENRIERERTER 26 95,464 47,625
Promissory notes AR 37 441,291 416,312
Contract liabilities BHAE 25(b) 690 1,493
Lease liabilities HERE 20 2,894 2,742
Convertible bond R ES 33 56,149 -
600,621 470,092
Net current assets MBEEFE 16,151 132,425
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wa MR R

At 30 June 2024
R-ZEZmFENA=+H

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
111 -5 —E-=F
ANB=t1H NA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FHET
Non-current liabilities EREAaE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIERE 27 99,577 135,719
Other liabilities Htha’E 28 1,082 1,249
Lease liabilities HealE 20 27,869 32,560
Bank borrowing RITEE 32 578,360 -
Convertible bond Al E 5 33 = 51,648
706,888 221,176
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,016,789 1,206,959
EQUITY E
Equity attributable to owners of the Company N2 BRI B A FE(E
Share capital f& s 29 13,692 1,369,157
Share premium and reserves f& 17 % B M & 1,003,097 (162,198)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,016,789 1,206,959

HREIOE2AZEEVBEREENR S
“HHENA-tRBESEESHE YR NIE
ERREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 139 to 262 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2024 and were signed on its
behalf by:

Mr. HO Wong Meng Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE
HO Wong Meng %t &£ Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE £ 4
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARDERAEE
Share-based
Share Share Merger Other Exchange  compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserves reserves reserve profits Total
NRGHER
R& R EE AR G ERfi <HERE  REEX g
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
TER TEL TAL TEL TAL TAL TAL TER
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Hi#a) (Hitb) (Hi#c)
At T July 2022 WZB-_%+F-B 1369157 170,289 53022 (112,683) (332212) 5433 4289 1,195,898
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 18282 18282
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations ~ E#ifERERFIEL - - - - - - 307 307
Exchange differences arising on translation fom MY E BB E AR FIEHE
functional currency to presentation currency EEVERES - - - - (7528) - - (7528)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREANGLE - - - - (7529) - 18589 11,061
At30 June 2023 W_E-ZFXA=1H 1369157 170,289 53022 (112,683) (339,740) 5433 61481 1,206959
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (131,964) (131,964)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations ~~ EXTATEREEHIEE - - - - - - 802 802
Exchange differences arising on translation fom MY E BB E B2 FIEHE
functional currency to presentation currency EEVERES - - - - (59,008) - - (59,008)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEFBELE - - - - (59,008) - (131,162) (190,170)
Cancellation of share options (note 30) FHEERE (it 0) - - - - - (5,433) 5433 =
Capital reduction (rote 29) TRARIR (#i2 20) (1,355,465) - - - - - 1355465 -
At30 June 2024 R-Z-mEXA=1H 13,692 170,289 53,022 (112,683) (398,748) - 1,291,217 1,016,789
() Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the share capital  (a) AEEEGHFEBEAFEBERER AR (ERH
and share premium of Cyber On-Air Multimedia Limited whose shares were HARR ARG ) 2 B’ R 15 4 (B B R R AR
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of share capital BEESHEMBETRACEHEMEM 258 - 818
issued by the Company pursuant to the group reorganisation. Cyber On-Air HBEBERARENRBESENF=ZA=+—
Multimedia Limited was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2008. HIEFEHE -
(b)  The other reserves represent net effect of discount on acquisition of subsidiaries (b)) ~ HMfEFERREE " TETNE=F=+—HBHE_Z
and premium on acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries from a subsidiary —tF =A==+ —BHLEFEINRAERFNEA
of the then intermediate parent arising during the year ended 31 March 2008 and Z—RKWEBARWENE R REE 2 TR Rk Eﬁ W
31 March 2017 respectively. BAREIMEREE 2 REBZFXE -
() Share-based compensation reserve comprises the value of the unexercised share  (c) AR REM 2 fE K ERERIEM 3185 AR

option granted by the Company and recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 3.18. On 8 August
2023, the unexercised share options were cancelled and the balance of share-
based payments reserve of HK$5,433,000 was transferred to retained profits.

DEBERNRTERMNSTREERZAARRHZ
MATEBREZEE - R _=F N \ANH "
RITEBBREC WL MUARD BERZ R
BHE R 54330008 TEEESREBAT -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEHTRER

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE —F_MFENA=1THIEFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
BZE H=
—E-E —E-=F
ANA=1H ~NA=+H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEH
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrELAT (B51B), & F (162,246) 21,107
Adjustments for: BTIIEE EL A% :
Interest income MEHA (15,546) (10,206)
Interest expenses FIEFX 70,633 26,474
(Reversal of)/allowance for credit losses for FEUR BRIE & E A FE U SRIE 2
trade and other receivables, net EEEE (BERR) EFE (1,765) 3,406
Change in fair value of financial assets at BAVEFABR EMEE
fair value through profit or loss NEEEZH 723 3,127
Change in fair value of financial liabilities at BEAVEFABESECEMEE
fair value through profit or loss NEEED (1,385) 4258
Change in fair value of investment properties HEMERNTFEER 14,145 (2,962)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y- BERERETE 39,899 36,231
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAREENE 3,338 4,344
Amortisation of intangible asset E A EEH 3,586 -
Share of loss of associates DB E R A BB 4,090 1,058
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) fE 5 E1E, (Was) F5 15,506 (1,653)
Operating cash flows before movements in RETEEESETAT 2
working capital KEBHSME (29,022) 85,178
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BFEGgmMm, md (3,740) 80
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FE U BR TE R A () 15,110 (3,865)
Increase in other receivables, HMEWHIE ek
deposits and prepayments FE A FRIEIE N (58,160) (97,268)
Increase in amounts due from associates JE Bt 4 A B FRIEE AN (3,550) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEfFBRIEIE A0, CRL ) 2,372 (151)
Increase in other payables and accrued charges EAth JE ST B K BT & A 0 46,441 22,683
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities  (FARR),/REKEEEH 2 RS (30,549) 6,657
Income taxes paid BT - -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (AR),/ REKLEEBH 2 REIFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (30,549) 6,657
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
BE HE
—E-mF —E=F
ANA=1+H ~NA=t+H
IEFE 1EFfE
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
k23 FHExT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES "EEE
Placement of restricted bank balances ETXRAIEITESR (411,027) -
Placement of time deposit BEFEHFER (91,855) -
Interest received B U B 13,529 8,456
Additions to property, plant and equipment //J\\§%¥ B K 3% (76,472) (1,235)
Addition to intangible assets RNEBEEREE (7,195) -
Repayments of loan receivable from an B N REERKER
associate 2,410 -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM B,/ REEE sz
INVESTING ACTIVITIES & 558 (570,610) 7,221
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE 37(b)
Interest paid ERFE (36,018) (247)
Proceed from bank borrowing RITEEFSHIA 604,681 -
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEEZER - (30,619)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBBZEN (5,860) (6,973)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) RE/ (AR mEEs
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R FE 562,803 (37,839)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBELFEY
EQUIVALENTS B (38,356) (23,961)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXEY s &
RATE CHANGES (36,624) 4,308
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REPNzRERRESEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 492,451 512,104
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZBRERRESEEY
END OF YEAR
represented by bank balances and cash WRTTHEF RBE 2R 37(a) 417,471 492,451
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

1.

GENERAL

International Entertainment Corporation (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange’). The addresses of the registered office and the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong are
disclosed in “Corporate Information” section to this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) were principally engaged in
hotel operation in Metro Manila in the Republic of the Philippines
(the “Philippines”) (the “"Hotel Operation Business”), leasing of
properties equipped with entertainment equipment at the hotel
complex of the Group to PAGCOR up to handover of gaming
business to the Group and commencement of gaming business as
operator under Provisional License (as defined in Note 5) (the
"Gaming Operation Business’) and live poker events (the “Live
Events Business’) in Macau. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in Note 38.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new and amendments to HKFRSs that
are effective for the current year

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two model Rules

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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BIFRIREER R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new and amendments to HKFRSs that
are effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “Significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the "Practice Statement’) is also amended to illustrate how
an entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The following amendments to HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s operations, have been issued but are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback'

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'
Supplier Finance Arrangements'

Lack of Exchangeability?

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
° The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined
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International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation

specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should
not be affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within 12 months.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
ZECNENA=FHIEFE

)
2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with
which an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Covenants which are required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that right
exists at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments,
together with the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. If an entity applies the 2020
Amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the 2022
Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.
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International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE45 R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

As at 30 June 2024, the Group's right to defer settlement for
bank borrowing is subject to compliance with certain financial
ratios only after the reporting period. Such bank borrowing
was classified as non-current as the Group expected to meet
such ratios. Upon the application of the 2022 Amendments,
such bank borrowing will still be classified as non-current as
the covenants which the Group is required to comply with
only after the reporting period do not affect whether that right
exists at the end of the reporting date.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
aims to provide greater consistency in presentation of the
income and cash flow statements, and more disaggregated
information. The standard will change how companies present
their results on the face of the income statement and disclose
information in the notes to the financial statements. Certain
‘non-GAAP’ measures — management performance measures
(MPMs) — will now form part of the audited financial
statements. There will be three new categories of income and
expenses, two defined income statement subtotals and one
single note on management-defined performance measures.
The effective date is 1 January 2027 and early adoption is
permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 18 has no impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance in foreseeable future, but has
impact on presentation of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

RINFET RICMEST BB RS 4
B (TEBMBREER) (&)

EEMAENREROHTREHE
AIERBMEREER (&)
EREEERF 15 (15TX) EES
BEREAHREREBRIEESS
ZECEF) BT ([ E=F
FIEFTE ) REBEERE 15551
BREZHREERE (I5TXK) (=
ZZFEFTAR)) (B)
NZTE_ENA=1+0 ~EBE
BESBITEENEANENRERE
ENAATYBEENBER T AT
- AR ASBETEHENZSLE
ZIRITIBEEW DB RIERE - NER
ZEZFBEIARE  RBITEED
BN BAEIERS  JTHEINAEREE
ARMEREBETHNEE T E%E
FMRBEBPEREEEFE -

BB BHEERE 18 HHRA
23R K E
BEMBREERNE 18RI B MK
EIERFEEERTES —BIEMK
ANBRERBREI FEADOEF
ZHERF B R R E R A REK 2
FIEZRGE RN HMRM T REEHR
HETIHRARGFEAIFE —EE
BREMER —RBENEERV KR
RO—#n REEEREMNBERIE
BERHR=EMBARFEER - M
RN EWAREK SN — A B
g AMARAZE_+F-A—RH "
AEAFREREM - ARBESEY
EREEMBREERF 18R EAE
[ 80 B A5 AR R R AT 1B R A R
BYE BHRAREREMBEEE
SN2 T AERE -

Annual Report 4§ 2023/24 151



International Entertainment Corporation

B IRER RN A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2024 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group's interest in associates.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Philippine Peso
(“Peso”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company’s major subsidiaries operate. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars ("HK$") as the directors of the Company
(the "Directors”’) consider that it is an appropriate
presentation for a company listed in Hong Kong and for the
convenience of the shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.4

3.5

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.6

3.7

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except
that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHER®)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 3.7 Y¥ BERRE#E)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
term of the land leases on which
the buildings are located, or
their estimated useful lives

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the remaining
term of the lease of the land
leases on which the buildings
are located, or their estimated

useful lives
Machinery 3-15 years
Furniture, fixtures and 3-15years
equipment
Entertainment equipment 5-15 years
Computer hardware 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset'’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.8

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure and
borrowing costs incurred during the construction period and
up to the date of completion of construction for the
investment properties. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at its fair value. The Group's
property interest held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes is classified and accounted
for as investment property and is measured using the fair
value model. Gain or loss arising from change in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If the investment property becomes an owner-occupied
property because its use has been changed as evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation, the fair value of the
investment property at the date of change in use is considered
as the deemed cost for subsequent accounting under
“property, plant and equipment”.
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BE T _MENA=THIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXEFHE®R)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.9 Leases 3.9 &g
The Group as a lessee FEBERRBEA
All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated FIEHENERGEUBRARAE
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease MeREREEEREERE -
liabilities.
Right-of-use asset EHEELE

The right-of-use asset is initially recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability);

(i)  any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv)  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.9 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the

commencement date of the lease are considered to be lease

payments:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

fixed lease payments less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liabilities by:

U]

(i)

(iif)

increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liabilities;

reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised
in-substance fixed lease payments.

158 Annual Report F%%2023/24

3.

BEAEHEEK B

39 HE#)
FEBERRHEA (E)
HERE (&)
THREHRS A EERE B B H R
ST 2 R E E R REFT R SR AR
AHEEM:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

& & M & FOR A W &

BE

PSS P ESIEFLE S
35 RN B 82 %
SEA TR |

EBEARBRGEEERESR
7S 2 BROR

HEABASEEEITERER
B ZBREEERZITEE:
&

fied 1 BA S MR ARFE A TT (IR 24
RILHE - RIPHE Z EIR R -

WG BB - AEESEB TS
Rt BHEEEE -

(0

(i)

(iif)

EMEEEARREBEREZ
PSS

HMAOREEARBRE EL 2
BN R

EFAEREENRREME
B EEN AR EEE
EHEMNRZIER °



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE45 R A &)
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHER®)

INFORMATION (Continued)
3.9 Leases (Continued)

39 HE#E)

The Group as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from
the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the remaining lease
term.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.10 Intangible asset

3.11

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 years.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHEEK#E
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

3.1 &I A (&)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost
or at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHEEK#E
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

3.1 2RI A (A

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") on trade receivables, contract assets and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHEEK#E
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

3.1 &I A (&)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed
on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

EHEE (E)

TREEZ B ERR (&)
AEECERTBMBEREEDF9
SECE EBRKWERREGNEELZ
BERE YEREBEFEHANTES
EEBBRAEENEREER - A5HE
EERBAEERBEEEBELR
AHEZBEERE . WK EEH AL
ZEEAERREREEREHE

BEBEFEREEMNS  BHEES
EHEEREARBEEEERFE -4
- EEEEUREERBRBAZEM
BREBRFEMNANIAMEEEHES

b

go

EEmTAZEERRESENS
FERARBREIZ NG - AEE G B
Pratfh ST ARKE BH2EZOR
REYIRER BN ZZORR -

ETEHFER AKERSR T
BARTAEEEOFEHN  MERAT
KA EAREEEERE (flan: &
RERMWFER)) TAAKEEHX
NEEEERET  XMZEHEERD
i@ H - NEEE RS EAIERK
BEEREUEHN  BRAELER
K B AR A 2 B KA HE 71 Bl A]
BZAEER -

BFeMTAZEE  EEAREE
BB ANE R IR E B S R R A T -
EAENSBELELETR ERTA
A RS & R i R (D140 8 3K A
RIEERBRFTR) 518 o

Annual Report %%2023/24 163



International Entertainment Corporation

B REER R A]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—T_MFENA=1THIFEF

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In particular, the following information, but not limited to, is
taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet
its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition.
Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHER®)
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

3.1 2RI A (#E)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or contract asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and promissory note are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process and upon non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both the
debt and conversion option components are classified
separately into their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
variable amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an embedded derivative liability.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the debt component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation
of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

In subsequent periods, the debt component of the convertible
bond is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The embedded derivatives are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group's own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bond using the
effective interest method.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHEEK#E
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.11 Financial instruments (Continued)

3.1 &I A (&)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

When the Group exchanges with an existing lender one debt
instrument into another one with substantially different terms,
such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial
modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received and discounted using the original effective
rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. If the modification is not substantial, the
difference between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability
immediately before the modification; and (2) the present value
of the cash flows immediately after modification is recognised
in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHER®)
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.12 Inventories 3.12 FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

3.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Room revenue

Room revenues are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer
during the stay in the hotel. The services are charged at a fixed
rate with no significant variable consideration. The Group
recognised revenue in the amount to which the entity has the
right to invoice, which is representative to the value service
being delivered. Invoices are issued upon check out and
payable immediately. No significant financing component
existed.

Food and beverages

The Group provides food and beverages service in the hotel.
The Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the
entity has the right to invoice, which is representative to the
service being delivered. Invoices for food and beverage service
are issued on upon customer check-out and payable
immediately. No significant financing component existed.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHEEK#E
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.13 Revenue recognition (Continued)

3.13 WAER (&)

Other hotel service income

Revenues from other hotel services are recognised over time
as the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer. The services are charged at a fixed rate with no
significant variable consideration. The Group recognised
revenue in the amount to which the entity has the right to
invoice, which is representative to the value of services being
delivered. No significant financing component existed.

Live event revenue

The Group generates income from organising live event poker
events. The revenue are recognised over time as the benefits
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer. The
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which the entity
has the right to invoice, which is representative to the service
being delivered.

Casino revenue

Casino revenue from gaming tables and electronic gaming
machines represents net house takings arising from casino
operations and is recognised in profit or loss at a point in time
when stakes are received by the casino and the amounts are
paid out to the players. Customers paid in advance before
they wager.

Other income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.

H B 5 R WA

H A 5 RFE PTG WA R — BB A
MR REBE PR Z W HEFER
e RBREETERNE WEEK
AERE - TEERARARERS
BALBRREZEE  ERERARMNZ
RIGEE BBEEAREKD °

LB EE W
AEEBEREERGERTHELK
A AR —BFEAER - RES
BEER BB W HFEN 2 o AN EHE
RUARERAERFALER 28 -
HARKRMRMN 2 BRH

ek
KERRLEFEYHRESREER
BREGEENERBIEAEE  IRX
— BRSNS R A E R AEE
XN EREBDEAER - FTFPRT
JERITESE AT o

Htt g A

A B AT EE A B A B BRI 0% (8
AEmEE B FHRARZMGTR
KRS WAEREBRESEREERE
MR 2 B R) RERR o pLIR B SHAC AR 5T
EAYENREENECSREEN
FERMNEXERRNZEEZREAR
3o

Annual Report %%2023/24 169



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE475 R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated

statement of financial position include:

(@)

cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

3.15 Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHEEK#E
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.15 Income taxes (Continued)

3.15 P88t (&)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
investments in associates, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

BEREMIARGAMBRRPEERA
B BR B HE A B SR B B (R AR
HEABRZEENBERAERERE
RV R -

EREMABE - RUMERRRE R
EHER - BERAEE—RHUME
T?Dfﬁﬁﬁﬁf%%ﬁﬁﬁw HE LA 7 R AR 7]

RBERVEANNSZENIRE
BEBBAERZBRBR - X
R (RBEHEIN IR ERRANA
NABABMNZRHZEERAEBE
AEREZE ERXZTE8HESL
FRM R A RS B E R
AEECHBEERABETTHER

RBARIRERREERNRIRE Y
HEERTEREZESERBELR
HEE MU AREEREIES B BT
EE 2D BERBEBETRAERN
Al R AR E BRI c ERZ FIRE
B IRE R EREAEA ZIRIE
ﬁﬁé? THLATT 8E 18 B B S FE AR 7
2 7 TR EF NG AER -

Hﬁ%mTﬁ%X%@%ﬁmo

L%Rlﬁéﬁzﬁéﬁﬁﬁ\aﬁ&%,ﬁﬁfﬁﬁu
R YHREETHARER
S & SR 1L BN A] ﬁi{HﬁZ@’i\ﬁEﬂ WO E
o

Annual Report %%2023/24 171



International Entertainment Corporation

B REER R A]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—T_MFENA=1THIFEF

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.15 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
in the relevant jurisdictions that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

172 Annual Report %% 2023/24

3.

EXE

3.15

SR (&)

Eﬁ S (&)
BERBEEERBGENRREHEE
BAEEER A ERANCEMLER

FEEM K (KRR - REHE

BREEEEXREESRPEZHRE

FTE -

ELHBREREEZTERRAS
BRI RE BEAE R ARE SHE
BHEERABREENTAMER
ZHFRR -

ERETCTERENASHEMBEE
BMEzZ—RAEBOIMER  BER
BMELRBEEBGTERF 4055
EMERIERAFEIKRE - FRIFHET
B SARFRENEZELER
ReBERHmE A RRERENEZ
EREVMEMERZREFE - B
BYMERTIHE XN EERERREA
RYEMBE 2B KLEN =M
FEBHEZEBEAARTER A
RS EHES -

Eﬂiﬁ& % EE/Q\TE\J/;E Ewu"



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE45 R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXRGHBE#E
INFORMATION (Continued)
3.16 Foreign currencies 3.16 /M4

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (i.e. foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.17 Employee benefits

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Retirement benefit costs in Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees in Hong Kong who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme. Prior to the MPF Scheme being
effective, the Group did not have any pension arrangements
for its employees.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHEEK#E

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.17 Employee benefits (Continued) 317 BRER®H (&)

Retirement benefit costs in the Philippines

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contribution. Contributions are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
where applicable.

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur.

Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained profits and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the period to the net defined benefit obligations or assets.
Retirement benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
The Group presents the retirement benefit costs (other than
remeasurement) in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.
The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligations.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.18 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the options at the
date of grant is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the share-based
compensation reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted. As long as
all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are
satisfied. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to
achieve a market vesting condition.

When the option is exercised, the amount recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve is transferred to share
premium account. When the option lapses or cancels, the
amount recognised in the share-based compensation reserve
is released directly to retained profits.

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its investments in subsidiaries, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets and
interest in associates to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. BEXGHER®)
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

3.19 S MEERE (&)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of time value of money is
material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortization
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with HKAS 37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.21 Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

U]
(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a party, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.21 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates and
assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:
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International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected
to be utilised by the Group. The Group reviews their estimated useful
lives based on factors that include technological changes, the
existing circumstances, prospective economic utilisation as well as
physical condition of the assets on a regular basis. The results of the
operations of the Group could be affected by changes in these
estimates brought about by the changes in the factors mentioned.
The management of the Group regularly reviews these factors in
determining the estimated useful lives of the assets.

A significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in these assets would result in a
change to the estimated useful lives to reflect the changed pattern.
A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the assets would
decrease the depreciation period of the assets and increase
depreciation provided to write off the cost of assets, while an
increase in the estimated useful lives of the assets, opposite impact
on depreciation period and depreciation would be resulted.

Impairment of non-current non-financial assets

Non-current non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs of disposal calculations. The
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use calculations; (i) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in assessing the recoverable amount,
including cash flow projections, discount rates etc.; and (iv)
appropriate determination of cash generating units and allocation of
related expected future cashflows; Changing the assumptions
selected and judgements made by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations.

A more detailed information in relation to the impairment
assessment of these assets are disclosed in Note 15.

4.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Investment properties

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of
investment properties. Note 16 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of investment properties. The fair
value of investment properties at date of change in use was
HK$953,772,000 (2023: HK$989,000,000) as set out in Note 16.

Income tax disputes

Certain subsidiary of the Company operating in the Philippines
currently has significant tax disputes with BIR. The ultimate outcome
of the tax disputes cannot be presently determined. The estimate of
potential additional tax liabilities of the Group in respect of those tax
disputes as at 30 June 2024 was set out in note 12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROVISIONAL LICENSE

On 27 September 2023, the Company’s subsidiaries — Marina
Square Properties, Inc. (“MSPI") and New Coast Leisure Inc. (‘"NCLI")
and PAGCOR entered into a provisional license agreement pursuant
to which PAGCOR has granted the provisional license (the
“Provisional License”) to MSPI and NCLI or any one of them
("Licensee”) to establish and operate a casino and the development
of an integrated resort in the City of Manila, the Philippines. PAGCOR
shall issue the regular casino gaming license (the “Regular Casino
Gaming License”) for the project upon (i) completion of the
establishment and operation of the casino and the development of
an integrated resort in the City of Manila; and (ii) upon approval by
PAGCOR of the Licensee’s compliance with the implementation plan
in relation to the actual total project cost. The effectivity or term of
the Provisional License and the Regular Casino Gaming License shall
be co-terminus with the franchise of PAGCOR which shall be
effective from the date of the provisional license agreement until 11
July 2033. Further details of the terms and commitments under the
Provisional License are included in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to
make strategic decisions. The chief operating decision-maker has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is engaged
in business activities from which the Group may earn revenue and
incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the internal
management reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order to allocate
resources and assess performance of the segment.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—T_MFENA=1THIFEF

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.

The executive directors have determined that the Group has the

following reportable segments:

—  the "Hotel Operation” segment represents the operation of —
hotel business in the Philippines;

— the “Gaming Operation” segment represents leasing of —

properties equipped with entertainment equipment at the
hotel complex of the Group in the Philippines to PAGCOR with
participation in PAGCOR's casino operation up to takeover of

gaming business by the Group and commencement of

gaming business as operator under Provisional License;

DERERE (&)
WITEEETAEEBAUTAZ

F5 -

(M8 ¥ 2715 9 30 8 M PAGCOR H 1 A<
EENFEREBESAEERNRAR
iﬂﬁ‘“ﬁz%%I,/\PAGCORmﬁ%%

CHEASEBEEBEVEBRRIR
%Fﬁuuﬁfﬁé'.'ému&@Fﬁ%fﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁhﬁ Z4
&

—  the “Live Events” segment represents the operation of live — [REEH]OHELERSER T
poker events business. ES X
(a) Business segment (a) ¥BEHI
Segment information about these reportable segments is BBEZER 2R 2o BELZ
presented below: PN
Year ended 30 June 2024 BE-Z-_MEAA=THLEE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
BEEE BEEE BigEE &E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER TER TERT
Revenue — external WA — 4R 59,832 169,954 - 229,786
Segment results NEEE (27,710) (59,136) (635) (87,481)
Unallocated other income Ao BEAMUA 13,746
Exchange loss i 5 B (8,714)
Change in fair value of financial BRTEFAERZ
assets at FVTPL ERHEERTEED (723)
Change in fair value of financial BRTEFAERZ
liabilities at FVTPL ERABLATERD 1,385
Share of loss of associates A R AEE (4,090)
Auditor's remuneration ZEMB £ (3,100)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {# A EE & =
Amortisation of intangible asset & E# (3,586)
Finance costs HBER (31,439)
Unallocated expenses AOEHAZ (38,244)
Loss before taxation forthe year ~ F AT AT E B (162,246)
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2024

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interest in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory notes
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities
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A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BZE T _MFENA=1THIEFE
6. ERERS (&)
(@) XHHE(E)
R-ZE-WmFEARA=+H

Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
BEEE BEEE B5EE me
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT TET TERT
221,761 1,736,925 17,097 1,975,783
298,154
4,481
36,187
9,693
2,324,298
73,797 721,653 2,520 797,970
441,291
56,149
12,099
1,307,509
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE —F_MFENA=1THIEFE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2024

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Amortisation of intangible
asset

Addition to property,
plant and equipment

(Reversal)/provision for
expected credit losses

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of
financial liabilities at FVTPL

Share of loss of associates

Interest income

Income tax credit

nE - BER

REIE
fERERE

e

BREESE

RNEME  BE

REE

BHEREER

(BERE) BE

RENEL

ATERH

BATEARRZ
SRAEATES

BATEHARREZ
SREEAFERD

DEBER
MEKA
FEBES

AlEE

Hotel
Operation
BEEE
HK$'000
TER

22,837

2,986

18,904

(1,863)

(35)
(1,422)

6. DEPEE ®)
EBKDE(E)

(a)

Gaming
Operation
BREE
HK$000
THET

17,042

352

36,745

40

14,145

(1,803)
(28,860)

Ht&EH

BE-ZE-_mEANA=1+HLEE

Live
Events
RigEY
HK$'000
THET

Unallocated Consolidated

AAE "e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TRET
20 39,899

- 3,338

3,586 3,586
123 55,772

58 (1,765)

- 14,145

723 723
(1,385) (1,385)
4,090 4,090
(13,708) (15,546)
- (30,282)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Business segment (Continued)

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—ZE—WFENA=FTHILFE

6. DEPEWE #)
(a) EXKDZ (&)

Year ended 30 June 2023 BE-_Z-_=FAXA=1+HLFE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
BIEEE BReE RigEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TAET FTAET FHET FET
Revenue — external WA —9h R 73677 133,542 - 207,219
Segment results DEEE (13511) 74247 1) 60,325
Unallocated other income RO FEAMUA 8427
Exchange gain B 5 s 1,920
Change in fair value of financial BRFEFAERZ
assets at FVTPL SREELTER (3127)
Change in fair value of financial BATEF AR
liabilities at FVTPL tREBEATEE (4258)
Share of loss of associates aR(at i A=l/NGI) E (1,058)
Auditor's remuneration ZEE S (1,730)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {FFEEENE (1,003)
Amortisation of intangible asset B EESH -
Finance costs UBER (22,739)
Unallocated expenses AofeAE (15,656)
Profit before taxation for the year & I BR i A &2 F 21,101
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segment (Continued)

At 30 June 2023

ASSETS
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Bank balances and cash
Financial assets at FVTPL

Interest in associates
Others

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities
Promissory notes
Convertible bond
Others

Consolidated total liabilities
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6. EREREG (&)

(a)

Hotel
Operation
LB

HK$'000
FHT

285,369

65,368

KB oER(E)
R-ZBZ=%XA=+H
Gaming Live
Operation Events  Consolidated
BrEE BRZEE Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FET
1,222,115 16,781 1,524,265
320,753
5302
42479
5428
1,898,227
143,444 2,202 211,014
416,312
51,648
12,294
691,268
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segment (Continued)

Other information

Year ended 30 June 2023

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Amortisation of intangible
asset

Addition to property,
plant and equipment

Provision for expected credit
losses

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL

Change in fair value of
financial liabilities at FVTPL

Share of loss of associates

Interest income

Income tax expense/(credit)

UEN Y
ERREERE
wAEE
FENE BRERR
EHEEE RS
BENE DTES
BT EH ABRS 2
SHAEATEED
AT EH ABSZ
SHABATES
SEBE R TR

MEWA
st/ (%)

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

6. DEPEWE #)
(a) EXKDZ (&)

Htt&#

BE-E-=Z=FEXA=1HLEE

Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events  Unallocated  Consolidated
BELE BY2E B5ED ADE Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER TER
24,954 11,272 - 5 36,231
2,986 355 - 1,003 4,344
4,015 12,588 - 7 16,610
2407 459 - 540 3,406
- (2,962) - - (2962)
- - - 3127 3,127
_ - - 4258 4258
- - - 1,058 1,058
(52) (2,149) - (8,005) (10,200)
3,040 (221) - - 2,819
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEBHRE (@)
(b) Disaggregation of revenue (b) WADHF
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary TREIIREFEMETS  TE2EmMm
geographical market, major products and service lines and KR8 B A RIRAEREE D F 2
timing of revenue recognition. The table also includes a WA o TRIFET D FRALEREE
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group's A 2WHEE 2 EER o

reportable segments.

Year ended 30 June 2024 BE-_Z-_mWEANA=THLEE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events Consolidated
BEEE BEEE B EH me
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET TERT

Primary geographical market *EHE %
The Philippines FREE 59,832 169,954 - 229,786

Timing of revenue recognition KA B2 R [E

Transferred over time FERF 82
Room revenue B EBA 42,198 - - 42,198
Food and beverages B8 16,153 = = 16,153
Other hotel service income H )85 BRSO 1,481 - - 1,481
59,832 - - 59,832
Transferred at a point in time RE IR #EE
Casino operations HineE - 48,964 - 48,964
Other source of income BMRAKR
Leasing of investment properties HERBRERELZ
equipped with entertainment REWEHEETT
equipment for gaming R EE
operation - 120,990 - 120,990
59,832 169,954 - 229,786
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

6. DERERSEG (&)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (b) WADH (&)
Year ended 30 June 2023 BE-_Z-_=FX<A=1THLEFE
Hotel Gaming Live
Operation Operation Events  Consolidated
BEEE BREE BI5ES Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FHET FET
Primary geographical market £ EH [E i 45
The Philippines FEE 73,677 133,542 - 207,219
Timing of revenue recognition W A 52 B &
Transferred over time BERF I #E
Room revenue EREBA 49,747 - - 49,747
Food and beverages B 22,269 - - 22,269
Other hotel service income H At JE RS UA 1,661 - - 1661
73677 - - 73677
Other source of income Bt A KR
Leasing of investment properties T & 2% A IRGEL 5 2
equipped with entertainment REWEHEET
equipment for gaming BReE
operation - 133,542 - 133,542
73677 133,542 - 207,219

All room revenue, food and beverages and other hotel services
income are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS15, the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

P Bo TR ~ B8R B At JE AR 7%
WAL BB —F AT - RIBFEM
BHREEAE1SHAEST  DEEER
BITAHNRZERDTTIARKE -
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DERERE (#)
(c) Geographicinformation () HWEEHR

The following table provides a geographical analysis of the
Group's non-current assets other than financial instruments,
deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets
("Specified non-current assets”).

TREHRASEERESHTA  ET
MIREE RBERBENEZE (1 EFR
BEE]) I EREEE ZIE DT

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R-B-ME RKR-T_=F
~B=1+H ~NA=1+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET T

The Philippines JERE 1,231,887 1,199,720
Others Hth 7,010 10
1,238,897 1,199,730

(d) Information about major customers (d EBEXEEFZESR

Included in the revenue generated from gaming operation BEEEDBEE 2HAD
segment of approximately HK$120,990,000 (2023: 120,990,000 L (Z & = = & :

HK$133,542,000) were contributed by the Group's largest
customer and the aggregate revenue from this customer
represented approximately 53% (2023: 64%) of the total
revenue of the Group. There are no other single customer
contributing over 10% of the Group's total revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—ZE—WFENA=FTHILFE

OTHER INCOME 7. HMA
2024 2023
—E-WEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Interest income B A 15,546 10,206
Sundry income (Note) MU (K1 aE) 2,349 1,732
17,895 11,938
Note: Bt -
Sundry income mainly includes rental income of approximately HK$747,000 (2023: MIBRAZTEREREERINBATREHRLHE
HK$954,000) from leasing of insignificant portion of the Group’s spare hotel units NBAFEBEEMEARAEMESHESRAL
as office, currently classified as property, plant and equipment, to external parties 7470007870 (ZE = =4F : 95400078 7C) * BB H1E
on a short-term basis. B - REREE -
OTHER (LOSS)/GAIN, NET 8. Hfth (1) W& BE
2024 2023
—E-mF —ZT-=%F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET T
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain &5 (F518) W F5 (15,506) 1,653
FINANCE COSTS 9. HHBEER
2024 2023
g a1 3 —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest on promissory notes A HEERF B 25,553 18316
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEERE 36,018 247
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 3,176 3519
Interest on convertible bond ARRES B 5,886 4392
70,633 26474
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. FRIRAT (B54R) & F)

2024 2023
—E_OF .
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHTT
(Loss)/profit before taxation has been arrived  BRES AT (E518) /B FIE2 K~
at after charging/(crediting): (Bt A) T3&IE -
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) Bx®e (FaEin) 5,223 4914
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments): B T A (TRFBFZEZHHS) :
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 81,322 28,353
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFET B R 929 562
Total staff costs BE IR 87,474 33,829
Depreciation e
— Depreciation of property, plant and —WE BERREITE
equipment (included in cost of sales (T ASHE KA A
and general and administrative —MRRITHF)
expenses) (Note 15) (Krax15) 39,899 36,231
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — ERAREENE
(included in general and administrative GTA—RETBEAXZ)
expenses) (Note 20) (KiaE20) 3,338 4344
Total depreciation i1t 43,237 40,575
Amortisation of intangible asset (included in B EE##H GT A —B &
general and administrative expenses) THRAXR) (Mit17)
(Note 17) 3,586 -
Change in fair value of financial assets at BAVEFABSRZEMEE
FVTPL (Note 21) NEZE (Mat21) 723 3,127
Change in fair value of financial liabilities at ERAFEFAEZRZEREBE
FVTPL (Note 33) NFEEH (K iF33) (1,385) 4,258
Change in fair value of investment WEYHE N FEEE
properties (Note 16) (Krzt16) 14,145 (2,962)
Auditor's remuneration 1% ELRD BN &
— Audit services — BB 3,510 2017
— Non-audit service — EEER 524 210
Cost of inventories recognised as expense WRAERI 2 FENAK 5,544 330
Short-term lease payment EHRENR 1,723 62
(Reversal)/provision for expected TH&BEZEHREEESE
credit losses of (BE), B
— Trade receivables — FEUERIE (2,294) 2,432
— Other receivables — H AU sRIB 529 974
Gaming tax and licensing fee (included in BRI RE
cost of sales) (Gt ASHEKA) 17,792 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 11. EFEMEMNFALESFHALT
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

2024 2023
—EINF —E-=F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FE&T FAT
Directors’ fees ER 0k
— Executive directors —HITESE 2,208 2,208
— Independent non-executive Directors — BT INTES 720 675
Basic remuneration, allowances and EARFB - ERL &
benefits in kind BV = 2,279 2,017
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RORRE T Bk 16 14
5,223 4914
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2023 six) ENSENAZ(CE-_=F: %) E=
directors were as follows: ZFaZMewT :
Year ended 30 June 2024 BE_Z-_NEANAZ=Z1+HLEE
Basic
remuneration, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
HEARHH -
h= 3953 EREF
we EYR= -GN et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T F&T FET FHET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng 5t 4 1,848 1,079 8 2,935
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon
TABLANTE 5 4 360 1,200 8 1,568
Independent non-executive B IEHTES
directors
Mr. LAU Ka Ho BREEE 240 - - 240
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai BB A4 240 - - 240
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai RIER LA 240 - - 240
2,928 2,279 16 5,223
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

11. EEMERFTEREEHFAT @)

Year ended 30 June 2023 BE_ZS-_=ZHANA=Z1HLEE
Basic Retirement
remuneration, benefits
allowances and scheme
Fees benefitsinkind  contributions Total
BERE -
R R RKAE A
e BV FE R HEt
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET FHET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. HO Wong Meng HO Wong Meng %t 4= 1,848 789 7 2,644
Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE Aurelio Jr. Dizon
TABLANTE %¢ 4= 360 1,228 7 1,595
Independent non-executive B Ik HTES
directors
Mr. LAU Ka Ho BRZRE 240 - - 240
Mr. CHENG Hong Wai BIER(E A 240 - - 240
Mr. CHUNG Dan'’ EREAT 185 - - 185
Mr. LEUNG Wai Tai? RIERFHE? 10 - - 10
2,883 2,017 14 4914
Notes: Bisr

! The director was passed away on 7 April 2023.

| REEHN_T_="FMOA+HEE-

2 The director was appointed on 16 June 2023. ? REERN T _=FXAtBEZF-

Five highest paid individuals HEBREHFAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, AEEBRERERFALTH ME(ZE2E_=
two (2023: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments F-MB)ATRAARAES - A& 25T
was included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the ANt ER c HBp=% (2=
remaining three (2023: three) individuals, of which one (2023: one) of F=R)AT(ER—RB(ZEZ=F:—

individual was senior management of the Group, were as follows:

Z)ANERAEESHEEAR) B2

2024 2023

—ESE-E —E=HF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

F&T FET

Basic salaries and allowances HAFH & MERL 4,668 3,681
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIEEIH R 54 54
4,722 3,735
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 11. EEMERAAEESFHFAT (@)
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) HEERSHF AL #)
The emoluments were within the following bands: esELmT -
2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
HKS$NIl to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 70 2 1,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T 2 1,500,000 7% 7T 2 1
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T 2 2,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 7T £ 2,500,000 75 7T 1 -
3 3
The discretionary or performance related incentive payments are W5 BRI RS KL EREE E
determined by reference to the individual performance of the HlEE ZRINETE °

employees of the Group.

During the year, no emolument was paid by the Group to the FA AEETEREETIAAEaHA
Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as inducement to THEMATZNME - ERMERE
join or upon joining of the Group or as compensation for loss of SN INBER R EBME BHE_T
office. No director waived any emoluments during the years ended ZHERZZEZ=FA=THILEE "
30 June 2024 and 2023. BEEERERREAME -

Annual Report %%2023/24 197



B REER R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 12. FRISRIESE  (FZ)

The amount of income tax recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income represents:

RiFAEEBERER ST SRR

2024 2023
—2-mEF —T=F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEx FHEIT

Current tax BVHARE 18
— Current year — REFE - -
Deferred tax (credit)/expense (Note 27) EEFRIE (K R), B (Ki727) (30,282) 2,819
Income tax (credit)/expense s s (%), FxX (30,282) 2,819

Hong Kong profits tax for the qualifying group entity is calculated at
8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million
for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023. Hong Kong profits tax
for other group entities is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
profits. No provision for current income tax in Hong Kong was made
in the consolidated financial statements for both years as the
Company's subsidiaries in Hong Kong had no assessable profits.

Except for group entities engage in gaming business, the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Philippines are subject to the corporate income
tax rate of 25% for the year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: 25%). The
withholding tax rate in respect of a dividend distributed by a
subsidiary of the Company operating in the Philippines to its
overseas immediate holding company is 15% for the years ended 30
June 2024 and 2023. The group entities engage in gaming business
in the Philippines are exempt from Philippine corporate income tax,
among other taxes, pursuant to the Philippine Amusement and
Gaming Corporation charter ("PAGCOR charter”) and are subject to
license fees which are inclusive of the 5% franchise tax based on
gross gaming revenue in the Philippines, in lieu of all other taxes. No
provision for current income tax in the Philippines was made in the
consolidated financial statements for both years as the Company’s
subsidiaries in the Philippines either had no assessable profits or
exempt from corporate income tax under PAGCOR charter.
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A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued) 12. FRISMRIER (%) (@)
The Group's subsidiary in Macau is subject to Macau profits tax rate HE-_T-_MER-_FT_=F-A=+H
of 12% for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023. No provision for WEFE AEEZRFKE AR AR E
taxation in Macau was made in the consolidated financial statements 2% BARFIFER - BRAEBERNRFZ
for both years as the Group's operations in Macau had no assessable XBUWEMERBREF  BAWEAREFE
profits. HIAR & I Sk AR PR PI R TE 4 -
2024 2023
—B-NmE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREAT (B518) &R (162,246) 21,101
Taxation at the principal tax rates applicable  ZEBEFKERREF 2
to profits in the country concerned I EMEFE2HIE (40,560) 5275
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBNEERLCEFEB 2
operating in other jurisdictions MEARTRBE 28 21,692 3,770
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAMBRAZ 2 BB E
for tax purpose 11,884 3,291
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBRA 2 G &
for tax purpose (50,726) (2,185)
Tax effect of net income derived from gaming 18 %2 4% 58 Pt 2= £ B R 77 U A
operation not taxable for tax purpose FRBBEE (42,489) (33,085)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible RERTIBEE R AR R
temporary differences not recognised ER BB E 69,917 25,753
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FRMEHRER),/ HAX (30,282) 2,819

At 30 June 2024, there are taxes dispute cases between MSPI, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally
engaging in the business of leasing of properties with gaming
equipment in the Philippines, and BIR for the calendar years of 2008,
2012, 2014, 2015, 2018 and 2019 in aggregate of around Peso
5,009,650,000 (2023: Peso 4,981,154,000) (equivalent to
approximately HK$670,691,000 (2023: HK$666,876,000)).

For the alleged deficiency taxes covering the calendar year of 2008,
2012, 2014, 2015, it is pending for final decisions from BIR or Court of
Tax Appeal ("CTA").

RZZE-_MFENA=+TB ARFABEE:

BB ATIMSPH(EZERIERENRELAE
EREZELRER) HREFES
M-_ZEN\F - —_FT——-F . _F—NOF-
—E-RHF - N\FR-ZE-NEFE
T4 /\,i’]7%5009650000&,%(_ —=

4,981,154,000 8% &) (A8 & 7 #9670,691,000%
T (ZTZ =4 : 666,876,000/ JT)) B Fi 7%
M=t -

EEPR_ZTEEN\F T —ZF
—F - —E-—RFEFNE Mﬂlﬁiﬁﬁ'
i 13 BIR 2k Court of Tax Appeal ([ CTA J) £ #&
Hor o
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—T_MFENA=1THIFEF

12.

13.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)

For the alleged deficiency taxes covering the calendar year of 2018
MSPI filed administrative protests with BIR and requested for
reinvestigation but the BIR failed to act on MSPI's request. During
2023, MSPI filed petition for review with CTA for BIR's assessments for
alleged deficiency taxes and the case is currently under trial in 2024.

For the alleged deficiency taxes covering the calendar year of 2019,
MSPI filed administrative protests with BIR and request for
reinvestigation during 2023. The BIR rejected MSPI's request and
MSPI received BIR’s final decision on disputed assessment for the
calendar year of 2019 in May 2024. MSPI filed petition for review with
CTA for BIR's assessments for the calendar year of 2019 on June 2024
and there is no fixed date for trial up to date of authorization of these
consolidation financial statements.

Based on the advices of the independent tax and legal advisors of
MSPI, the directors of the Company believe that MSPI has valid legal
arguments to defend the above tax disputes. No provision has been
made for the tax disputes in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2024 and 2023. However, as
there is at present possible obligations (existence of which can only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of MSPI) which
may or may not require an initial outflow of resources, the directors
of the Company estimate that as at 30 June 2024, the contingent
liabilities in respect of the alleged deficiency taxes of MSPI covering
the calendar years of 2008, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2018 and 2019,
represents the stated amounts in the disputed assessments received
by MSPI in aggregate of around Peso 5,009,650,000 (2023: Peso
4,980,586,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$670,691,000 (2023:
HK$705,792,000) and possible additional penalties, surcharge or
interest liability that may be assessed by BIR for the taxable years
which existence can only be confirmed based on developments of
the taxes disputes cases, as a possible outflow of resources.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 June 2024 (2023: nil).
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company are calculated as follows:

14.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE
B (B8 &7
RARAPBEBEABESRERNL#EE (B
18)/BATIRE T 5 BB E

2024 2023
—E-EF —T=F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FET
(Loss)/profit for the year FW(E518), /& (131,964) 18,282
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
‘000 '000
T % F &
Number of shares BRAER
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FAAGTE SR ER R #E
for the purposes of basic and diluted (B1B)BFzLmik
(loss)/earnings per share A 15 8 1,369,157 1,369,157
2024 2023
SO =
HK Cents HK Cents
AL (L
(Loss)/earnings per share G (&8), &7
Basic BN (9.64) 134
Diluted e (9.64) 1.34

The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year
ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 does not assume the exercise of the
Company's outstanding share options as the exercise price of those

options was higher than the average market price for shares for the

years.

The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year
ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 does not assume the conversion of
the Company’s outstanding convertible bond since their assumed

exercise would have anti-dilutive effect.

HAEEE T _NFR_ZE-_ZFXA
STBREFEZEREE (BB) /BRI
EBEREBTERDBEARITEZERE R
ARZEEREZTEERRFRARG 2
FEHE o

AEHE T _MER_T_=F7XA
S+HRILEFEZESREE (BR), /AL
BREE/ARBHARITEZ JRBES

J?I%Efﬁ““fﬂﬂ%?i&%&%?ﬂg
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. %, BB MEE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixturesand Entertainment Computer Motor
Buildings improvements Machinery equipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
B #E
BF HEEE B &S] RERE BB AE @zt
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TER THR FHT FHEL T TR
Cost: PR :
At 1July 2022 i —
+A—-A 437,969 8,998 9,165 91,642 148,710 109 1722 781315
Additions HE 763 - 3,068 184 12,588 7 - 16,610
Exchange adjustments 3z (3037) (93) (628) (675) (894) - (12) (5339)
At 30 June 2023 RZZZ=F
~NA=TH 435,695 8,905 94,605 91,151 160,404 116 1,710 792,586
Additions = - 16,505 6,388 1,546 31,253 80 - 55,772
Transfer from investment 1% & ¥ 3 & 5
properties (note 16) (Hieti6) 953,772 = - - = - - 953,772
Written-off s - (1,399) - - (951) - - (2,350)
Bxchange adjustments B 5 3% (57,123) (966) (5,440) (5,079) (9,899) - (100) (78,607)
At 30 June 2024 RZEZME
~NA=TH 1,332,344 23,045 95,553 87,618 180,807 196 1,610 1,721,173
Accumulated depreciation 23t 4% &
and impairment loss: RESS
At 1 July 2022 i
+A—H 303,109 7473 87,160 87,780 131,725 101 1514 618,862
Provision for the year FRER 19,745 126 1837 3447 10910 5 161 36,231
Exchange adjustments  [E A% (1810) (124) (602) (577) (794) - ©) (3916)
At 30 June 2023 i
~NA=TH 321,044 7,475 88,395 90,650 141,841 106 1,666 651,177
Provision for the year FRER 23,260 25 2,627 1,564 12,384 17 22 39,899
Written-off WisH - (1,399) - - (951) - - (2,350)
Exchange adjustments B33 3% (18,476) (378) (4,963) (5,054) (8,167) - (97) (37,135)
At 30 June 2024 RZZZWEF
~NA=TH 325,828 5,723 86,059 87,160 145,107 123 1,591 651,591
Carrying amount: BEE:
At 30 June 2024 RZZZWEF
~NAZTH 1,006,516 17,322 9,494 458 35,700 73 19 1,069,582
At 30 June 2023 R-B-=%
~NA=TH 114651 1430 6210 501 18,563 10 44 141,409
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment tests for Hotel operation CGU

The group of non-current non-financial assets included in Hotel
operation segment ("“Hotel operation CGU") is tested for
impairment as the hotel operation segment recorded a segment loss
during the years. For the purpose of impairment testing, gross
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of
HK$121,909,000 (2023: HK$150,744,000), right-of-use assets of
HKS$ 14,757,000 (2023: HK$18,642,000) and corporate assets of
HKS$1,825,000 (2023: Nil) of the Group were allocated to the Hotel
operation CGU. The recoverable amount of the Hotel operation CGU
has been determined by fair value less costs of disposal ("FVLCOD")
with reference to the valuation prepared by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"), an independent
professional valuer not connected to the Group. The fair value of the
Hotel operation CGU were measured using income capitalisation
approach with use of significant unobservable inputs and hence
were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no
transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year. Key assumptions used
in calculating the recoverable amount are as follows:

Long term growth rate of revenue WAREEE R
Discount rate rE=x
BERMb b &

Capitalisation rate

15.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

M. BB KREEE)
BEEERSEAENZREDNR
AABEEESH([BEEEERSELES
f2]) MIEMENFE S B & E A R E TR E R
o THEMAEEED BRFRES D I
EE-BRENEME XEEWE K
BN REREm#A{E121,909000EF T (ZF
Z =4 1 150,74400078 7C) ~ FEAREE ER
A E14,757,0008 L (ZE = = F :
18,642,000 7T) K 1 % & EE 1,825,000 % JT
ZEC=F R)OREEHEEERSE
BN BEEERSEAEMTRES
HIRBEEAEEVEBE B ULEEME
Eﬂiﬁﬂga_ BT ETEREABRAR ([
TREZHEERZAFERLDERA
(F’D\$1E7Jﬁ‘itln"§ﬁﬁi4ﬂ)%%ﬁ o 5 EIR
SEEBENMHAFETERRAE AL
EITETE - WERAERT A EREGASIE -
WP BARFEEBRE =R FRE=
WA AL B A BT o FFE A U B F

Based on management’s assessment in impairment test of Hotel
operation CGU, no impairment loss is recognised or reversed in profit
or loss for the years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023.

Impairment test for Gaming operation CGU

Since takeover of casino operation in the Group's premises from
PAGCOR in May 2024, management review external and internal
source of information for the group of non-current non-financial
assets (including the owner occupied property transferred from
investment properties) included in Gaming operation segment
(“Gaming operation CGU"), considered no indicator of impairment
loss, no impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Fr{E AR MRE T
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R=EB-WE R-ZT_=F
NA=+H NA=1+H
3.5% 3.5%
12.0% 12.0%
8.5% 9.0%
B8 E IR A B G B B A
BARNTG REE_FT_OEFRE_F
TEFANACZTRLEFEYERNBRRE

R ERE R -

BYEERSEECENZRENR
BT _HF A ANPAGCOREEREE
MENRESEENR BEEETETIEY
EENE ((BYEERSELESEN)FE
FEREEMFEBNE AW ETEANNIER
EIESRLE EA R RN R A EE B ARR -
REVTEREBSENTR  WENESZT
ERREEE -
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REE

Total
#mat
HK$'000
T

FAIR VALUE NF{E
At 1 July 2022 RZEZZF+H—H 993,000
Fair value gain NEEYE 2,962
Exchange adjustment bE 3 B (6,962)
At 30 June 2023 R-ZZEZ=FXA=+H 989,000
Fair value loss VN $T§J§ﬂ,§\ (14,145)
Exchange adjustment bE 3 (21,083)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 15) EREYE  RE R (FE15) (953,772)
At 30 June 2024 R-Z-WFEXRA=1+H -

The above investment properties are located in the Philippines. The
Group's property interest held to earn rentals is measured using the
fair value model and is classified and accounted for as investment
property. On 9 May 2024, the investment properties were transferred
to property, plant and equipment upon the commencement of the
casino operation by the Group with fair values of HK$953,772,000 at
the date of change in use as its deemed cost.

The fair values have been arrived at based on a valuation carried out

by JLL, independent professional valuer not connected with the
Group. JLL is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

204 Annual Report %% 2023/24

T EMEMAIERE - AEBEEHER
HHHisz%%f“*?*’“ﬁfﬁﬁ-ﬁﬁri 4
DERARINBEENE R WF
HEAEAR- Lk'ilﬁﬂxﬁ%% BEIZ A
EEREBRENE BMELRE NEE
Rl B HIM A F(E 5 953,772,000 87 © 1EA
HRIEMA o

RYFEDRBEASEYEBE BT E
EXLEMFERTETZEEEE -FE
BMOTREBASMEGES -



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE45 R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. EWXE (&)

The fair values were determined based on the income approach, ANFEURBAEEE  EFRBRIEEDE
where capitalising the estimated net income derived from the FriS st A FRBE AL - WaT AR K 3g
investment properties taking into account the future growth REN EFLEXFER 2 BERAB
potential with reference to historical income trend achieved in DREFMR -WERLXEEHHEEED
previous years and latest market condition. The discount rate was HEZ EMRBIZNETFHERKAETE -
determined by reference to weighted average cost of capital of the FrRmERNEAT ML ES R 5 E
listed companies with similar business portfolio. There had been no ANEEFATFEEERNT

change from the valuation technique used in the prior period. Key
assumptions used in calculating the fair values are as follows:

At 9 May At 30 June
2024 2023
REB-mE R-_ZT-=%F
HEANB NA=TH

Long term growth rate of revenue WA RH g R & 3.5% 3.5%
Discount rate E=x 13.5% 13.5%
Capitalisation rate B AR & 7.5% 7.5%
The fair values of the investment properties were measured using KREMEZ A TEREAERTAHER
valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs and AHBE 2 HERNGE B BEAERATAE
hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There BRE = - FARNE =R E(E A K
were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year. i o

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ ANEEFEDUN LY E s e & ER
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use. RS ERARER) A% -
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16. IEME &)

In addition, significant judgement is required when evaluating the o - A AT EAEMAAZRERRSE

inputs used in the fair value measurement. Reasonably possible
changes at the reporting date to any of the relevant assumptions
would have affected the fair value of the investment properties as

presented below:

FAE - 25T

ZEHEARHE - NS A H - E(IHEE
SR BEAEESHKTEREVENR

At 9 May At 30 June
2024 2023
R=B-QRmE R-_T_=F
EAANA ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Discount rate increased by 1% FERIZ 1% (15,000) (19,000)
Rental growth rate decreased by 1% HEEEERD 1% (26,000) (29,000)
Capitalisation rate increased by 1% B AL AN 1% (33,000) (33,000)
17. INTANGIBLE ASSET 17. EBLEE
Computer
software
BB
HK$'000
FHET
Cost: B
At 1July 2022, 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023 R-E-——4F+H—A -
ZTEZ=FRA=THEK
—ZETZ=FtH—H -
Additions nNE 10,495
At 30 June 2024 R-ZZB-WEXNA=1H 10,495
Accumulated amortisation: R -
At 1 July 2022, 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023 RZE-_—_FtH—H"
ZEZ=FRA=THRK
—E_=%+tA—H -
Provision for the year FNRHE (3,586)
Exchange adjustments bE 3 & (12)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-NFEAA=TH (3,598)
Carrying amount; BRIEIME -
At 30 June 2024 R-ZZB-WEXNA=1H 6,897
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18. LOAN RECEIVABLES

As at 30 June 2024 and 2023, the Group's loan receivables represent
three loans to associates as below:

A loan advance with principal of Peso 338,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$45,285,000 (2023: HK$47,929,000)) was granted in prior
years to Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. ("HVPHI"),
which is an associate of the Company. The loan is interest
bearing at 3.5% per annum and the whole principal amount is
repayable on 3 August 2032.

The loan was secured by a parcel of land owned by HVPHI.
Management considered that the estimated fair value of the
collateral was not less than the carrying amount of the
respective loan receivable as at 30 June 2024 and 2023.

The Group additionally granted Peso 92,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS$12,317,000 (2023: HK$13,036,000)) in prior years to HVPHI.
The loan is interest bearing at 3.5% per annum, repayable on
demand and unsecured. The Group does not intend to
request for repayment within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period.

A loan advance with principal of Peso 55,000,000 was granted
in prior years to Pacific Bayview Properties, Inc. (‘PBPI"), which
is the wholly owned subsidiary of Blue Marine Properties, Inc.,,
and is an associate of the Company. The loan is interest
bearing at 3.5% per annum and repayable on demand. PBPI
repaid Peso 37,000,000 in prior years and the remaining
balance of Peso18,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,410,000) was
repaid during the year.

The loan was secured by condominium properties owned by
PBPI. Management considered that the estimated fair value of
these collaterals was not less than the carrying amount of the
loan receivable as at 30 June 2023.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

18. FERERR

RZEBEZNERZTEZ=FA=1H"
NEE 2 BWERE T RS AR
ZZEEF:

@ ARFRBEFERARQRZEBE QT
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.
([HVPHI J) #% i 78 & %8 43 338,000,000
BR (FEE R 452850008 (Z T ==
F 1479290008 7)) Z EFREK » %
,\,Mz:zﬁfrlJT.%s%qu EERESE NG

BAR_Z=_F/\HA=REER-

ZEFRAHVPHIES 2 L K I o
ﬂiw RSB ETTATEE
PTORZZBEZNFER T =F XA
f+EI$EFa%JE%Z% N2 BREIE °

ANEBP B FERHPHIEEIMNE B
92 oooooo%&’%‘: (¥ & %12,317,0007 7T
— T = 4F 1130360008 70)) ° &
BRIRFFE3I5%: 5 - BRERIE
BREIRE - REBEEENHRE M
BT ZEARNEFRER -

(b) AR AR BT F E [ Pacific Bayview
Properties, Inc. ([ PBPI]) % AN & %8 &
55000000 R 2 ERBK  ZAAE
Blue Marine Properties, Inc. Z & & B J&
RARARBZHE NG - ZERIE
FRE3IS%TE - BEEKRKER -
PBPIE 1 18 £ F JZ {8 & 37,000,000 #
R > £ % 18,000,000 R (BE R
241000078 7T) EREFRNER -

ZEUAPBPIER < AEYISEIEERA
ERERA ZSHFERZHTAF
BERLPRBEE T -_=FA=1H
FEWE R ZREE -
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

DIEEEFE

19. REVERTIZHER

At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023

REZB-WE R-T-=
ANA=+H NA=1H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TAT
36,187 42,479

Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:

Name of associates

BELT AW

Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.
Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc.

Blue Marine Properties, Inc.
Blue Marine Properties, Inc.
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FEEHK

Property developer

MEEER

Investment holdings

REERK

AEBZBERRZFHBEAT

Place of

incorporation Percentage

and operations held by the Group

= B S B rEE

R B FrEE Dt
%

the Philippines 40

FERE

the Philippines 40
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RERERNTIZER (#)

Harbor View Properties and

(a) Harbor View Properties and Holdings, Inc. (a)

Holdings, Inc.

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
RESB-WE R-ZE-=F
~NA=1+H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHETT
Current assets mEEE 56,636 53,691
Non-current assets IEREEE 170,086 177,068
Current liabilities mENa & (110,543) (99,175)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (57,612) (64,123)
Net assets EEFE 58,567 67,461
Net assets attributable to owners EEBEEAEGREEFHE
of the equity 58,567 67,461
Group’s share of the net assets AEBESHEHEATNEEFE
of the associate 23,426 26,984
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
Bz HE
—E_F ZE=F
~NA=+H ~HA=+H
IEEE FE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FE&T FETT
Revenue WA 1,202 1,541
Loss for the year FNEBE (5,358) (1,825)
Total comprehensive loss FHEBELE (5,358) (1,748)

Dividends received from the associate

REE SN &)
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B REER R A]

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REFERT R ()
(b) Blue Marine Properties, Inc. Blue Marine Properties, Inc.
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R-ZZE-_@mFE R-T=-=
NA=1H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FE T FAET
Current assets MEEE 12,937 8,748
Non-current assets ERBEE 83,152 88,161
Current liabilities nEaE (44,317) (37,752)
Non-current liabilities EMEAE (19,869) (20,/420)
Net assets EEFE 31,903 38,737
Net assets attributable to owners ERBEEAERLKEERE
of the equity 31,903 38,737
Group’s share of the net assets AEESEHEARNEEFE
of the associate 12,761 15,495
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
BZE HZE
—ENF ZEZ=F
ANA=TH NA=+H
IEFE EFE
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FAT
Revenue WA 4,605 4,584
Loss for the year FAEIE (4,866) (1,044)
Total comprehensive loss FHEBEETE (4,866) (1,044)
Dividends received from the associate SN - -
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19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

20.

The summarised movements of interest in associates during the year
are as below:

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

. REHERT) 218 (#)
FARBEAR 2 EEBHHRENT -

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2024 2023
Bz HE
—E-mEF —E-=F
AA=+H ~A=TH
LFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At beginning of the year RE ) 42,479 43917
Share of loss of associates DB E N R EE (4,090) (1,058)
Exchange adjustments bE W (2,202) (380)
Atend of the year RER 36,187 42,479
LEASE 20. HE
During the year, the Group leases various offices, land and staff FRN AEBHESERLAE LR E
quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed IEsHEECH HOK . E$ Hi2ZE36
term of 2 to 36 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual FRI - MHAOBEKREERNELEETE 28
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In — R R AR » *}jfﬁ 1B AT A
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non- TR ERRR  AEEEAEOZ
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and EHRIWETES LA NITHIRE -
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.
Right-of-use assets EREEE
The analysis of the net carrying amount of leased properties BRAECHRBEEZHEMERE FESD
recognised as right-of-use assets is as follows: o -
Land Properties Total
T i L/ ES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1July 2022 R=ZB=-—F+H—H 11,735 19,707 31,442
Depreciation for the year FRITE (355) (3,989) (4,344)
Exchange adjustments PE X a2 (87) (169) (256)
At 30 June 2023 RZBZZ=ZHXA=t+H 11,293 15,549 26,842
Depreciation for the year FAWE (352) (2,986) (3,338)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 A (612) (753) (1,365)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZB-MEXRA=1H 10,329 11,810 22,139

As at 30 June 2024, the management of the Group has conducted
impairment testing on certain right-of-use assets included in the
hotel operation, with details as set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statement.

R-F_MFENA=1tH AEEHEEE
EHEELETRENETHERREESR
TTRERNS  FEHERNEEM BRI E
15 ¢
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

20. LEASE (Continued)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

20. A& (&)

HERE

ERREERERERS

E P ENE

Land Properties Total
T ith LS wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
At 1July 2022 R=-ZZFE-_—-_f+tHA—H 13,353 25,701 39,054
Lease payments HERH (975) (5,998) (6,973)
Interest expenses F BRI 875 2,644 3,519
Exchange adjustments b 5 F (94) (204) (298)
At 30 June 2023 R=-B-=FXA=+H 13,159 22,143 35,302
Lease payments ME R (965) (4,895) (5,860)
Interest expenses FEFHX 860 2,316 3,176
Exchange adjustments ME W I (723) (1,132) (1,855)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-WFEXA=1+H 12,331 18,432 30,763
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R=EZB-MFE R-_T_=F
~AB=T1H ~A=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current Nk 2,894 2,742
Non-current JERE 27,869 32,560
30,763 35,302
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A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

20. LEASE (Continued) 20. A& (&)
Operating lease commitments — The Group as lessor REHNEAE —FKEFEREEA
As announced by the Company on 18 December 2015, MSPI as BOARBTN_E—RFE+_A+TN\BMR
lessor, entered into the Lease Agreement with PAGCOR as lessee for AN MSPI (PE & #E A) B2 PAGCOR (1E &
the renewal of the lease of certain premises of the Group for a term EBAN)FILHERE  WEEXREEET
commencing from 1 April 2016 and expiring on the earlier of 31 MEZHEY FHE-_ZT—-X"FOHA—H
March 2031 or upon the total rent accruing against and/or payable YR ZE=Z—F=A=+—8H=xR
by PAGCOR to MSPI under the Lease Agreement reaching an PAGCORMRIETR EWRZE AN kS EN T
aggregate of Peso24.5 billion. The monthly rental is based on a MSPIz 25t 10 € 48 %5 & $£ # 24,500,000,000
certain percentage of net gaming revenue of the casino operated by BR2R (URFEERE) JIH - AMEKE
PAGCOR or a fixed amount of Peso100,000, whichever is higher. The PAGCORK Z BEIZBER WA FEETED
entering into the corporation agreement and joint establishment of bk EE £ 58100000 R 2B S HE T °
management committee with PAGCOR on 9 August 2021 has no RZZF=Z—F /\ANHB &2 EPAGCOR
change on the substance of the Lease Agreement. During the year, VAR ERKIEEZEEe M
the Lease Agreement has been mutually agreed for termination, ERETEREELAEEEYH FAH K
upon the commencement of gaming operation by the Group with SERBEREER HEBRCKER
details as set out in note 5 of the consolidated financial statement. REKILE - FEHNGRE T BREM TS -
Rental income arising from Lease Agreement during the year ended HE_Z-_WNFA=Z1THLFE BH
30 June 2024 was approximately HK$120,990,000 (2023: HEWEE S 2 S A #120,990,000 %
HK$133,542,000), representing contingent rental income recognised T (ZZT =4 : 133,542,000/ 7C) * HER
base on certain percentage of net gaming revenue from PAGCOR. BHER B PAGCORZ BRI A FE 2 ETH
DEERH AR WA o
The total future minimum lease payment to be received are as RREAREE N FARTEIERLNT -
follow:
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R-FB-NE R-_T_=%F
AHA=+H ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHEIT
Within one year to fifth year inclusive —ZNhF (PEERME) - 840
Over five years tBiR T F - 462
- 1,302
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include the

1. BRAFEFAABBZEHEE

BAHEFABRGSZEMEEREATER:

following:
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
REZB-ME R-T_=F
ANA=T1H ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Unlisted investment fund (Note) FEEMIREES (MiT) 4,481 5,302
Note: W at -

The unlisted investment fund represented approximately 48% (2023: 48%)
interests in Foresight Fund Il Limited Partnership (the “Foresight Fund’) (Formerly
known as Hontai Capital Fund Il Limited Partnership).

The Foresight Fund was established principally to achieve long-term capital
appreciation primarily through privately-negotiated investments in companies
and/or its affiliates which is/are engaged in the production and distribution of the
sports events and entertainment content and sports media rights market. The
Group is a limited partner in the Foresight Fund and does not have control nor
significant influence in the Foresight Fund’s operational and financing decisions.

The directors of the Company have determined the fair value of its interest held in
the Foresight Fund as at 30 June 2024 with reference to the valuation report
issued by, an independent professional valuer who has professional qualifications
and relevant experience. The fair value of the Foresight Fund is determined by
NAV summation method with fair value of underlying investment determined by
market approach, with references to comparable companies benchmark multiples.
During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Group recognised a fair value loss of
HK$723,000 (2023: HK$3,127,000) in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. FEWRERIE
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
REB-@mE R-ZT—=
~NA=1TH ~NA=t+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET FHETT
Trade receivables JE U AR I8 1,972 17,293
Less: provision for expected credit losses W BEEEEERE (574) (2,953)
1,398 14,340

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit loss presented based on invoice date which

approximate the respective revenue recognition date at the end of

the reporting period.

UTARREMEAEEAREZAH(BE
FAWATER B HIMESE) 25 2 BURIE (30

BRIEEBERE) 2Rk

Vi

At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023

R=-ZB-MNFE HRZTZ=F

ANA=TH ~A=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

0-30days 0E30H 1,025 13,682
31-60 days 31260 H - 161
61-90 days 61290 H 23 497
Over 90 days oo H 350 -
1,398 14,340

The Group has a policy allowing its customers credit periods
normally ranging from 0 to 90 days. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in Note 3.11. For detailed assessments, please refer to

Note 42(a).

AEERABRETEERP—RNFOE
WHZEEH AKELEFHERMAE

IR 2 M m e

REBRBHFEINAMMO G RRER
HIEER BREFMGFE

42(@a) °

A2 M
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BE T _MENA=THIFFE

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23. HfthfEWFIE, RERTAMNFIE
PREPAYMENTS
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R=FB-NE R-_FT_=
ANA=+H NA=1H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Deposit Ze 3,773 3911
Other receivables H b e U SR IR 889 1,384
Prepayment — acquisition of plant and TENRIE —BERE R&E
equipment 81,099 11,934
Prepayment — others TEfTRIE — HAtb 40,000 31,134
Interest receivables FE U FI B 13,540 11,521
139,301 59,884
Represented by: i
Non-current portion ERBNE D 104,092 32,464
Current portion mENER 35,209 27,420
139,301 59,884
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24. TAX RECOVERABLE

On 15 June 2022, the Group received a warrant of distraint and/or
levy ("WDL") from BIR which directed its collection and enforcement
team to distrain and/or levy on MSPI’s properties in relation to
alleged deficiency tax for calendar year of 2015 (note12). MSPI filed
an Urgent Motion to Quash WDL (“Motion to Quash”) to CTA on 23
June 2022. During August and September 2022, bank balances of
approximately Peso 426,000,000 have been garnished by the BIR
upon receipt of warrants of garnishment by certain of MSPI's banks.
MSPI filed a Motion for Reconsideration (‘“MR") on 19 January 2023 in
response to rejection from CTA on MSPI's Motion to Quash dated 19
December 2022.

On 11 April 2023, MSPI received the CTA’s resolution which granted
the MSPI's MR and resolved that the WDL is being cancelled and the
warrants of garnishment are lifted. Further collection by BIR or refund
of garnished amount is suspended pending on judicial resolution of
the case.

Based on the advice of the independent legal adviser of MSPI, the
directors of the Company believe that MSPI has valid legal
arguments to defend the tax disputes (including the alleged
deficiency tax for calendar year of 2015) with right to request for
refund of the garnished amounts when the judicial review complete.
Alternatively, the garnished amounts would be utilized to settle tax
payable if MSPI lose in the tax dispute in the unlikely situation. The
amount is classified as tax recoverable.

24,

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

A EIFRIE

RZBZZFAAATHB  AEBEEEX
BBIREINIF S & B < ([ 8 &K
<) EFBRE-ZE—AFEF2EHEM
B AR RE WA RN ITNEIE 5
B MSPLZ B E (P 5E12) o MSPIR =&
ZZFNAZ+ =B RCTAR B 0
Bl cNEZ28m (HEaE) - R=F%
ZZFNARNA  REEMSPIA TIRTT
2RSS IRITE T 49426000000 R E,
WBRMIIE - Z—ZTE=—_=F—A+1H"
MSPIEH ¥ CTABK BIMSPIEB B A - — —
T ATNAZHEDRRIENER
g ((ENER2BE] -

RZZEZ=FWMA+—H8  MSPIEECAZ
REBEREMSPIETEZ 2HE MORE
ECHINHHBRS T HBRINES - REHGSE
BIRIABE R Z B - BRI (23 — S UL E X,
RIEHIHFE -

REMPIZ B A2ZBERMNER  AAF
EE2MHE MSPIEREYEAEm BB S
H(RE-_ T AFEFZERBREEE)
M THERBEBZ TSR EBEREER
MR FIE o fEIN - B — MSPIR T 75 44 4
REGGR N BEE NS S EMNTIE -
ZFES AR YL E R -
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BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets

Current contract assets relating to IR EEREERA
provision of hotel services REEEE

25. ERNEERGHNER

BHEE

At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023
R-ZZBE-WNE RZT==

ANA=1+H ~A=+H

HK$000 HK$'000
FEx TAET
291 545

In case of room revenue, the guest pays the room charge
based on the payment schedule. If the services rendered by
the Hotel exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised.
If the payments exceed the services rendered, a contract

liability is recognised.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses of the contract assets are based on those of the
trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade
receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision
rates of contract assets are based on days past due of trade
receivables appropriately grouped by similar loss pattern. The
calculation reflects the probability weighted outcome, the
time value of money, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecast of future economic

conditions.

After applying the expected credit loss rate to gross amount
of contract assets, the management considered that the
provision of impairment loss of contract assets is immaterial

and no expected credit loss has recognised.
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

25. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 25. eHNEEREGNaE®)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHAEE
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023

R-ZZE-WFE RZZT-=F
~NBE=1+H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT T
Contract liabilities relating to provision BIRRIERE BB 2
of hotel service EHBE 690 1,493
As at 30 June 2024, contract liabilities mainly represents RZZE-_MEA=+H a48%E
receipts in advance from customers of the Hotel operation. FEEBERBEXEBEFPFTIE &4
The balance of the contract liabilities are expected to be BERTFEEAN—FAFHA -
utilised within a year.
Movements in contract liabilities: BRBEZEHNOT

Hotel service

B JE BR 3%
HK$'000
FHET
Balance as at 1 July 2022 RZBZZF+A—RAZ&ER 184
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising FRNEABRFTAF VAN EEZ
revenue during the year that was included in the Wi sl B2 & 88 ER D
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (180)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year FRNEHBEG N 1,493
Exchange difference b ZEE 4)
Balance as at 30 June 2023 RZEBZ=FRNA=THZ#&H 1,493
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising & AE MR AFEN SN BEEZ
revenue during the year that was included in the Wz sl B & 808 ER D
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (1,462)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year FREKEEE N 690
Exchange difference e 3 =& (31)
Balance as at 30 June 2024 RZZB-NFERNA=THZ&EH 690
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BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

26. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. FE{TERIAE. HE[IEREE

ACCRUED CHARGES B
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
REZB-WE R-_T_=%F
AA=tH ~NA=T+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade payables e RR IR 4,133 1,920
Other payables and accrued expense HMENRIERERTER
— Unredeemed chips — REREN 1,967 -
— Interest payable — ERTAIE 17,156 4163
— Provision of Gaming tax — BRI EE 9,815 -
— Provision of Jackpot — RERERE 12,796 -
— Professional services fee —EERKE 6,397 2,930
— Others — Hith 47,333 40,532
95,464 47,625
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges comprise FAERR - KRN SRR BB EE
317 =+ 4&5 =
amounts outstanding for the purchase and ongoing costs. RBRFERAZ AT S -
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based AT RRBRESHEEARERAHZI
A A S
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. 2 B R IR R e 3 A
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. REEmZ FHEEHROA -
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R=B-WE R-_T_=F
AA=t+H ~AZ=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
0-30 days 0Z230H 2,472 1,754
31-60 days 31260H 1,565 146
61-90 days 61F90H 96 18
Over 90 days B0 H - 2
4,133 1,920
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BE T _MENA=THIFFE

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. SRIERIBE(E

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movement FABARZELERBEEAREESHFE
during the year are listed as follow: HIREOE
Fair value
adjustments Fairvalue  Withholding
Accelerated  onproperty,  adjustments taxon Unrealised
capital plantand oninvestment undistributed foreign
allowance equipment properties earnings exchange gain Total
nE BER
REz REVEZ RIREFZ RER
NEEXEHE ATERR  ATEHRR LRI E % i mct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FET FEL FET
At 1 July 2022 ANZE -
+A—H 39 5928 95,346 14,134 16,382 131,829
(Credited)/charge to profit FARNER
o loss for the year (T A)/ 40 - (1381) (4,187) - 8387 2819
Exchange adjustments B 5 A - (59) (725) - 1855 1071
At30 June 2023 RZZ-=%
~NAZ=TH 39 4488 90434 14,134 26,624 135719
Credited to profit or FARERTA
loss for the year - (1,369) (25,642) - (3,271) (30,282)
Reclassify of deferred taxation ~ EE{R B )% H%
upon transfer of investment ~ E ¥ 98Ik
properties A - 61,283 (61,283) = = =
Exchange adjustments EHRAE - (557) (3,509) - (1,794) (5,860)
At 30 June 2024 i a3
NA=TH 39 63,845 - 14,134 21,559 99,577
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At 30 June 2024, the Group had estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$393,034,000 (2023: HK$149,243,000) and
deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$10,724,000
(2023: HKS$5,770,000) arising from certain companies within the
Group that are suffering from losses for years available for offset
against future profits. At 30 June 2024 and 2023, no deferred tax
assets was recognised for such losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams from these companies within the Group. Tax
losses amounting to approximately HK$113,837,000 (2023:
HK$95,099,000) may be carried forward indefinitely. The remaining
tax losses will be expired as follows:

27.

EERIBEEE (#)

MN-ZE-WNEXA=1TH A&EEAE G
R B) F B 7B B5 48 49 393,034,000 7T (=&
T 11492430008 L) RAAREEET
ZEHBEBZET ARSI Bz Al HiKH
KRB F) 2 AT HRE B = FE4910,724,000 78
T(ZE =% :5770000&7T) - N _=
THEN-TE-_ZFNA=Z1+H BR#
LB AEBETZE AR Z A KRB R
B M ERZEEBERECHEEE
TRIEE 1847113837000 L (T - =& :
95,099,000/ 70) A PR HR 45 8% - R TEES I8 84
BRI T EHEIL :

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R=EZB-WE R-_Z_=F
SNA=T1H ~NAZ=1+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FAET

Year 2023 —E-=F = 13,054
Year 2024 —EF 21,018 22,158
Year 2025 —E_RF 15,319 16214
Year 2026 TECRE 2,359 2,718
Year 2027 TECAF 240,501 -
279,197 54,144
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 28. BIAEFI A
The retirement benefit costs of the Group recognised in consolidated REEa2ERR R BRI RNEBRKERN
statement of comprehensive income are as follows: BRARIAT -
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Bz BHE
—E-OE —E-=F
AA=+H ANAZTA
LEE IEFE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET FHET
Hong Kong G 244 146
The Philippines JEEE 701 430
945 576
Pursuant to Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter B CGaflE A B2 ENEG) (BAEEMNZE
485, Laws of Hong Kong), the Group participates in a defined 485%) AEBRBHELE-BRAEQARE
provident fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong. BIRWBAEE -
Under the relevant law in the Philippines, it provides a benefit to RIBFEEERE LN - HAEMEEKEER
qualified employees but it does not require minimum funding of the REEF B ERETE < HEBEF -
plan. In the absence of any pension plan in the entity, the relevant i BB B RIKES 7T &) - HBEEDIR
law requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified employees. EREEREERBENRS -
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) . IBRERIR A (&)

Defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund retirement
benefit scheme in Hong Kong. The relevant scheme assets are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of the
trustee. Under that scheme, the Group is required to make
contributions pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485, Laws of Hong Kong). No forfeited
contribution under the defined contribution retirement benefit plans
is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

The Group's contributions to the retirement benefit scheme in Hong
Kong charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2024 was approximately
HK$244,000 (2023: HKS$146,000).

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines

Net defined benefit obligations AEBAEMFE

ERRAEHUNTE

AEEREFASE -BHRFMELIREEMN
BT - BRI EENR ARSI Z
EeRA  BAKEZEESIRERRE -
RIEAE - AEBEARBCRBIMERTRE
S EEDD (BRIEDIFE485F) 2 REME
R o BB FUR KR FIEH & T AR MK
PR A AR A AR E R K -

HE-_Z-_MEXA=1tRHILFEZHA
PEHBERNEZAEBEREBRKEF
8l Z A B 2440008 L (ZE =5 ¢
146,000 7T) ©

FRERAEEAGE
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
REZBE-WFE R =F
~NA=tH ~NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,082 1,249

The Group operates a funded defined benefit plan for the qualified
employees of its subsidiary in the Philippines.
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

The defined benefit plan is administrated by trustee appointed by
the respective subsidiary of the Company and is legally separated
from the subsidiary. Under the plan, the qualified employees are
entitled to retirement benefits equivalent to final plan salary for
every year of credit service at the normal retirement age. There are
no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement benefit
obligations expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company.
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement
benefit scheme and the retirement fund is not sufficient to settle the
obligation, the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be
due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of the Company to the
retirement fund.

(@) The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

8. BIAEF A (&)

FRESAEEMNTE (&)

REBAEHARREERBRARME
EXEAEE - Bt 80052 £ EZH
BARLTHEE - RIEBEZXFE BERE
BELRRAFRE BRASEGSER
BFEREDFRANZETEFHE 2 RINGE
Feo RKBHNEEL TGS ARRFHEN
BRABAZITZEREANER - AW -
RIBR AR FIFT 852 1 48 A R R AR A&
S TERAZNEME  BZBRABNE
EZWMOKEREE  YEHBANAF AR
MEBABSNTRAES -

(@ AEEREAERMAEZEMERE
ERREGEMBARRRZESRNT

At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023

R-B-WE R-_T_=F

~NA=1+H NA=Z+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET T

Present value of defined benefit obligations 5% 7 & | & TR (& 1,082 1,249

Fair value of plan assets FEIEEATE - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit AERNBEAELEZAEFHE

obligations 1,082 1,249
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B2 T pUFENH=1THIFFE

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)
Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(b)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations for both years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 are as

28.

IBRIREFIRR A ()

FERERAEREAE (&)

(b)  E R _NER T =ZFXA
S+HREMAEFE  REEHNEER

follows: BEFHUT :
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R-ZB-MOE R-T_=F
ANB=1+H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHET FET
At beginning of the year REA) 1,249 890
Service costs Bl 7 A 7R 589 310
Interest cost H B AN 112 120
Actuarial gains BE W (802) (307)
Exchange realignment bE 3 R (66) 236
At end of the year REL 1,082 1,249

(0 Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the
years ended 30 June 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

© HEZZ-_NFER-_FT_=F,"A
= +tHIEMEFE  FEEEQAFE

ZET
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
REZB-WE RN-_T_=%F
~NA=tH ~A=4+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
At beginning of the year REH - -
Actuarial losses BEEE - -
Atend of the year NG S - -
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For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued) 28. BIAEFIRLA (&)
Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued) FERERAEEANGTE (&)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of d REEGEEAREREREEZZATE
comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit BHEEzBMT
plans are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Bz BHE
—B-nmE —ECo=F
~BE=1H ~NA=1+H
LEE IEEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Service cost: PR AR AN
Service costs AR 75 A A< 589 310
Net interest expense B HFEE 112 120
Components of defined benefit costs RiERER 2R EREN
recognised in profit or loss FX AN BB 5> 701 430
Remeasurement on the net defined BN EATEMNEEFE
benefit liability:
Actuarial gains B8 W 802 307

The defined benefit cost of HK$701,000 (2023: HK$430,000)
has been included in the administrative expenses. The
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included
in other comprehensive income.

The Group has also made provision for estimated liabilities for
retirement benefit obligations, in the absence of any pension
plan, covering the qualified employees of its another
subsidiary in the Philippines. There are no unusual or
significant risks to which the retirement benefit obligations
expose the relevant subsidiary of the Company. However in
the event a benefit claim arises, the obligations shall
immediately be due and payable by the relevant subsidiary of
the Company.

RERMAKAR701,00ET (ZT ==
F 14300008 70) FFATHAS - &
VT EATEMNaEFHEAAEME
mE o

AEETEREERAREFTEZBERT
SLRRENEEZ AR REFELEE
BMENFREHEHMCHBRARZAER
BE - RARBHNEEALTESALE
BERMBARAZ IS EREARR
A HIRLEMEBER - ZE T
REH - WERBARREHENERT
At e
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BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Continued)

Defined benefit scheme in the Philippines (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations at 30 June
2024 were carried out by E.M. Zalamea Actuarial Services, Inc.
and Institutional Synergy, Inc. (members of the Actuarial
Society of the Philippines), the independent actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligations, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the
actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate TrE=x
Expected rate of salary increase FEHFH S RX

28.

BIREFIA (&)
FEEREENE (E)

(d)

(&)
AEEESOIMBEMGERAERN
BEER T -HFEA=+THEZRE
FA J8 37 #5 B B E.M. Zalamea Actuarial
Services, Inc. &2 Institutional Synergy, Inc.
(/& Actuarial Society of the Philippines 2
BB ) HETT °
REBMEEZ2REREBRA RS
PR BB B R A TR A Fa st AL
FEAVERTE ©

IREGHEERZEZRRAOT

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R=EZB-MFE R-T_=F
SAB=T1H ~A=+H

6.18%-6.89%
6.50%

6.18%-6.26%
6.50%

The discount rate assumption is based on the spot yield curve
calculated from the market yields by striping the coupons
from government bonds to create theoretical zero-coupon
bonds as of the valuation date as at 30 June 2024 and 2023.

The actuarial valuation showed that the fair values of the
above unit investment trust funds are determined based on
mark-to-market valuation.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligations is 10 years (2023: 15 years).
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BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. B&AK
No. of No. of
shares of shares of
HK$1.00 each  HK$0.01 each HK$'000
SREE BREE
1.0078 T2 00182
BHEBE BRHOEE FHEx
Authorised: EE
Balance as at 30 June 2023 and R-E-_=FA=1+H
1July 2023 rEZFTEZ=F+H—H
2R 2,000,000,000 - 2,000,000
Share sub-division (note) A& 48 (K et ) (2,000,000,000) 200,000,000,000 =
Balance as at 30 June 2024 R-ZE-_MFESA=1+H
ZEER - 200,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRABE:
Balance as at 30 June 2023 and W_E-_=F,A=1+H
1 July 2023 RZFZ=%+H—H
2B 1,369,157,235 - 1,369,157
Capital reduction (note) P& ARk (BT aE) (1,369,157,235) 1,369,157,235 (1,355,465)
Balance as at 30 June 2024 R-ZZE-WNFA=1+H
ZEERR - 1,369,157,235 13,692

Note: Pursuant to announcements on 2 May 2023 and 11 August 2023, with
effective from 11 August 2023, (i) the capital reduction involving the
reduction of the par value of each issued share of the Company (the
“Share(s)") from HKS$1.00 to HKS0.01 by cancelling the paid up share
capital to the extent of HK$0.99 per issued Share so that following such
reduction, each issued share with a par value of HK$1.00 in the share
capital of the Company shall become one new share with a par value of
HK$0.01 (the “Capital Reduction’); and (i) the sub-division, immediately
following the Capital Reduction becoming effective, each authorised but
unissued Share will be sub-divided into a hundred (100) unissued new
Shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each (the “Share Sub-division”).

Upon the Capital Reduction becoming effective, the credit arising
from the Capital Reduction was applied towards offsetting the
accumulated losses of the Company as at the effective date of the
Capital Reduction and the balance of any such credit remaining after
offsetting the accumulated losses of the Company was transferred
to retained profit of the Company. This resulted in a transfer of
HK$1,355,465,000 from share capital to accumulated losses/retained
profit of the Company of the same amount on 11 August 2023.

Wit BE-_Z-_=—FRA-_AR_ZT_=F)\A
+—AZA%L BZE=Z=FN\A+—H#:
ORABIRE S RBEFHESTREFTRG
o.995%ﬁ2%%ﬁzﬂﬂﬁ$ﬁﬂ%Hﬁﬁ@ia%&ﬁ
B ([B 42 )) 2 E{E #1.0078 T B8 £ 001
B MR B BEIR®E - ANARRASER
EE1008 T2 EEITRO BKRA—REE
001 B TLE IR ([RRANEIR ) © 2 0)#F4A -
SRERANBIR A RIE - BRATEEARBEITR
Mg A — B (100) R &R EE001 BT 2
RETHBRMG ([REOIFA]) -

PR A B A% ARABRmESZ
HEEE AR EHEBRAERAERBR AR
RI2FHEE MEHEAARRFEBEET
REBRGERE A4 DEBEEZAQF
RBEAF HBHR-_ZE_=FNA+—
ERER N Ly 355465000/57117@ B & &8
2 BETERIRE AT

Annual Report 4%%2023/24 229



B REER R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 30. AR 1R AEBRTER

On 1 November 2017, the shareholders of the Company approved
and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options, at discretion of the directors of the Company,
to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The exercise price for the share options shall be determined in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme and the relevant
provisions of the Listing Rules.

As 1 July 2022, 30 June 2023 and 1 July 2023, there were 68,457,860
shares options granted and fully vested to grantees with weighted
average exercise price of HK$1.87. On 8 August 2023, with the
consent of the grantees, the board of directors resolved to cancel
the 68,457,860 shares options.

No share options were exercised or lapsed during the year ended 30
June 2024 and 2023.
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31. PROMISSORY NOTES

On 30 March 2023, Fortune Growth Overseas Limited (“Fortune
Growth"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company issued 6 new
promissory notes (the “2023 PNs") to the holder, an independent
third party ("Holder"), in exchange for the matured promissory notes
issued in prior years. No default for repayment of matured
promissory notes before the exchange of 2023 PNs. The 2023 PNs in
principal amount of HK$69,385,381 each and totalling
HK$416,312,285 represented the principal amount and accrued
interest of the matured promissory notes. The 2023 PNs carry interest
which accrues on the outstanding principal amount of
HK$416,312,285 from its issue date until repayment in full of the
principal amount at the fixed rate of 6% per annum. The 2023 PNs
shall become due and payable in full on the business day
immediately preceding the first anniversary of its issue date and is
unsecured and guaranteed by the Company.

On 29 March 2024, Fortune Growth issued 6 new promissory notes
(the “2024 PNs") to the Holder in exchange for the matured debt
under the 2023 PNs. No default for repayment of 2023 PNs before
the exchange of 2024 PNs for 2023 PNs. The 2024 PNs in principal
amount of HK$73,548,504 each and totalling HK$441,291,023
represented the principal amount and accrued interest of the 2023
PNs. The 2024 PNs carry interest which accrues on the outstanding
principal amount of HK$441,291,023 from its issue date until
repayment in full of the principal amount at the fixed rate of 6% per
annum. The 2024 PNs shall become due and payable in full on the
business day immediately preceding the first anniversary of its issue
date and is unsecured and guaranteed by the Company.

The above promissory notes are denominated in HK$ which is the
foreign currency of the relevant group entity (where functional
currency is Peso).

31.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

ARER
RZEZ=F=ZRA=+H - ARA2&W
B A ®l Fortune Growth Overseas Limited
([ Fortune Growth |) mIFB A ((HHE AL -
BEME=F)BOIAOTERLEE(=F
“EERRER]  ERBEFEMET
WE AR EROZIBR RAEB_T =
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B —E_ZFALEENAEEA
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Y BAREERITHARREIER -

RZZEZWMF=HA=+ B
Growth [A135 B A 3177510 #T & K,
E_NFEAREE]) EATZ=F%
HREBETIHRESIIB KT
i%RTﬁR@fjf_iﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
TWHEBREE T _—FEKLERE-
__Eﬂfﬁﬁ%}aﬁ%vﬁaﬁﬂiéigﬁi%73548504%%5&'
BEE R4 2910238 lHERZZE-=F
% EENRe NEFFE c T ZMF
Z ) ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁMmmwwht
BEZTHHREE A RERHEEL
HRIZE T T EERFHE - ZF [0

* Fortune

&=

FRAZBEENEZHEZTHRMRE —E
BEAMEXAZMLREZEN  BER
BRI B AR RIER ©

ARG RBEABTAE BT ABE

BER(HEER AR 2 -

Annual Report %%2023/24 231



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE475 R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

32. BANK BORROWING

32. R1TBEE

At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023
R-B-meE RoT-=

~B=+H NA=1+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Non-current — Secured ke —FEE
Bank loan RITIEE 578,360 -
Note: /;/75 .

On 25 September 2023, a banking facility had been granted to subsidiaries of the
Company of Peso 4,320,000,000 which has been fully utilised as at 30 June 2024.
Interest is charged at variable rate at higher of one year PHP BVAL Reference
Rates+2% per annum or 7.5% per annum in respect to this banking facility.

As at 30 June 2024, the bank loan and the banking facility was secured by the
Group's properties as classified under Properties, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$1,010,420,000 (note 15), certain bank balances of approximately
HK$ 14,688,000 of the Group, certain land use rights and condominiums of
associates of the Group, together with financial guarantees provided by associates
of the Group. The loan is carried at amortised cost.

The subsidiaries of the Company are required to comply with the following
financial covenants which are tested annually starting from audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024:

— Debt-equity ratio shall not be more than 2.33x; and

— Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.10x

At 30 June 2024, total non-current bank loans was scheduled to repay as follows:

RZE-_=ZFANA-+HB  ARFETHBERF
FERIRITREE 4320000000 & ZZRITRER =
E-MEXNA=ZTHCERRIA - ZBRTHE
$2 — £ Hi PHP BVAL Reference Rate +2% sk 4F FI| & 7.5%
MEEEFBE -

R-T-_WNEXAZ+AH i&?ﬂ*&%&i&ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁu
PHEEME BRERI[HBEBZAEEDWED
1,010,420,00078 70 (M 5E15) * AR ALEE :Fiﬂﬁm
FR#4)14688,000/8 7T « AEBEBE AR 2E T LibE
AR ASERT  ERAEEREQARREZH
TEER o &5 B DA S5 K A1 BR

K AIETHEBRARAET TIMEREE LA
—E-NFE+ A=+ —BUEFEZEEZYS

ﬁi%tﬁ/,ﬁﬁlat-

— EBESLETRZR233E &

— BERELEZEIELORE

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023

R=-Z-MF i ——
NA=t+H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
More than one year but not exceeding two years ZR—F  BTBBME 86,754 -
More than two years but not exceeding five years ZRMF  BTBBRSF 347,016 -
After five years hFE 144,590 -
578,360 -
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33. CONVERTIBLE BOND

Pursuant to the share purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) for
the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 100% interest in Oriental-
Invest Properties Limited entered into by a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Baltic Success Limited ("BSL") on 5 July 2019, BSL
issued a 5 years zero coupon convertible bond with principal
amount of HK$53,000,000 on 5 July 2019 (the “Bond"). The Bond
entitled the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$1.01 as set out in the
Company's announcement dated 30 April 2019.

Based on the terms of the Agreement, the Bond contain two
components, (i) the host debt and (i) the conversion derivatives. The
Group recognised both components as liability as the conversion
derivatives of the bond did not meet the “fixed for fixed” test under
HKAS 32. At the issue date, the fair value of both components of the
Bond were determined based on a valuation report issued by JLL.
Subsequently, the host debt component is classified as “financial
liabilities at amortised cost” and measured at amortised cost, the
conversion derivatives is classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss” (“Financial liabilities at FVTPL") and
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
orloss.

The fair value of the host debt of the Bond upon issuance were
calculated at the present value of the estimated coupon interest
payments and principal amount. The discount rate used in the
calculation is 10.01%. The fair value of the conversion derivatives of
the Bond at end of each reporting period is determined using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The key inputs used in the Binomial
Option Pricing Model were as follows:

Stock price (HK$) f&1E (&)
Exercise price (HK$) TEEGET)
Expected life TEHAEE HA
Expected volatility T8 HA R 0@
Expected dividend yield T B AR B a2
Risk free rate 1 [ b 1) X

33.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

B R

RIEA R A 2 & &M B A 7l Baltic Success
Limited ([BSL]) R =ZF —NF+ AR BT
S R ([W B E 18 ]) Oriental-Invest
Properties Limited100% 1 #5 2 B A& 1 3% ([ 7%
WEl)  BSLRZ=ZT—NFLARBETAE
© 88 453,0000008 T2 AFEEE BRI
BF ((EH]) HUARRHBHAE-Z
—NFUA=ZFTHZRAEMH EFE T
BHEAEFNERBREE 100 TEESER
SYAN/N RS )

RIBZ MK - B EREMERD - ()
BEBZMHNEBBRTETA - AEBE KW E
MOERA/EE RAREFERITAET
AN AEB G EFER2RA N EER
EE]AH - RBETEY  E5MERDZ
RPEDRBMEBRTHEL ZAERSE
EeoRE TREBHROESBE/IREH
ARG EZERMBE] RIRBEHERATE
MEMOTE T AREDEARAFERFTA
BazemBE|((RAVFEFAREZS
MEE) MEAFEFAE MAaFEZE
PN IEE TR

RBETHESTRBES 2 AFEEGEFNE
EMNENRARAEBZREFE - FTHA
RAFEXRR1001%  RERSHRES
BROTETAZ AFERB -_BEABETE
BRAUSE —HAAHREEELAED
E2HABEOT

30 June 30 June
2024 2023
—E-NF ZT=F
ANA=TH ~NA=+H
1.07 0.890

1.01 1.01

0 year 1 year

0 146
92.67% 109.20%

0% 0%

5.66% 4.12%

Annual Report %22023/24 2373



International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE475 R A A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

33. CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued) 33. AJ#RER{EZF (40
The movement for the convertible bond during the year is as below: FRATRRESZEHOT -
Financial Financial
liability at liability
amortised cost at FVTPL Total
R AR RAFE
FTEZ AR
A== EA Y= #et
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2022 R=-ZB-_—F+HA—H 42,663 335 42,998
Amortised interest for the year FRE RS 4392 - 4392
Fair value adjustments N EFE - 4,258 4258
At 30 June 2023 R-B-=FXA=1H 47,055 4,593 51,648
Amortised interest for the year FAEEFE 5,886 - 5,886
Fair value adjustments NEERAE - (1,385) (1,385)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZZFE-_NEARA=TH 52,941 3,208 56,149
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34, &
Capital commitments BAREE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet accounted for at the REREHREEBEINERRNEGES M
end of the reporting period in the consolidated financial statements BHRERARZEAASZOT :
is as follows:
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023

R-ZZBE-mE HRN_T =4
NA=tH ~NA=+H

HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEx FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment L E Yy e 11,342 41,984
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35. OTHER COMMITMENTS

Provisional License

Commitments required by PAGCOR and definitions under the
Provisional License have detailed in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 September 2023 and key commitments are summarized as
follows:

(a)

to secure a surety bond in favour of PAGCOR in the amount of
Peso100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$13,740,000)
to ensure prompt and punctual remittances/payments of all

license fees;

to remit license fees on a monthly basis, which shall be an
amount equivalent to the higher of:

0]

(i)

The sum of the following:

(a)

15% of gross gaming revenues generated from
high roller tables;

25% of gross gaming revenues generated from
non-high roller tables;

25% of gross gaming revenues generated from
electronic gaming machines; and

15% of gross gaming revenues generated from
junket tables (not applicable for current year as
no junket operation commence yet), or

Minimum Guaranteed Share ("“MGS")

(a)

Monthly MGS of Php60,000,000 per month in
2023 to be computed from the date of the
commencement of the casino operations;

Monthly MGS of Php90,000,000 from January to
December 2024 for a total annual MGS of
Php1,080,000,000; and

From January 2025 onward, the Licensee to remit
a monthly MGS of approximately Php133,333,333
for a total annual MGS of Php1,600,000,000,

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

Hth&iE

g BSF 12 AR
ARBIBPA-_ZT-_ZFALA-TtAH
N FAE HI PAGCOR FT B Sk H & 5 M &
FIERBHESR - X EREBANAT

@@ LAPAGCORA Xz AEH EIREFH
100,000,000 # = (4B & M #7 13,740,000
BIT)  BRIFE AR REER X
THERRE

b)) EEABRERE
BEESE

TEHEFER TS

() FIBEBEZEMN:

@) E%%E%;'Eﬁﬁ
5 15%

BB

b IZHEEEIMESEEY
25 25%

© SBFEEEASARFEEZR
7= 25% 5 M

d HEBREEZEAEYK
=S (RFETEA B
BEMARRPNEEE
%) 0 sk

(i) HIERFMHEE(MGS])

@ BRERESLERSHLT
ZEZ ZFHRAMGSEH
H 60,000,000 % &

b BZZE-_NF—AZ+=
A& A MGS 90,000,000 4% &
% £ 4 51 1,080,000,000 #
EY

© BZZE-_AF—A# &
I AENSAMGS B L
133333333 R I F A
=+1,600,000,000 & &= -
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35. OTHER COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Provisional License (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
(i) Where MGS shall be subject to the following conditions:

(@ The MGS will apply once full control of gaming
operations is transferred from PAGCOR to the
Licensee under the provisional license computing
from the date of commencement of the casino
operations. The Licensee shall pay the required
monthly license fees under the provisional
license; and

(b) In the event, however, that the total monthly
license fees fall below the MGS, the Licensee shall
pay PAGCOR the monthly MGS instead of the
total monthly license fees.

Since full control of gaming operations is transferred
from PAGCOR to the Licensee under the provisional
license from 9 May 2024, no 2023 Monthly MGS of
Php60,000,000 per month was paid.

to secure a performance bond in favour of PAGCOR in the
amount of Peso100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$13,740,000) as performance assurance to guarantee the
completion of the Project;

to open an Escrow Account which shall maintaining a balance
of US$50 million (equivalent to approximately HK$391 million)
without taking into account of any interest accrued on the
Escrow Account. All funds for the development of the Project
shall pass through the Escrow Account and all drawdowns of
funds from the Escrow Account must be applied to the
Project, and such drawdowns shall be authorised and
executed by the Licensee;
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35.

Hth&iE 2)
B B JE R (48)

(b)

(#8)

(i)  MGSZBFE THHEM :

@ FHREEBETEREE
2 5 i) #E F3 PAGCOR 275
EFBAE BRESHE
HE £ MGSEE BN @
AR ABIERREER
HTZHREZNEARR
-S4

(b) B ABRBRERE
1&)5’\\\MGS ,\JHHE'E}\/,\F?
PAGCOR 2 iV & A MGS if FE
GAMRERE-

HRE-Z_MERANBE"
MELErHEHEER

PAGCOR#Z 1% &= I [ R #5 h&
A BEHER - E-=FITER

B 5 MGS & B 60,000,000 = °

PAPAGCOR B X 25 AER 2 BAVIRFE
% %8 /5100,000,000 & (B2 R4
13,740,00078 70) * {E B TER T X % E
B 2 BHIRE

F?IﬁﬁXu%E[pE}E ﬁu:EE.H'E}E%%E{EIJ%
J8 3 50,000, ooo%m (HE R ’9

391,000,000/ 7T) * EE BRI M KT
FEXLNEHEER - %%IE BEREZHT

BESEBRBTERFE MUAER
PREZERERNZIEER  BHE
AR FFRR N S B AT



International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. OTHER COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Provisional License (Continued)

(e)

to make the Total Investment Commitment of no less than
US$1.0 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$7.82 billion)
and up to US$1.2 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$9.38
billion) for the Project. The Total Investment Commitment
comprises land acquisition costs, costs related to securing
development rights, construction, equipment, development
costs, financing costs and all other expenses directly related to
the completion of the Project.

to submit for PAGCOR's approval for the Implementation Plan.
The Implementation Plan includes, among others, the
spending timetable showing the estimated spending per
Project component, per year. The spending timetable shall
take into consideration the investment/utilization of 40% of
the Total Investment Commitment within two (2) years from
the signing date of the Provisional License Agreement;

to submit the documents required in the Master Development
Plan proposal;

grounds for revocation of the Provisional License, including
but not limited to: (a) failure to comply with material
provisions of this License without remedy within 90 days; (b)
failure to remit license fees within 30 days from receipt of
notice of default; (c) the holder has become bankrupt or
insolvent; and (d) delay in construction or development
without approval of extension from PAGCOR; (e) if the debt-
to-equity ratio is more than 70:30.

35.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE
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(E_ENENA=THIEFE

36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

36. BAEATHEER

(@) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in these (a) BUEFGAMBRREMILDFTIKE
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the RGN REBRFARNFTILATER
following material related party transactions during the year: REATRS:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2024 2023

BZE HE

—E-ME —E-=F

A~A=t+H ~NA=+H

IHFE EFE

Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
Kzt FE T FHT

Interest income from associates REHERE ZFBRA (i) 1,753 2,103

Lease payment to associates mEtERNRXNCHENRK  G6) (6,160) (5,724)

Service fee payment to an associate  [A] — L R A2 (iii)

IR & (11,927) -

Notes: Bfat -

(i) The interest income from associates represented the interest (i) KEHBE QR ZFE ALK E EK
income from loan receivables with principal amount of Peso HVPHI % PBPI AN & %8 9 Bl] /& 430,000,000
430,000,000 to HVPHI and Peso 18,000,000 to PBPI respectively. # R % 18,000,000 R 2 B Z 8K

Ao

(ii) Lease payment to associates represented the lease agreements (ii) M A R A 2 B E S R B HVPHI
entered with HVPHI and PBPI for the land, staff accommodation KpPBPIFTY 2 A E W - WA B RN
and parking lot situated in the Philippines. RIEREZ L - ETFERESHE -

(i) The service fee payment to an associate represented the provision (i) M—HEBEAREINZREERER
of consultancy service in the preparation and development of the EREEREELMABGRAERBNE
integrated resort under Provisional License. RHERERT o

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) BEREEASHH

The remuneration of the Directors and key management of
the Group are disclosed in Note 11. The remuneration of the
Directors and key management personnel of the Group is
based on the performance and experience of individuals and
is determined with reference to the Group’s performance, the
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.
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37. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

37. XGRS RERZMEE
(@) RERBRLZENEE:

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R-ZZE-WFE RZZT-=F
~NA=+H ~NAZ=1+H

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
Cash and bank balances (Note i) B MIRTTES (M ati) 417,471 492,451
Restricted bank balances (Note i) SRBIRITEEER (BT aEi) 411,027 -
Fixed bank deposits (Note i) T BRERTT 7 5% (B 2t ii) 91,855 -
920,353 492,451
Less: — Fixed bank deposit with original ~ J& : — BB ARFREEIHF B
maturity of more than three B =8 A8 E 5
months when acquired RITIFR (91,855) -
— Restricted bank balances — ZBRHIRITEE R (411,027) -
417,471 492451
Notes: Hiet -
(i) Restricted bank balance represents (i) fund maintain in an escrow (i) SR FI R 1T 45 54 58 () IR R BR B HE R 15

account in accordance with the Provisional License Agreement for
development of the Project, which can only be used for the Project
and release when the Project complete; (ii) fund maintain in
designated account restrict for repayment of bank loan when they
become due. As balances in these accounts are expected to release
after 12 months from balance sheet date, the balances are classified
as non-current assets.

(if) The balances represent short term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, demand deposits in the banks in
Hong Kong and Philippines carrying prevailing market interest rates
of 4% (2023: 4%) per annum, cash on hand and cash keep in casino
for gaming operation.

(iii) The balances represent fixed bank deposits of Peso 100,000,000
and USD10,000,000 carrying interest of 6% and 5.625% per annum
respectively with an original maturity of more than three months.
The fixed bank deposit of Peso 100,000,000 has been pledged for
the surety bond in favour of PAGCOR.

FANERZBEANTERPFANE
T HEERARZEAR  XRZAERB
SR AR IR (WVERERPHEFE
& NEIPREERITEE -BAR
ZERPINEREGNEERGB/RA
REREARRE  BRAEHROIER
FRBERE

(i) HEERINPEAZEARATHE
HRITHER REBRIERERRT
MBFEFERABE(ZTZ=F : 4[F) 5
BEWIRITEFER  FERTHRAHE
SRELEENES -

(i) HEIRIHEBB=EANTHE
7713 100,000,000 # & % 10,000,000 %
TL D REFERMEKRE R 5625FEFHE ©
LAPAGCOR B X 2 AW E BASR 1T K
100,000,000 REAEBIRF S LI -
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37. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:

37. XFHREHRERERZME @)

(b) BMEZBRMELARGEZHIR:

Lease Convertible Bank  Promissory
liabilities bond borrowings notes
(Note 20) (Note 33) (Note 32) (Note 31)
HERE THREREF RIBE RIRE
(Wit20)  (WaE33)  (W&E32)  (WaE31)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET BT T
At 1July 2022 R-B--ftA—H 39,054 42,998 31,216 400,300
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - - (30619) -
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAR (6,973) - - -
Interest paid BRFIA - - (247) -
Total changes from financing cash flows B &R &R EF BB (6,973) - (30,866) -
Other changes: Hip g
Interest expenses accrued e F SR X 3519 4392 247 18316
Change in fair value NFEES) - 4258 - -
Exchange difference B ERE (298) - (597) (2,304)
At 30 June 2023 R-B-=§XA=tH 35,302 51,648 - 416,312
Addition of borrowings fEEZ - - 604,681 -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHREEE (5,860) = - =
Interest paid BERFA - - (36,018) =
Total changes from financing cash flows BER & RELZ B RE (5,860) - 568,663 -
Other changes: Hih &5 -
Interest expenses accrued JEFF ST 3,176 5,886 36,018 25,553
Change in fair value NTEZH - (1,385) - =
Exchange difference N R (1,855) - (26,321) (574)
At 30 June 2024 R-ZB-ZWEAA=1H 30,763 56,149 578,360 441,291
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were as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WELFER

Lucky Genius Limited
Lucky Genius Limited

Fortune Growth
Fortune Growth

Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited
Flexi-Deliver Holding Limited

CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc.
CTF Hotel and Entertainment, Inc.

CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc.
CTF Properties (Philippines), Inc.

MSPI
MSPI

NCHI

NCHI

NCLI
NCLI

Form of
business

RBEA

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

Corporation

=E
Corporation

L]

Corporation

L]

38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2024

Place of
incorporation and
operations
BTN
Pt

BV
RBERRES

BV
RBERRES

BV
RBERRES

Philippines
FRE

Philippines
FRE

Philippines
FRE

Philippines

FEE

Philippines
FEE

38. B
RZE-_MEXA=+BZADEFEH

NSIESH

BRBFEWT

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital
BRITRER
e T TN

Uss1
ES

Uss1
E

Uss1
E

Pes010,468,600
10,468,600 % &

Pes010,468,600
10,468,600 % &

Pes02,722,930,653
2722930653 ER

Pes0621,444,867

621444867 R

Pes020,000,000
20,000,000 % &

Percentage held by
the Company

ARAMFEDL
Directly Indirectly

BE f
% %

100 -

Annual Report %% 2023/24

Principal activities

FEXH

Investment holding

BADR

Investment holding

RERKR

Investment holding

RERKR

Investment holding

RERKR

Investment holding

RERKR

Property investment

NERE

Hotel owner, operation
of hotel business

BEEEA
BEHIE£T

(Gaming operation
Y EE
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. B ATEIEHIE (#)

Issued and fully
Place of paid share
Form of incorporationand capital/ Percentage held by
Name of subsidiary business operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
B R ERTREE
WEATEME £S5 70 Kems e T TN ARRFEREAL FEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE BE:3
% %
Future Growth Limited Corporation Hong Kong HKS2 100 - General administration
for the Group
BRERRA EE B VBT AEE-RITHER
|EC Live Events Macau Limited Corporation Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Live Events
ECRFEHRMA—-ABRAA EE P 25,0002 7T BRED
IEC Investment Limited Corporation BVI (lass B: US$9,500 100 - Investment holding
IEC Investment Limited EE KBHBRESE B 9500ETT KEER
Class A: US$500 100 -
ASE 1 500%TT
Oriental-Invest Properties Limited ~ Corporation BVI Uss2 - 100 Investment holding
Oriental-Invest Properties Limited %8 HEABREE X REER
Future Success International Corporation Samoa USS1 - 100 Investment holding
Holding Limited
Future Success International =B BED (E REER
Holding Limited
LaVie Leisure Limited Corporation Samoa USS1 - 100 Investment holding
LaVie Leisure Limited =B BED (E REER
Luxury Resort Holdings Incorporated - Corporation Philippines US$205,746 - 100 Investment holding
(Peso 12,000,005)
Luxury Resort Holdings Incorporated 1% & FEE 205,746 7T REER
(12000005 H X&)
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. B AFEIEIE (&)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share
Form of incorporation and capital/ Percentage held by
Name of subsidiary business operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
A K BETRAR
MEARAE £BER R BRA R rARFAEEDL TEER
Directly Indirectly
£ CiE:3
% %
LaVie Global Group Limited Corporation Samoa Uss1 - 100 Investment holding
LaVie Global Group Limited =B BEED 1€7T el
Strategem Ventures Corporation Philippines US$197,178 - 100 General administration
Management Inc. (Peso 11,500,300) for the Group
Strategem Ventures =B FRE 197,178 7T AEE-RITHER
Management Inc. (11500300 &)
Golden Ticket Management Inc Corporation Philippines US$197,173 - 100 General administration
(Peso 11,500,000 for the Group
Golden Ticket Management Inc =B FRE 197173% 7T AEE-RITHER
(11500000 %)
Saved as disclosed in Note 31 and Note 33, none of the subsidiaries BRETEE3T REIEES3EE I RFERLF
had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year or at any NEMER  BERBARBERNARESR
time during the year. BERFES
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERIRESRAHASBFTEXERE
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year AFEBESIERTEEEERBBEBEANT S
or formed a substantial portion of assets and liabilities of the Group. ZARRBIMBAR - EERAY REAMN
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the BRAFEETRIBANITE

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Annual Report ¥ 2023/24 243



B REER R A]

International Entertainment Corporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 39.
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

RRBZMBHIRRR R R REE

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) ARQFZBBAMRE

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R-ZZBE-WNE RZZZ=F
NA=1+H ~NA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
k23 FExT FAT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE 471,548 472,588
Other receivables, deposits Hofth pE U 5RIE
and prepayments e RBNFIA - 4,305
Amount due from a subsidiary in JE U — FEI BT 8 A B3R
form of promissory note (AERREZEERN) 406,212 423,432
Amounts due from subsidiaries [N E S 113,820 683,652
991,580 1,583,977
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, deposits E e R IA
and prepayments e RIENHIE 1,522 648
Bank balances RITETT 287,095 319,468
288,617 320,116
Current liabilities MENBE
Other payables and accrued charges Hfth FE AT 5RIE &
fE5 & A 5,973 3,805
Convertible bond AR E S 56,149 -
Amount due to associates FEA B R RIFIE 70 -
62,192 3,805
Non-current liabilities EREBAEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT B BB A B3k IE 224,454 682,553
Convertible bond AR E S - 51,648
224,454 734,201
NET ASSETS EEFE 993,551 1,166,087
Equity attributable to owners of the PAN/NEIE FSN
Company FEfh A
Share capital &N 29 13,692 1,369,157
Reserves s 39(b) 979,859 (203,070)
TOTAL EQUITY T BT 993,551 1,166,087

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2024
and was signed on its behalf by:

ARBZHBRARR _F_WOEFN
A-thBEEESEeHE XA Y
ATHRERZEE

Mr. HO Wong Meng Mr. Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE
HO Wong Meng 5%t & Aurelio Jr. Dizon TABLANTE %t &£
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
FF EF
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(b)

Reserves movement of the Company

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

39. ARBZMBRRRNFEEEE) (@)

(b) AAFZEEED

Share- Retained
based profits/
Share Merger Exchange compensation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
DRORER RERA/
R EE AHtRE EXifkE <HERE (RHEHR) @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT FET TAR TET TET
At 1 July 2022 i
+A—-B 170,289 53,022 (214,985) 5433 (255,039) (241,280)
Exchange difference B EERE
arising on translation RIEHRES
from functional currency 2B X Z 3
to presentation currency B - 48490 N N 48490
Loss for the year ENERE - - - - (10.280) (10,280)
At 30 June 2023 R-B-Z=%
XA=+AH 170,289 53,022 (166495) 5433 (265319) (203,070)
Exchange difference B EEHRER
arising on translation 2IERRES
from functional currency  Z[EHEE
to presentation currency - - 281,312 - - 281,312
Cancellation of share options &+ $HE& i 1 - - - (5433) 5433 -
Capital reduction BAHIR - - - - 1,355465  1,355465
Loss for the year ENER - - - - (453,848) (453,848)
At30 June 2024 RZT_WEF
~NAZTH 170,289 53,022 114,817 - 641,731 979,859
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. BREREI Dz eREERSRIAE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY B
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities REEHHEENsREERESRABER
recognised at the end of reporting period were categorised as HEREREDINT -
follows:
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023

RSB mE R —_=F
ANA=1H NA=+H

HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABRZEREE 4,481 5,302
Financial assets at amortised costs BHERAT B SREE 998,066 584,121
1,002,547 589,423
Financial liabilities Eot =R
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEFABEZERAE 3,208 4,593
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKAYEz 2B E 1,162,276 539,314
1,165,484 543,907
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are cRMEERERMEEZAFEEREATAR
determined as follows: BE:

—  the fair value of investments held for trading with standard —
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market price; and

—  the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities —
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis, binomial
option pricing model or market comparable multiples as
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial instruments that are
measured at fair value by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—ZE—WFENA=FTHILFE

40. BB DZEMEERESRAR
BE )

EAVBREEIE 3H/BELTIAFE
BAEBLAZERARNIRATETFEZLR
TEELRHE:

£ EREMSLAREEXBEZR
B CREAE) :

F_: PEENABEERAMEMITE
RZBAER (F—RAERE®
BERIN R

£ WHEERABEMSBEBECEE
KA EEABUR -
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. FE\EHNEIDZEREERSHMAE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE &)

(Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREHEATEERZ2EREDIENF

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: BRI EDH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B BE= st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000

TAT TR TAET TAT

At 30 June 2024 R-ZB-OFEXA=+H
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss cREE
Unlisted investment fund (Note) FEMBREES (Hit) - - 4,481 4,481

Financial liabilities at fairvalue RATETAEBEZ

through profit or loss AN =N
Conversion derivative HMTAET A - = 3,208 3,208
At 30 June 2023 R=ZB=-=FXHA=+H
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss cREE
Unlisted investment fund (Note) EEMEREES (MiF) - - 5,302 5,302

Financial liabilities at fairvalue RATETAEBEZ

through profit or loss AN =N
Conversion derivative ERTETA - - 4,593 4,593
Note: Htat -
For the unlisted investment fund, the fair value is arrived at based on a valuation PIELTREESMES - A FEDRBEEREEY
carried out by an independent professional valuer not connected to the Group. mEE B BEMEMETZHEERTE - AT E
The fair value was determined based on NAV summation method with fair value of BEEEFELMEBEHBREZ AFERENS
underlying investment determined based on market approach with references to ELRA BN RARZEEGSHET -

comparable companies’ benchmark multiples.
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40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. REFREIDZeMEERERMEE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY B ()
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) Bt - (&)
Significant unobservable inputs BEATRAEHERARE
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
REB-IF R-T-=F
NA=1H ~A=+H
Market multiples of comparable companies adopted IR ELL BN B 2 5B
— EV/EBITDA ratio —EBEHRAE  HE TEX
BEATR M = 5.41 537
Discount for lack of marketability = mismElE 2z R 11.98% 14.78%
Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable companies adopted increased by 5%, it MFTER M E L R AR Z D EEEYHBKRFE - Fi1F -
would increase the fair value of the unlisted investment by approximately WERBHERANLL RIEM% - MFELEMBEZR
HK$488,000 (2023: HK$516,000). Had the EV/EBITDA ratio of comparable T (B 1 A0 #)488,00078 7T (ZF = = 4F : 516,000
companies adopted decreased by 5%, it would decrease the fair value of the JC) o WETERMNAI B L R AR 2 EEEEEKRFE -
unlisted investment by approximately HK$488,000 (2023: HK$516,000). TRIE - P E R AT A R R 5% - A3 LWk
B2 RFERBD 4880008 T (Z T =45 :
516,000/ 7T) °
The following table shows the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of TRETHFLTREESFE="QATEFE22EEK:

the unlisted investment fund:

At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023

R=T-QmEF RZZEZ=F

AH=TH ~NA=1+AH

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FHET

At beginning of the year REY) 5,302 8212

Change in fair value NFEZ (723) 3,127)

Exchange adjustment [P (98) 217

At end of the year RER 4,481 5,302
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial EERR UBRRANERBHEKATE2EHEE

liabilities carried at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate to their kemB B REERANTERE

fair values.
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41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BEXEREE

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital. There
was no change in capital management policies and objectives from
prior periods.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position
and makes adjustment to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total capital (not applicable under net cash
position). Net cash or debt is calculated as total borrowings
representing outstanding promissory notes, outstanding bank
borrowing and outstanding convertible bond as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position less cash and bank
balances. Total capital is calculated as total equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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41.

42.

International Entertainm

ent Corporation  BIFRIRZEH R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The gearing ratio as at 30 June 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

mE

B IS AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

41. EXEBERE (&)
R-CE-_WMER-_"TE-=&~A=+AZ
EEARGBLENT

At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023
R=ZB-ME R-T_=F
~NA=1+H ~A=+H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET FET
Total borrowings BE®E 1,075,800 467,960
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRTTETARE 417,471 492,451
Net debt/(cash) &%,/ (Re) F58 658,329 (24,491)
Total capital BB 1,016,789 1,206,959
Gearing ratio BEAEBLX 64.7% N/A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include loan receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, restricted bank deposit,
fixed bank deposit, bank balance and cash, trade payables, other
payables, promissory notes, convertible bond and bank borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risk associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

42. MHBEREEBFERER

AEBETE

ERTEABREEBRER A

FEFABRZEMEE BREE &
& N CE R MR IR - R WK R B RROR
EXRBRITER  EHRITER  R|RITHE
FREE  BMNRE - HEMENHR
REE - ABEREFURRITEE -

HEESRMTAZHBRNERMEIRE - U1t
FeRTAZABAER &ZZDHM&EEEEH
B BRBN T X - $’§l”éﬁ EIE R

e 7N
E:\:\./ \ﬁzgm R

TR B BUREUE E i o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
bank balance and cash, restricted bank deposit, fixed bank
deposit, amounts due from associates and loan receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In respect of trade receivables and contract assets, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customers operate. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. To measure ECLs, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped by
segments based on similar credit risk characteristics and
assessed on a collective basis. No individual ECLs assessment
for the debtors has performed. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience indicates significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the grouping for trade
receivables and contract assets for the assessment of ECLs is
by customer segments. For contract assets, management
applied the expected credit loss rates calculated using
provision matrix to different customer segments,
management considered the ECLs is immaterial and no
provision for lifetime ECLs has recognised.

For trade receivables, management has categorised debtors
into 5 customer groups for ECLs assessment with Group E
represents the customers with significant risk of default.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42.

International Entertainment Corporation BIFRIRE45 R A &)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 30
June 2024 and 2023:

At 30 June 2024 R-ZE-WF Group A

AA=+H R

Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEIER 2.89%
Gross carrying amount SRmEARE(THET)

(HKS'000) _

Loss allowance (HK$'000) fEsEEE (FET) -

At 30 June 2023 R-ZEB-=F Group A

ANB=1+8H FE

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEX 2.28%
Gross carrying amount REAE(TET)

(HKS'000) 14,317

Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEEE(TET) 327

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

MHERREEBERERBER (@)

(a)

FERE &)
ERFRERENEE (&)

TR ERAEER T _NFR
CEC=FARACZTHAEEGREER
BN EWIRIE 2 REEEEIRZ &

GroupB GroupC GroupD GroupE

b | k! T4 %

2.78% 2.79% 3.08% 100%

850 553 34 535
23 15 1 535

Group B Group C  Group D Group E

o k! TH D&

2.20% 2.35% 6.14% 100%
292 - 68 2616
6 - 4 2616

BHBREEIRBEBEIFZERE
BRREE ZELEEEHAEIN
2 R 4 PR 4G 2 A 0T B P MK R R S B
ZER - BREIOR K AN 5 8 8 R R
RIEMERRLBERRZEBEL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Creditrisk (Continued)

The below table reconciled the movement in the allowance

for credit losses of trade receivables for the year:

MHERREEBERERBER @)

(a)

EERR(£E)
TRAFAEKEEEEGEREGZ
FH)HR

At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023

R=B-WmE R-_T_=F

ANA=1H ~NA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

At beginning of year REA) 2,953 494

(Reversal)/provision for expected credit BHEEEE (BE),

losses, net BT (2,294) 2432

Exchange adjustments bE 5 B (85) 27

Atend of year RER 574 2,953
Deposits and other receivables Bt REMERE

As at 30 June 2024, deposits and other receivables mainly
represent receivables from the hotel operation, gaming

operation and live events segment.

For hotel and gaming operation segment, lifetime ECLs of
approximately HK$529,000 (2023: HK$434,000) on deposits
and other receivables was recognised during the year.
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International Entertainment Corporation

BIFRIREER R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Bank balances and cash, restricted bank deposit and
fixed bank deposit

Management considered the credit risk is limited as the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
reputation.

Loan receivables and amounts due from associates

Loan receivables and amounts due from associates represent
loans and funding to associates (Note 18). Management assess
that the effect of applying the expected credit risk model on
loan receivables was immaterial base on the effect of the
credit enhancement of the pledged asset.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management of the Group to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The following table details the Group of remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

42. BHEEEBIERBE &)

(a)

(b)

FERE &)

MITHFRAEE  ZRFBRITEAR
ERRIT 75

EEERR HRHFTHREER
HZRIThEREE  REERRE
fR -

ERESRERBEE R FANE

I U R e L e 8 R R SRIR 4 () B
BRRERREHRES (HE18) - &
BEEARNEHEEEERRNTE
AR EREERRREE S EKE
RZFELTERXN -

EERBETARE  AREERY
HBARBEEERRARHZREN
ReFEWKF UALAEEZER
HESLREREREKNBD 2FE -

TRANANKETESRAB 28
TEHHER - TRBBEASEAIRE
KM z&xFBEH REBAGBZKR
HREREGH FTLEESRARE
ZEMBEEREHEZEEBR - T
KBEMNERAETHERE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _mFENA=1HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

MHERREEBERERBER @)

(b) REEZRME(E)

The Group rEH
Total Morethan  More than
contractual Within 1year 2years
Carrying undiscounted 1year or but less butless More than
amount cashflow ondemand than2years than 5 years 5 years
BNAFE —-FR% BE-F EBBEWME
FHE ReRELAE RER BORAME BIREE BBIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT TAT TAT TAT
At 30 June 2024 R-Z-ME
~AA=1H
Non-derivatives: JEATHE
Trade payables FE1TERIA 4,133 4,133 4,133 = = =
Other payables and HiERHER
accrued charges B ER 85,551 85,551 85,551 - - -
Promissory notes ERER 441,291 467,986 467,986 - - =
Convertible bond ARES 52,941 53,000 53,000 = = =
Bank borrowing BITEE 578,360 886,027 49,189 135943 494718 206,177
Lease liabilities HEBE 30,763 54,774 5,657 5,657 16,970 26,490
1,193,039 1,551,471 665516 141,600 511,688 232,667
At 30 June 2023 R=2==%
~A=TAH
Non-derivatives: FEOTH
Trade payables JETER I 1,920 1920 1920 - - -
Other payables and HA R 38 R
accrued charges Bzt &R 38725 38725 38725 - - -
Promissory notes RLER 416,312 435,063 435,063 - - -
Convertible bond AR ES 47,055 53,000 - 53,000 - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 35,302 63,959 5,987 5,987 17,961 34,024
539,314 592,667 481,695 58987 17,961 34024
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BIFRIREER R A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from its financial assets at
FVTPL (Note 21) and variable-rate bank balances (Note 37(a))
and promissory notes (Note 31), bank borrowings (Note 32)
and convertible bond (Note 33). Financial assets at FVTPL and
promissory notes, bank borrowings and convertible bond at
fixed interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. Bank balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

The Group does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider appropriate hedging policy
when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances including bank
balances deposits in the banks in Hong Kong and the
Philippines. The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for
variable-rate time deposits at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming these bank balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are
outstanding for the whole year/period. A 50 basis points (2023:
50 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in the banks in
the Philippines is used in estimating the potential change in
interest rate and represents the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates made by the management of
the Group. If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$381,000 (2023: HKSNIl). A 30 basis points
(2023: 30 basis points) in variable-rate time deposits in the
banks in Hong Kong is used in estimating the potential
change in interest rate and represents the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates made by the
management of the Group. If the interest rates had been 30
basis points higher/lower (2023: 30 basis points higher/lower)
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately to HK$1,000 (2023: HK$7,000).

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

MHERREEBERERBER (@)

(c)

A 2= m b
ALz M XERREEZEQFER

AE s EREE (MFE21) MFRIER
TETF (MEE376) k&K EE (K&

31) ~RITIEE (MaE32) kA RE
#(Bﬁ‘?ﬂs) o LABEE M R R FER
ABH 2 G REERALEE - R1T
fEERABRRES S AKREAZ QT
Tﬁﬂfﬂ o FRBITEFSAEE
AR RENXER

AEEIWEN KPR - Ry - K
SEHEEEERNXAR YNAHR
R EBEE PR

HEE DT

RABFZBRITER (BEFHRN
EARFFRBERTZRTET) AT
iﬁﬁ?ﬂuiﬂrﬂ o TL@‘K@EH M
BIFZETHFRNREHELEER
FTASFERRETE DM 2HEETY
BRERREPHELEE A 2 ZFRITE
FEREEFEBBREINATE - JE>2
EiR1T 22 B E R S0 MER (=
T = F S0EEE) ARG FIE
BT EJJ TREN A 55 B B3R B I R
AJREA IR B i o WA EF T
PRSOMEEZ - MATA EmEsgiEr
B AAEBEFTRAKRIEEN G
/R 49381,0008 T (ZE =
T BEBRTZEEEHER
BI30ME AR (Z T =4 : 30fEXE )
BRETFIRBESS  RRIALEE
EREHMNEESEEE 2T -
s F) TL%/T[&%{I%E&(:”
—=F R TRI0EES)
Fi H e g is g E\Msﬂéli
RIBR i 1% 2 I 8 38 0,8 2 491,000 78
TL(ZZTZ=%F : 7000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e Em KM

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—T_MFENA=1THIFEF

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its long-term bank borrowings. At 30 June 2024, it was
estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
(2023: 50 basis points) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit
after income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$2,996,000 (2023: HKSNil). Other components of equity
would not be changed.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 50 basis
point increase or decrease represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting period.

Other price risk

At 30 June 2024, the Group is exposed to price risk through its
financial assets at FVTPL in respect of the investment in
Foresight Fund (2023: Foresight Fund). The management of
the Group has performed analysis of the nature of market risk
associated with the investments, including discussion with the
investment advisors, and concluded that the price risk is more
prominent in evaluating the market risk of this kind of
investments. The management of the Group monitors this
exposure and will consider appropriate hedging policy when
necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BEr T _MFENA=1HIFFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. Bi#EEMEEBEREBE &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Currency risk (e) EMWmER

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through the REBTFXEMHANEEXBER 2]
financial assets at FVTPL, other receivables, bank balances and EEEUIINEEHE ZRATFERA
cash, other payables and convertible bond that are BmzemEE  HMEWFIE R
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency TRERRS - B ENRIERAT#®
of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving RESMEAEERRE - EL£ILER
rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars ("USD") and 2EEFERET(ER]D RBT-
HKS.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary BEEEERE®aE EEHERSRS
liabilities are denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant ME#ERLREHASEREE (HIhst
group entities whose functional currency is Peso at the end of BEERBR) ZINEFTERT :

the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
8E& BE

At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June

2024 2023 2024 2023

R-ZB-WE R-FT_= R=B-WE R-T_=%F

AA=+H ANAZ=+H ~A=+H ~NAZ=TH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET FET FHT

usb ETT - - 625,468 11,415

HKS BT 460,194 480,814 121,077 336,507

EUR (i - - 4,481 5302
The Group currently does not have foreign currency hedging ANEE B AT EINEERIOR o AT
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors REBERERS EB D DERINE
foreign currency exposure for each business segment and B ERE s FE - WRE

reviews the needs of individual geographical area, and will FEREEREE HHRECE -

consider appropriate hedging policy when necessary.
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
HE—T_MFENA=1THIFEF

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

MHERREEBERERBER @)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)

(e) EWREM &)

Sensitivity analysis HEETH
As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any RS T E R LB - MU & B T8 5
significant foreign currency exposure arising from the AI%ﬁEfﬁﬁ&f’éﬁ%%ﬁZE

fluctuation of the USD/HKS and HKS/USD exchange rates. As a
result, the management of the Group considers that the
sensitivity of the Group’s exposure towards the change in
foreign exchange rates between USD/HKS and HKS$/USD is
minimal.

The currency risk is mainly arising from exchange rate of Peso
against USD and HKS.

The following table details the Group' sensitivity to a 10%
(2023: 10%) increase and decrease in Peso against USD and
HKS. 10% (2023: 10%) represents the assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates made
by the management of the Group. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items. The table below indicates the impact on
post-tax profit for the year where the Peso weaken 10% (2023:
10%) against foreign currencies, and vice versa. For a 10%
(2023: 10%) strengthening of Peso against foreign currencies,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit for the year.

TR BT E L EFMBBARINE R -
b AREE ﬁwﬁ’jﬁ’ilaﬁ%m
RABTRABTLHRTT 2 HZ SN[ X
HEE R BUREBIE -

EHER
ZEE -

CEEREWERLETLRE T

Ti‘\%%i’i\JZlS’il%?ﬁ;%%%ﬁ&%ﬁ
BRI A10% (ZE =4 :10%)
ZHRE 0% (ZFEZ=9F : 10%) T3
AEETEEHINEERAESE Y
B c MREDTERE KL
B2NEHEERIER - TREBEMRMK
WREINETEI0% (T - =4
10%) HFEANBRTERNZFE Jiz
JT@i WIEREINEFEI0% (ZF
ZEF0%) c FRAKRKEREBAETEZ
FeEARmMARERZFE -

HKS$ impact USD impact
BLEE Ey A4
At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023 2024 2023
REFB-oWE R-_T-_=F R-T-@F R-_T_=F%F
~NA=1+H ~NA=T1H ~NH=TH ~NA=1H
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET THERT FET
(Decrease)/increase in FARBRBERT

post-tax profit for the year CRA),/18n (33,912) (14,448) 62,547 841
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group' sensitivity to a 10%
(2023: 10%) increase and decrease in EUR against HKS. 10%
represents the assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates made by the management of the
Group. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items. The table
below indicates the impact on post-tax profit for the year
where the EUR weaken 10% (2023: 10%) against HKS. For a
10% (2023: 10%) strengthening of EUR against HKS, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit
for the year.

Decrease in post-tax profit for the year 4 A 1 14 2 Fl i

A MR AR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

42. BHEEEBIERBE &)

(e)

E¥RRE)

BREDN (&)

TR AEBERTH B LIE N
WA10% (ZBEZ=4F 1 10%) 2 B
& ° 10% 5 2N 5 B 5 12 2 O B =
AR BB B 2 51 E - GUREDITIE
BREMKEE ZINESEEKIER
TERETME TR ABITEREI0% (=
T=F 10%) HEARBREBRET 2
TR WBITTEBTABEIN (ZF
Z=F 10%) c FRKRBERFEZ
HeBEERAMUARER ZFE -

EUR impact
BT ®
At 30 June At 30 June
2024 2023

R-ZZE-WFE RZZT-=F
~NA=1+H ~A=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TET
448 530

43. MATERIAL INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company was a party and in which the directors of the Company
or an entity connected with the directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
financial year.

43. EENXH. THRENZEKXE

s

BMERARFRTLEARREEHHES
FREZERERI[MEREPHEBERXN
REZETMERRS  RHRIRAHRPEK
FEARMBFELEERTE -
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A MR

For the year ended 30 June 2024
BE T _MENA=THIFFE

44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, on 5 July 2024, the
Convertible Bonds of aggregate principal amount of HK$53,000,000
have been settled by cash in full on the maturity date of 5 July 2024.

45. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were reviewed by the Audit
Committee and approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 September 2024.
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Financial Summary

Bt 35 1 E

RESULTS ES
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended yearended ~ yearended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-FF —E--F T —E-o=F CZE-NE
ANA=ZTBE R~A=tA AR~A=+A ~A=+H RA=t+H
EFE EFE EFE EFE LEE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TAET TR

Revenue WA 226,965 64,900 85,525 207,219 229,786

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),H5H (305332) (242,040) (256,391) 18282 (131,964)

(Loss)/profit attributable to: AT A &L

(&51#8),/ &H :
Owners of the Company KRFHEEA (279,564) (242,040) (256,391) 18282 (131,964)
NET ASSETS REE
As at As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
ZTITF T T —T=F ZE-DNF
~AA=ZTH RNA=tHA RKNA=+tH KA=+H RHA=t+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TR
Total assets BEE 2,538,669 2,301,154 1,874,776 1,898,227 2,324,298
Total liabilities ﬁ@ﬁ & (750,189) (709,545) (678,878) (691,268)  (1,307,509)
1,788,480 1,591,609 1,195,898 1,206,959 1,016,789
Equity attributable to: AT AT eI
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETE/ ZSIN 1,788,480 1,591,609 1,195,898 1,206,959 1,016,789
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Particulars of Principal Properties

ETEYEHR

Location Existing use Lease term
i ht REAR HEFH
1588 M.H. Del Pilar Hotel and casino operations and leasing of properties  Medium-term lease

cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila
The Philippines
1588 M.H. Del Pilar BB E RS A R B % R HATE A
cor. Pedro Gil, Malate Manila
The Philippines
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